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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | present herewith
to the shareholders of the Group the annual report and audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

RESULTS OF THE YEAR

During the year of 2018, the Group engaged in media and
culture business, trading business as well as entertainment and
gaming business. The Group’s revenue was HK$73,485,000
(2017: HK$39,958,000) for the year ended 31 December
2018, with a gross profit of approximately HK$37,982,000 as
compared to a gross loss of approximately HK$3,203,000 in
the year of 2017. The Company recorded a loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$49,606,000 (2017:
HK$294,439,000).

Basic loss per share for the year was approximately 7.36 HK
cents (2017: 49.15 HK cents).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The Group continued to develop its media and culture business
and started to record revenue from this business during 2018.
With the leadership of an experienced and energetic core
management team, we have full confidence we can steadily
develop our business. The Group will also strive to improve its
performance in its trading business and its entertainment and
gaming business.
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Chairman’s Statement

FRkE

The Group shall strive to take a prudent approach in business
development to safeguard a higher shareholder’s return.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the management and all the employees of the Group
for their dedication. | would also like to thank our shareholders,
suppliers, bankers and customers for their continuous support.

Mr. Gao Qun
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 April 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FURTHER UPDATE ON MAJOR
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION
IN RELATION TO ACQUISITION OF
THE ENTIRE EQUITY INTEREST IN
STARLIGHT LEGEND INVESTMENT
LIMITED

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 14 September 2017 and 13 December 2017 and the
circular of the Company dated 26 October 2017 (the “Circular”)
relating to, among other things, the acquisition of the entire
equity interest in Starlight Legend Investment Limited (the
“Acquisition”) and the update announcement of the Company
dated 29 March 2018 (the “Update Announcement”) relating
to, among other things, the Side Letter. Capitalised terms used
herein shall have the meanings as defined in the Circular and the
Update Announcement unless the context requires otherwise.

As disclosed in the Update Announcement, the Vendor entered
into the Side Letter with the Company on 29 March 2018,
pursuant to which the Vendor irrevocably and unconditionally
agreed and undertook to the Company the following:

(i) The Vendor and the Company shall jointly appoint an
independent valuer, to conduct the Updated Valuation (i.e.
a valuation of the Target Group as at 31 December 2018).
The determination by the independent valuer shall be final
and binding on the Vendor and the Company.

(i) If the Updated Valuation is less than US$25,000,000, the
Vendor irrevocably, unconditionally, and absolutely agrees
to the Waiver (i.e. to waive and forgo the principal amount
of the Promissory Note payable by the Company under
the Promissory Note to the extent of an amount equal
to the difference between the Updated Valuation and
US$25,000,000).

(i) The due date of the Promissory Note shall be extended
until 12 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB R 53 HT

On 9 April 2019, a valuation report was delivered by the
independent valuer jointly appointed by the Company and the
Vendor for the purpose of the Side Letter, which states that
the value of the Target Group as at 31 December 2018 was
US$7,500,000, being the Updated Valuation for the purpose
of the Side Letter. As such and pursuant to the Side Letter, the
amount of the principal amount of the Promissory Note to be
waived and forgone by the Vendor shall be US$17,500,000,
being US$25,000,000 minus US$7,500,000. Given that the
principal amount of the Promissory Note is US$12,884,615.38,
the principal amount of the Promissory Note shall be reduced
from US$12,884,615.38 to US$0. Further, as no interest is
payable on the principal amount of the Promissory Note, the
Company shall have no further obligation whatsoever to the
Vendor under the Promissory Note with effect from 9 April 2019.

The Company recognized: (a) a gain on fair value change in
the amount of approximately HK$91.4 million attributable to
the reduction in the principal amount of the Promissory Note
pursuant to the Waiver; and (b) a loss on impairment of goodwiill
in the amount of approximately HK$54.8 million attributable
to the reduction in the value of the Target Group as at 31
December 2018 taking into account the Updated Valuation.

ISSUE OF BONDS UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE

On 26 April 2019, the Company and each of the three
subscribers (who are independent third parties to the Company)
entered into the subscription agreements (“Subscription
Agreements”), pursuant to which each of the subscribers has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue the unsecured redeemable bonds
(“Bonds”) with conditional conversion rights in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$180,000,000 (“CB Proceeds”).

On 28 April 2019, the CB Proceeds was received by the
Company and the CB Proceeds net of related expenses was
utilized to repay part of the short-term liabilities of the Company.

The details of the Bonds and the CB Proceeds can be referred
to the Company’s announcement dated 28 April 2019.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Group reported a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$49,606,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: approximately HK$294,439,000).
The loss was mainly attributable to (i) the gain on change in fair
value of derivative financial liabilities of approximately HK$36
million recognized during the year of 2018 as compared to a loss
of approximately HK$30 million recognized in the year of 2017
in relation to the convertible bonds issued by the Company;
(i) the gain on change in fair value of a promissory note of
HK$91,431,000; (iii) the overall decrease in operating expenses,
administrative expenses and finance costs of approximately
HK$40 million; and (iv) the gross profit of approximately HK$38
million recognized during the year of 2018 as compared to gross
loss of approximately HK$3 million recognized in the year of
2017.

Basic loss per share for the year amounted to approximately
7.36 HK cents (2017: 49.15 HK cents). Net liability of the Group
were approximately HK$163,352,000 (2017: HK$110,445,000).
The net liability was attributable to the loss of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s deficiency attributable
to the owners of the Company amounted to HK$117.3 million
(2017: HK$69.0 million), representing an increase in deficiency
of HK$48.3 million. The deficiency per share attributable to
the owners of the Company as at 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$0.17 (31 December 2017: HK$0.10).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL

During the year, the Group has disposed the entire equity
interest in Jimei Entertainment Overseas Development Limited
and Sino Green Energy International Co., Limited. Details can be
referred to the announcement of Company dated 17 December
2018.

Except as disclosed above, there is no material acquisition and
disposal conducted by the Group during the year that should be
notified to the shareholders of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB R 53 HT

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Media and Culture

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
continued to develop its media and culture business. The
Group’s revenue amounted to HK$55.4 million (2017: HK$NIL),
with a gross profit of HK$37.2 million (2017: HK$NIL).

Up to 31 December 2018, the Group has the following
investment in movies and TV series, as well as projects
incubating by directors.

Investment in Movies and TV Series

The movie “Marshall”, which was obtained by the Group through
acquisition, is internationally distributed by Sony Pictures
Worldwide Acquisitions Inc., and distributed by Open Road
Films, LLC in North America. The movie is produced by Paula
Wagner, an experienced Hollywood producer, and starring
Chadwick Boseman, the leading actor of “Black Panther”, and
Sterling K. Brown, an Emmy Award winner and the leading
actor of “This Is Us”. The movie was nominated for Oscar
Best Original Song (theme song: Stand Up For Something)
and received Top Ten Films of African American Film Critics
Association Awards, Audience Choice Award of Chicago
International Film Festival, Annual Song Award of Hollywood
Film Awards, Best Original Song Award of Annual Satellite
Awards as well as 18 other internationally renowned awards
nominations. The Group arranged the investment in the epic
drama film “Midway”, directed by the well-known director Roland
Emmerich (who has entered into an agreement with the Group),
produced by Mark Gordon and starring Woody Harrelson,
Mandy Moore and Luke Evans. It started principal photography
in 2018 and is expected to be released in 2019. In terms of
distribution, Summit Entertainment, LLC is responsible for the
U.S., Bona Film Group is responsible for the Greater China area
and Accelerate Global Content, LLC is responsible for overseas
sales. The Deadline Magazine has provided extensive coverage
in this regard and the commentary described the movie as “one
of the biggest movies on-sale at Cannes”. To date, excluding the
Greater China area, overseas pre-sales has exceeded US$30
million. The movie is also the first World War |l film of Roland
Emmerich. It is adapted from the true stories of the Battle of
Midway and tells rarely known stories of war heroes. The total
budget is approximately US$100 million.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The movie “Crazy Rich Asians”, which is invested and released
by Warner Bros. Pictures, co-invested by the Group and directed
by director Jon M. Chu (who has entered into an agreement
with the Group), is released in August 2018. The fim is adapted
from a best-selling novel written by Kevin Kwan under the
same title, which has a solid reader base. The movie stars
Constance Wu, Henry Golding, Michelle Yeoh, and etc. The
highly anticipated movie is the first major film that is not a period
piece in Hollywood in two and a half decades to feature an all
ethnically Asian cast. It will also subvert Asian stereotype. Since
the trailer was rolled out, it has been viewed by tens of millions of
times. As the first adapted work of the novel series, there is also
expectation for it to develop into commercially successful film
series where the stories of the two sequels mainly take place in
China. To date, according to box office mojo, its worldwide gross
is $238,532,921.

The thriller/crime film “The Widow”, which is directed by
Neil Jordan who won the Academy Award for Best Original
Screenplay and starring French actress Isabelle Huppert who
has been nominated for the Academy Award for Best Actress,
is now in post-production. Currently, international sales of the
movie are undertaken by veteran sales agency Sierra/Affinity.
To date, international sales is anticipated to be US$9.5 million.
The movie premieres at the Toronto International Film Festival in
September 2018 and is released in March 2019.

The historical period TV series “Empress” invested and
produced by the Group is set to be developed for 10 seasons
with 10 to 12 episodes in each season. As the first English-
language TV series narrating the legendary story of Wu Zetian,
the project is intended to invite directors such as James Wan,
Robert Zemeckis, Jon M. Chu and Roland Emmerich to be the
directors for the pilot. Meanwhile, negotiation on the possibility of
establishing a movie studio in Shaanxi for the “Empress” project
with Shaanxi Broadcast and Television Group (BX7EEE£E )
is currently ongoing. The movie of the same name is also in the
process of filming.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Projects Incubating by Directors

With the commitment in further diversifying and enhancing
the entertainment business of the Group so as to broaden the
income sources, the Group has engaged 11 film directors,
namely James Wan, Roland Emmerich, Jon M. Chu, Bryan
Singer, Robert Zemeckis, Alan Taylor, Jonathan Liebesman, F.
Gary Gray, Sylvester Stallone, Nattawut Poonpiriya and Sam
Raimi in relation to the development and production of motion
picture projects, which enable the Group to tap into the business
of film production and distribution. Reference may be made to
the Company’s announcement dated 22 July 2018 for details of
the profile of some of the film directors and the projects under
development.

Trading of Chemical Products, and Energy
Conservation and Environmental Protection
Products

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue
generated from the Group’s trading of chemical products, and
energy conservation and environmental protection products
business amounted to HK$17.7 million (2017: HK$30.9 million),
with a gross profit of HK$530,000 (2017: HK$870,000).

Entertainment and Gaming

For the year ended 31 December 2018, under the tightened
credit control policy of the Group, the revenue generated from
the Group’s entertainment and gaming business amounted
to HK$394,000 (2017: HK$9.1 million), with a gross profit of
HK$290,000 (2017: gross loss of HK$3.9 million).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s deficiency attributable
to its owners was approximately HK$117,290,000 (2017:
HK$68,990,000).
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operation by internally
generated cash flow, short term loans, and through issuance of
promissory notes and convertible bonds.

Prudent financial management and selective investment criteria
have enabled the Group to maintain a stable financial position.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank balances and
cash amounted to approximately HK$26,907,000 (2017:
HK$96,647,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the current ratio was approximately
0.88 (2017: approximately 0.56) based on current assets of
approximately HK$435,811,000 (2017: HK$253,473,000) and
current liabilities of approximately HK$494,820,000 (2017:
HK$451,314,000).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN
EXCHANGE RATES

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and business transactions
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, Australian
dollars and U.S. dollars which have been relatively stable
during the year. The Group was not exposed to material foreign
exchange risk and has not employed any financial instruments
for hedging purposes.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group employed 35 (2017: 57) employees as at 31
December 2018. The Group’s remuneration policies are primarily
based on prevailing market salary levels and the performance of
the respective companies and individuals concerned. Employees
may also be invited to participate in the share option scheme of
the Group.
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088 (ZEZ—+F:40.56) W IRARBEELD
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CONTINGENT LIABILITY

On 14 September 2017, the Company entered into share
purchase agreement with a related party, controlled by the
then director and controlling shareholder of the Company for
the acquisition of entire equity interest of Starlight Legend
Investment Limited and its subsidiaries. According to the
share purchase agreement, agreed payment is a contingent
consideration that will be realised if the acquired business
and the existing projects achieve their respective profit
target, calculated on certain predetermined basis, during the
designated period of time. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the contingent consideration payable is nil (2017:
HK$1,563,000).

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant
contingent liability as at 31 December 2018.

MAJOR CORPORATE EVENT

Side Letter Regarding A Major Acquisition and
Connected Transaction

Reference is made to the Company’s 2017 annual report’s
section “Event After The Reporting Period”, and details can
also be referred to the Company’s announcement — UPDATE
ON MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN RELATION
TO ACQUISITION OF THE ENTIRE EQUITY INTEREST IN
STARLIGHT LEGEND INVESTMENT LIMITED dated 29 March
2018.

On 29 March 2018, the Vendor entered into a side letter (the
“Side Letter”) with the Company, pursuant to which the Vendor
has irrevocably and unconditionally agreed and undertaken to
the Company the following:

()  The Vendor and the Company shall jointly appoint an
independent valuer, to conduct a valuation of the Target
Group as at 31 December 2018 (the “Updated Valuation”).
The determination by the independent valuer shall be final
and binding on the Vendor and the Company.

(i) If the Updated Valuation is less than US$25,000,000, the
Vendor irrevocably, unconditionally, and absolutely agrees
to waive and forgo the principal amount of the Promissory
Note payable by the Company under the Promissory Note
to the extent of an amount equal to the difference between
the Updated Valuation and US$25,000,000 (the “Waiver”).

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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(ii) The due date of the Promissory Note shall be extended
until 12 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other major event during
the year that should be notified to the shareholders of the
Company.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period has been disclosed in
note 46 to financial Statements of page 254 of this report.

Other than disclosed above, there is no major event after the
reporting period that should be notified to the shareholders of
the Company.

THE IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON GOODWILL
OF HK$54,800,000 (“IMPAIRMENT”)
AND THE INDEPENDENT VALUATION
OF STARLIGHT LEGEND INVESTMENT
LIMITED (“TARGET GROUP”) AS AT 31
DECEMBER 2018

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies and HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets, a cash-generating unit (‘CGU”") to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its amount with its recoverable amount,
and whenever there is an indication that the CGU may be
impaired.

The Company engaged an international accounting firm
(“Independent Valuer”), to provide service to the Company to
assess the Target Group’s valuation (‘2018 Valuation”) as at 31
December 2018. The 2018 Valuation, which was prepared for
the purpose of impairment testing in accordance with HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets, comprised the valuation of the Target
Group’s existing and potential projects on their estimated future
cash flows or net asset values (as the case may be) assessed
individually.

The table below sets out the valuation method, the details of the
value of inputs used and assumptions for the 2018 Valuation
used for performing the assessment of the Impairment as well
as those used in the valuation of the Target Group as at 31
December 2017 (“2017 Valuation”) for reference:
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The valuation method of the 2018 Valuation and 2017 Valuation
was adopted to comply with the Group’s accounting policies
and HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

Date of valuation

fE{ER#

31 December 2018
—E-\§+=-A=+-H

RETAEEZ @ BRREBER G EREIHRE
ERE BF
ZAGET A

R T )\ FHEEM-_ZT-LEFMRHE

31 December 2017
—E¥-t§+-A=+-H

Valuation methodology

@R

Subject
B

Projection period (Note 1)

TR ()

Present value of future
cash flows (A) (Note 2)
ARBFRZHAGEEQ) (M)

Excess net assets (liabilities) (B)
(Note 3)

M EEFE (BRFE) B)
CER)

Valuation amount (A+B) (rounded)

EESH(A+B) (E#E)

Discount rate (Note 4)

RE (f4)

Summary of major assumptions
for (A)

(AZERREAME

Income approach - discounted cash flow method (for A) and excess net
asset/liability value (for B)

WAE-

FRASREE (BRA) RARAEFE/BEFE (ANB)

Target Group (i.e. Starlight Legend Investment Limited and its subsidiaries)
B 124 @ (EIStarlight Legend Investment Limited & K Hit B A 7))

2019 to 2025
“E-NFE-Z-RF

Present value

of future

cash flows

KRR

wEZ

Projects IEH REHEE
Crazy Rich Asians (REEMER) US$9,758,000% 1T
Greta (BE%) US$630,000% 7T
Empress (FEZE) US$1,161,000% T
Total @t US$11,549,000% 7T

(US$4,031,000)

(4,031,000%7T)

US$7,500,000
7,500,000% 7

18% - 25%

Only those movies/TV projects which are concretely committed
by the Target Group or after post production stage are
considered in the projection. Therefore, revenue was estimated
based on the actual/expected total box office amount for three
movie/TV projects namely: Empress, Greta (The Widow), and
Crazy Rich Asians, whilst Mass Extinction was not included.
Marshall was not included in the project as it was expected to
have no future cash inflow to the Company. China Death Squad
would not be produced in future and was impaired.
EREZEEEEEARAEINEBRERRECZZEY/
BRER Bt WaEHE= B,/ EREE (FELE)
(BEE) (CGER) ) R (RETNER) (KL FBHE (KA
B) )ER /B EREEmA AR EHTEARR AT
RARRSTA - BT E A (F8F) - (China Death
Squad) RRMFERARE BEEHRE:

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Income approach - discounted cash flow method (for A) and excess net
asset/liability value (for B)

WAE-

FRESREE (BRA) RERAEFE/ABFE (ANB)

Target Group (i.e. Starlight Legend Investment Limited and its subsidiaries)
B 248 (B Starlight Legend Investment Limited & £ M B2 &)

2018 to 2022
- \FEZT-CF

Present value
of future
cash flows
REEE
HEZ
Projects EH REHEE
Crazy Rich Asians ~ (BETHES) Combined 24
Greta (BEE) Combined B4 #
Empress (hEZE) Combined &4 4
Marshall (HER) Combined &4 4
Total st US$10,343,0005 7T
US$6,400,000
6,400,000% T
US$16,400,000
16,400,000% 7
27%

Only those movies/TV projects which are concretely committed
by the Target Group or after post production stage are considered
in the projection. Therefore, revenue was estimated based on
the actual/expected total box office amount for four movie/TV
projects namely: Marshall, Empress, Greta (The Widow), and
Crazy Rich Asians, whilst Mass Extinction and China Death
Squad were not included.

BABZEEREEARAEINERRERRECZEEY

ERER Al K= HENETY /SREE (58HE)
(FEL2) (BBE) (CER) )R (RATHES) (L
B3 (KAEB) & (China Death Squad) ) 2 B/ ERE
EEME
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31 December 2018
—%¥-)\$¥+-fA=+-H

BIRETTTR R T

31 December 2017
—¥—tE#+-A=+-H

Total box office revenue was adopted or forecasted by the
management with reference to the historical box office revenue
to production cost ratio of similar project types available from
public resources such as IMDb, etc. In general, contracted
movie distributors usually recognize and pays back the movie
production company by periodical instalment based on the box
office income. Expected box office revenue was netted with
movie distribution fee as well as shared portion with theatres to
arrive at net revenue.
FRARRTHEREL2ZRRFAERIOR (FITIMDLSE) 7]
BZEUEERE BAER Ra BEER AL EMRARE
E%*&WE"AWE% TERRREFUARIREHmE
%W PHEF - -EARRURENREYETEURE
EZ%\M R FE

Operating expenses includes sales and marketing expense and
general administrative expenses. Budgeted by the management,
with possible increase in traveling frequency, employee
headcount, consultancy fee, inflation, etc., operating expenses
in 2019 for all projects was estimated to be approximately USD
2.7 million. As operating expenses was allocated to projects in
future forecasted period and it was assumed that the number
of on-going projects directly relates to the amount of operating
expenses, the operating expenses was estimated to increase
2.5% year-on-year but would drop when the number of on-going
projects drops in the forecasted period.
BERYREHERTHRERXR—RTEREX - BEREF
mZﬁ;~$E§Mﬁ$~EIA% AR BRE2TRE

ﬁ:?fnﬁﬁﬁﬁazmﬁﬁﬁmﬁwmomimo
EF@ CAXEAREARFAPE AL ERFETHE
Eﬁ%@ﬁ%%%i%@ﬁ&ﬁ% HE SR b B RFE
Re5% HERAAMETTEANHARIE LERAIE
&TH-

Working capital requirement for the movie/TV projects was

estimated based on the change in advance receipt and change

in inventory/receivables derived from the management’s

forecasted cashflow

E% BREAZE ENRERECRARSREM
ﬁZﬁWéﬁz“§&ff/%Wmﬁzx@ﬁﬁﬁ

Standard income tax rate of 21% in the United States was
applied in the calculation.
BRI EREREE 2 BEMEHE21% -

The financial projections were prepared by the management with
due care and consideration reflecting the reasonable estimate of
future relevant events.

HBRADHERESZHZRAMGH ARMBRIEBSE!
pA=SEHE

Total box office revenue was adopted or forecasted by the
management with reference to the historical box office revenue
to production cost ratio of similar project types available from
public resources such as IMDb, etc. In general, contracted
movie distributors usually recognize and pays back the movie
production company by periodical instalment based on the box
office income. Expected box office revenue was netted with movie
distribution fee as well as shared portion with theatres to arrive at
net revenue.

SERNETDMERE2ZHNAHEHIR (HIMIMDbE) B5
ZELIERRE 2 BERRE Y BEHER AR L R MR R -
—RbE ANEYETERERRERUARR &E%HE%
ﬁ“ﬁ%%kw A REUEENREFETEARES R
BB NG H K& TR

Operating expenses includes sales and marketing expense and
general administrative expenses. Budgeted by the management,
with possible increase in traveling frequency, employee
headcount, consultancy fee, inflation, etc., operating expenses in
2018 was estimated to be approximately USD 6 million. Operating
expenses in future forecasted period was estimated to encounter
10% year-on-year increment.

LAY DEHERMSEERI R—RARMAY - EERERE
H2BE BRAZRAR BEIAY #HAE BRS 2T
0 EE =T — N 2 &R 456,000,000 7T « K KT
Mz EERZ b BRFERI0%

Working capital requirement for the movie/TV projects was
estimated based on the change in advance receipt and change in
inventory/receivables derived from the management’s forecasted
cashflow.
BY/ EREAVEEECTRENRERB RARSREN
BHzERSEZEDREFE REFIEZ ED M-

Standard income tax rate of 21% in the United States was
applied in the calculation.

ERGHEREAXEZBERGHE21% -

The financial projections were prepared by the management with
due care and consideration reflecting the reasonable estimate of
future relevant events.

HBEADRERELABRRZERMAR ARRARIEEFEZ
AEfEEe
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Date of valuation

fE{E B &

31 December 2018
—%¥-\$+-A=+-H

31 December 2017
—¥—tE#+-A=+-H

Further details of excess
assets/liabilities (Note 3)
RGBEE/BRZE-SHE

(Hi##3)

. There will be no major changes in the existing political, legal,
fiscal and economic conditions in countries in which the
Company will carry on its business.

. ARAMETZEBAE AR ARBS AR BB REHE
MRS LREREE -

. There will be no major changes in the current taxation law in
countries in which the Company operates.

. AREBEREZBR 2 BBRERTEEREY -

. Future exchange rates and interest rates will not differ materially
from those prevailing market expectations.
. AREXRAEERTTSRAERLEEAD -

. The availability of finance will not be a constraint on the future
growth of the Company’s operation.
. MEZTRUBTEHARRAEBLARERERRBH

o The Company will retain and have competent management, key
personnel, and technical staff to support its ongoing operation.

. ARRMBERERES M ERE TEABRBAR
USEHESE -l

. Industry trends and market conditions for related industries will
not deviate significantly from economic forecast.

. ERTEZAEBZ RTSHAETE REERABER
5l

Excess Assets - These mainly include certain early development costs of
remote movie project (projects Mass Extinction), pre-investment payments
to a contracted film director and cash.

HHAE-FTEORERBMEYEE ((KAR) ) ZETREHRERA.
AANBYERIAZREMAFRRE

Excess Liabilities - These mainly include certain debts and non-operating
net liabilities.
EREE-TEREETERRFERLAETE-

° There will be no major changes in the existing political, legal, fiscal
and economic conditions in countries in which the Company will
carry on its business.

. N 1L172¥f§?ﬁ&2.%2fﬁﬁtﬂlm EE RBREE
MR L EERLE)

° There will be no major changes in the current taxation law in
countries in which the Company operates.

. ARBBEREZARBBRERTEERE

. Future exchange rates and interest rates will not differ materially
from those prevailing market expectations.
. AREXRAXERTHSRAESLEERDF-

o The availability of finance will not be a constraint on the future
growth of the Company’s operation.

. BEZAAERTEUARREB ARG REKBH

o The Company will retain and have competent management, key
personnel, and technical staff to support its ongoing operation.

. ARRIEREREAAT G EBE YA RBIMABME
BHEBREE

o Industry trends and market conditions for related industries will
not deviate significantly from economic forecast.
. EROEZTEBZ RTSHAB T B ERAEERES

These mainly include certain early development costs of remote movie
projects (projects Mass Extinction and China Death Squad) and pre-
investment payments to a contracted film director.
HEIE@EEMEYER ( (KAB) & (China Death Squad) BE)Z
ETRHRERARMANEFEELN 2 REFIH-

Notes: B 5
1. In 2017 Valuation, there was a cut-off at the end of 5th year of the 1.
forecast period.
In 2018 Valuation, there was no such cut-off and hence 2018
Valuation covered a period of 7 years during which the projects
were estimated to recognise revenue for the Target Group.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited

Annual Report 2018
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2. In 2017 Valuation, since the discount rate for all projects was the
same, there was no assignment of operating expenses and the
net income of all projects was aggregated and its present value
was arrived at after discounted by one discount rate.

In 2018 Valuation, the Independent Valuer adopted different
discount rates for the three projects which were in different
stages, and as such operating expenses were assigned to each
project and a present value of each project was arrived at after
discounting by their respective discount rates.

3. In 2017 Valuation, certain debts and liabilities were included in
working capital of the projects and were finally reflected in the
present value of future cash flows.

In 2018 Valuation, certain debts and liabilities were reflected in the
excess net assets/liabilities.

4, In 2017 Valuation, a blended discount rate of 27% was used for all
projects by valuer.

In 2018 Valuation, discount rates of 18-25% were used for the
three projects as the Independent Valuer considered that the three
projects were in different stages and had different risk profiles as
at 31 December 2018.

Impairment losses on film prepayments,

film investments and film product totalling
approximately HK$29.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 (the “Film Impairments”)

The Film Impairments were assessed by the Company internally
by comparing the recoverable amounts of film prepayments, film
investments and film product to its book values.

The recoverable amounts of film prepayments, film investments
and film product were estimated from the discounted projected
future cash flow of the relevant assets.

BIRETTTR R T

2. RIE—tFMHET ARMERBENFTERER"
HutirED iEE e AESMAEERRB Z W F
BARE R RFRRGHERE-

R — N\FEEF B EEMR = EER TR
BMEBEERATRMONTER ABBEERZES
EZ5EE A WiREEaNIREFIREZEETEE
BZHE-

3. RIT—+tHFEHEP ETEKERBEEFAEREZ
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B/ BEEE R

4. RIT—LFMHED HEMSEMEEBRB27%Z
BE = ?)'/FIET °
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EEELGHRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with an aim to protect the
interest of shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
including those revised code provisions which became effective
on 1 April 2012, 1 September 2013, 1 January 2016 and 1
January 2019. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company complied with all applicable provisions of the Code
for their respective applicable periods except for the deviations
stated below:

CODE PROVISION A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of the shareholders. Due to other pre-arranged
commitments, three of the independent non-executive directors
and one non-executive director were unable to attend the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 29 June 2018.

CODE PROVISION E.1.2

Under code provision E.1.2, chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. Due to other pre-arranged
commitments, the then chairman of the Board was unable to
attend the Company’s annual general meeting held on 29 June
2018.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s business strategic
decisions and performances.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised six Executive
Directors, Mr. Gao Qun (Chairman), Mr. Chau Chit (Deputy
Chairman), Mr. Luo Lei (Chief Executive Officer), Ms. Chen Hong,
Mr. Hung Ching Fung and Mr. Li Haitian; one Non-executive
Director, Mr. Wang Shoulei, and four Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Wong Wai Kwan, Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak, Mr.
Kong Chi Mo and Mr. Hong Tao.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
persons with academic and professional qualifications in the
fields of accounting and appropriate expertise. They provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board. Each Independent Non-executive
Director gives an annual confirmation of his independence to
the Company and the Company considers these directors to be
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Details of Directors’ attendance records during the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out below:
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Meetings Attended/Held
EERY/ BRERRY
Anti-money Investment
Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration Executive  Laundering Credit Steering
Directors i3 AGM Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
RitEs# hegs
RFEEXE E5E8 EGESE  REZEE  FWERE  4f7E8E 388 [(HE8E %88
Executive Directors arEs
Mr. Hung Ching Fung HEEEL 1 12118 00
Mr. Chau Chit AEiE 1 1718 22 00
Mr. Yan Xu (retired on 29 June 2018) Egﬂﬂf*i i
T-\§RAZTABER) 0A 58 00 0/0 00
Ms. Chen Hong Wﬁ(f on 17/18 000 00 000 00
Mr. Luo Lei BERE 0A 14/18 00
Mr. Li Hattian TRRRE on 15/18 000 00 000 00
Mr. Gao Qun (appointed on 5 October 2018) BELE
(RZE-\E+ARAEZf) 00 23
Non-executive Directors FATES
Mr. Wang Shoulei IFERE 01 5/18
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFATES
Mr. Wong Wai Kwwan IRERE 01 18/18 565 0 22 000 00
. Michee Ngai Ming Tak B o 13/18 45 10 10 00
Mr. Kong Chi Mo IBRE n 16/18 5/5 22 00 00
M. Hong Tao R o 1418 55 n 00 00
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Apart from the above regular board meetings of the year, the
board of Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. The Directors
receive details of agenda items for decision and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of each board meeting. The
board of Directors has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
Directors’ appointment, succession planning, risk management,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other
significant operational and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the board of Directors
to the management include the preparation of annual and interim
accounts for board approval before public reporting, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the board
of Directors, implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with
relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors of the Company including Independent
Non-executive Directors, are appointed for terms of one year or
three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting pursuant
to the Bye-laws of the Company.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, Directors appointed to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next following general
meeting and can be eligible for re-appointment at that time.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are continually encouraged to update themselves
with legal and regulatory developments, and the business
and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities.

All Directors are requested to provide the Company with their
respective training records pursuant to the Code.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018

BREALREEe TR EFBRNEARE
EERFEHEEFEEEZIREZHMBERTETE
FZEBEENEBREEERRNNGHERERE 2B
MERERZECGERCH EFERBEADE
RE 2FRPHEE EFRE EEE AR
B BERUE HEREARS UREMBERE
ERMBEEZRRIERE -EFERAEEERF

SERMZIBZCEXFEREREEF RPHE
BUARAHBERHREFTERE ATEFTSRMN
ZEBREE RS BTRD 2 WERE IR H] R K E
REREF ARESTHBEAGIRE - RRRARG -

EEREEES

ARRZIFNTESR (BRBULIFNTES)A—F
H=FTHEZR T HIHIN 2REFARBEARFZ
AAAAREREFAE LHERELEEET-

RBEARRZARAL BEEAEHBRE =R
EEZAHMETERRAGRL MERKANEE
REREL

EEZHEERER

ARBFEZREST THEF 2LV MEEER
B LmnEe MMUERSETEEE

REZTA 2RBEFTHARNARTHERAKRESE
Z B AR o



F!

Corporate Governance Report

During the year, the Directors have confirmed their participation
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by
ways of attending seminars or self-reading.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 28 March 2012,
[t comprises two Independent Non-executive Directors, and is
currently chaired by Mr. Chau Chit.

Its primary objectives include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board under diversified perspectives set out
in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy which aims to
set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity of
Directors, in terms of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise,
culture, independence, age and gender appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Under the code provision B.1.1, the Company should establish
a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authority and duties. The roles and functions of the
Remuneration Committee include the determination of the
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, such as any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, and make recommendations to the board of the
remuneration of non-executive Directors.

As at the date of this report, members of the Remuneration
Committee included:

Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak
Mr. Wong Wai Kwan

Mr. Kong Chi Mo

Mr. Hong Tao

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held in
2018 to discuss remuneration related matters.

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed
the existing terms of employment contracts of the executive
Directors and appointment letters of the non-executive
Directors with reference to the factors including salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Company and desirability of performance-based remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee considers that the existing
terms of employment contracts of the executive Directors and
appointment letters of the non-executive Directors are fair and
reasonable. Details of the emolument policy of the Directors are
set out on page 72 of this report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company’s external auditors are Ernst & Young (the
“Auditors”). The audit committee of the Group (the “Audit
Committee”) is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit functions
performed by the external auditors, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse
effect on the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Auditors have performed audit service and their remuneration in
respect of audit service is HK$810,000.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As required by Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and duties. Its principal
duties are to review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems. As
at the date of this report, members of the Audit Committee
included:

Mr. Wong Wai Kwan

Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak
Mr. Kong Chi Mo

Mr. Hong Tao

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year ended
31 December 2018.

The Audit Committee has discussed with the Auditors on the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
the consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018, and is of the opinion that the preparation of
the consolidated results complied with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

The Audit Committee considered that the existing terms in
relation to the appointment of the Group’s external auditors are
fair and reasonable.
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ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING
COMMITTEE

An Anti-money Laundering Committee was established on 12
February 2015. At the date of this report, members composed
of four Executive Director and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Company’s anti-money laundering policy and procedures and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board, monitoring the implementation and compliance with
the Company’s standard operation procedures for anti-money
laundering and reviewing such policy, as appropriate, and
making recommendations on any revisions that may be required
to the Board.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

An Executive Committee was established on 13 April 2018. At
the date of this report, members composed of four Executive
Directors. The Committee is responsible for monitoring the day-
to-day operation of the Company and any of the Company’s
subsidiaries (“Subsidiary”) from time to time and should be
reported to the Board.

CREDIT COMMITTEE

A Credit Committee was established on 12 February 2015. At
the date of this report, members composed of three Executive
Directors. The Committee is responsible for reviewing of the
Company’s process and policies on credit approval and recovery
and making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board, monitoring the implementation and compliance with the
Company’s standard operation procedures for credit approval
and recovery and reviewing such policy, as appropriate, and
making recommendations on any revisions that may be required
to the Board.
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INVESTMENT STEERING COMMITTEE

An Investment Steering Committee was established in June
2010. At the date of this report, members composed of
three Executive Director and four Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Committee is responsible for the consideration,
recommendation of potential investment projects. Ad-hoc
meetings will be held when potential projects are identified.
During the meeting, they will review individual project’s position
and action to be taken if necessary, and to recommend to the
board for consideration and approval.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the
responsibilities of the Auditors to the shareholders of the
Company are set out on pages 79 to 82 of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate
risk management and internal control system and for reviewing
its effectiveness on an annual basis, in respect of controls on
financial, operational, compliance and risk management, to
safeguard shareholders’ interest and the Group’s assets.

The risk management and internal control system are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance. The system
aims to eliminate, or otherwise manage, risks of failure in
achieving the Company’s objectives.
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Main features of the risk management and
internal control system

The objectives of the risk management and internal control
framework of the Group include:

to enhance corporate governance standards;

° to continuously establish and improve the company-wide
and top-down approach risk management and internal
control system;

° to strengthen the Group’s risk management and internal
control in compliance with the Main Board Listing Rules
requirements; and

° to address on-going changes and challenges and reduce
uncertainties.

Three-Line defense risk management model

The Group has used a three-line defense risk management
model to identify, assess, mitigate and manage risks. At the
first line of defense, operational departments are responsible for
identifying, assessing and monitoring risks associated with each
business. The management, as the second line of defense, sets
out policies and procedures, defines management structure, and
provide guidance on risk management. It ensures that risks are
within the acceptable range and that the first line of defense is
effective. As the third line of defense, the Audit Committee, with
the assistance of the Group’s internal audit department, ensures
that the first and second lines of defense are effective through
on-going assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control system.
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Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant Risks
The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Identification

° Identifies risks that may affect the Group’s businesses.

Assessment

° Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
baseline developed by the management; and

° Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Responding

° Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

° Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Monitoring and Reporting

° Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place; and

° Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management
and the Board regularly.

With the assistance of the Group’s internal audit department for
implementation of risk management framework, management
promptly identifies risks, evaluates the likelihood and impact of
risks, assesses the adequacy of action plans to manage these
risks and monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the actions
plans. A risk register is prepared to summarise the identified key
risks, the assessment of risk and related risk mitigating actions
and tabled for discussion by the Audit Committee, and for
reporting to the Board through the Audit Committee members.
The risk register summary facilitates the Board in reviewing the
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, the Group’s
ability to respond to changes in its business and the external
environment, as well the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing risk monitoring and related mitigating internal control
measures.
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Internal Control

The Group's internal audit function is performed by an internal
audit team. The team plays an important part in the assessment
of the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group
and reports directly to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.
The team conducts internal audit reviews on material controls
and compliance with policies and procedures of the Group.
Plans and tools for corrective actions and control improvement
are identified and communicated with operations management
to address any issues or deficiencies identified. The team
monitors the implementation of remediation plans and actions
by the operations management and reports the outcome to the
Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board
conducted a review of the Group’s system of internal control
to ensure the effective and adequate risk management and
internal control system and convened meetings regularly to
discuss financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

Based on the foregoing, the Group concludes that the
Group’s risk management and internal control system, as
well as resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, is adequate and effective.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Audit Committee also ensures that proper whistleblowing
policy is in place so that employees can report any concerns,
including misconduct, impropriety or fraud in financial reporting
matters and accounting practices, in confidence and without
fear of recrimination, for a fair and independent investigation
and the appropriate follow-up action. Employees can report
these concerns to either the Group internal audit department
or chairman of the Audit Committee. The identity of the
whistleblower will be treated with the strictest confidence.

In 2018, no incidents of fraud or misconduct were reported
from employees, Shareholders or stakeholders that had a
material effect on the Company’s financial statements or overall
operations.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board ensures the inside information is kept strictly
confidential until the relevant announcement is made. The
Directors are not aware of any significant areas which need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Cheung has
received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
to refresh his skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings can send a written request to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company to request a Special General Meeting
(“SGM”).

The written request should be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 1203, 12/F,
118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

The written request must state the resolution(s), accompanied by
a statement of the matters referred in the proposed resolution(s)
and signed by the shareholder(s) concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company will convene a SGM within twenty-one (21) days of
the deposit of the request. The actual SGM shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of the written request.

Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meeting

The procedures for shareholder(s) to put forward proposals at
SGM include a written notice of those proposals being submitted
by the shareholder(s) of the Company, addressed to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 1203, 12/F., 118
Connaught Road West, Hong Kong.
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Procedures for nomination of Directors for
election

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website at
www.starlightcul.com.hk.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in general meeting
may from time to time declare dividends in any currency to be
paid to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
but no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount
recommended by the board of directors of the Company (the
“‘Board”) and the Board may from time to time pay to the
Shareholders such interim dividends as appear to the Board to
be justified by the profits of the Company, in accordance with
the provision of the memorandum of association and Bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) and the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended from time to time) (the “Companies
Act’).

In accordance with the applicable requirements of the Bye-
Laws and the Companies Act, the Company shall not declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of profits available for
distribution if:

(@ it would render the Company unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(o) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby become less than its liabilities.

In addition to cash, dividends may be distributed in the form of
shares. The Board may further resolve that such dividend be
satisfied wholly or in part by the distribution of specific assets
of any kind and in particular of paid up shares, debentures or
warrants to subscribe securities of the Company or any other
company, or in any one or more of such ways, and where any
difficulty arises in regard to the distribution the Board may settle
the same as it thinks expedient.
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In respect of any dividend that the Board or the Company in
general meeting has resolved that such to be paid or declared
on any class of the share capital of the Company, the Board may
further resolve either:

(@)

that such dividend be satisfied wholly or in part in the form
of an allotment of shares credited as fully paid up, provided
that the Shareholders entitled thereto will be entitled to
elect to receive such dividend (or part thereof if the Board
so determines) in cash in lieu of such allotment; or

that the Shareholders entitled to such dividend shall be
entitled to elect to receive an allotment of shares credited
as fully paid up in lieu of the whole or such part of the
dividend as the Board may think fit.

The declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Board, which will take into account, inter alia, the following
factors when considering the payment or declaration of
dividends:

(@)

the Group’s actual and expected operations, financial
performance and conditions and liquidity position;

the Shareholder’s interests;

the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group’s lenders;

the Group’s expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;

statutory and regulatory restrictions;
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EEELGHRSE

(90 general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have any impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Company; and

(h)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management
with a sustainable dividend policy. The Board will continue to
review the dividend policy and reserve the right in its sole and
absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the dividend
policy from time to time, and the dividend policy shall in no way
constitute an assurance or a legally binding commitment by
the Company in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend in any particular
amount for any given period.

AMENDMENT TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no
significant changes to the Company’s constitutional document.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders
through the Company’s annual report and financial statements,
the interim report, as well as the AGM. The AGM allows the
Directors to meet and communicate with shareholders.

To further promote effective communication, the corporate
website is maintained to disseminate Company announcements
and other relevant financial and non-financial information
electronically on a timely basis.
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Environmental, Social

The Company is of the view that sound environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) performance is important to the
sustainable development of its business and community, and
hence is committed to promoting environmental protection,
social responsibility and effective corporate governance.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s ESG strategy and
reporting. The Group has engaged the management and
employees across all functions in order to identify relevant ESG
issues and to assess their materiality to the Group’s business as
well as the Company’s stakeholders stipulated below, through
reviewing our operations and internal discussions. Disclosures
relating to the material ESG issues identified have been included
in this ESG Report pursuant to the requirements of Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules (the “ESG Guide”).

STAKEHOLDER
Stakeholders Expectations and concerns
& HASE R A E
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R - HEREGRSE

Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Communication Channels
& HASE R A E BERE
Customers — Customer relationship — Face-to-face meetings and on-site
=P - BFHAR visits

- Protect the rights of customers — MYmERELEHFES

— REEFER
Suppliers - Fair and open procurement — Suppliers’ satisfactory assessment
HEm — RFRFORE — BRI E R

—  Win-win cooperation

- BRAF

— Face-to-face meetings and on-site
visits

— EHEERLEWED

General public — Involvement in communities — Organization of community activities

NRAT — (EmsH

— Business compliance

- XBaM

— EBtEED

— Environmental protection

awareness
- RREM

The table below shows the ESG issues which were determined
to be material to the Group, together with the aspects on the
ESG Guide to which they relate, based on the assessment
performed by the Group. This ESG Report mainly covers the
policies, initiatives and performance of the Group’s business in
relation to these issues, for the year ended 31 December 2018
(the “Reporting Period”):

ESG aspects as set forth in ESG Guide
RIE-HERERIESIAHRE - HERESER

TRIVRBRBAREETZEMETE 2 HANKE
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Material ESG issues for the Group

HAKEMEBEXZIRE HEREGHE

A. Environmental
BB

A1 Emissions

R

A2  Use of resources

BIREA

A3  The environment and natural resources
RIERRAEIR
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ESG aspects as set forth in ESG Guide

IRIR

R - HERELGHRE

Material ESG issues for the Group

HAKEMEBEAZIRE HERELGHE

B.

Note:

CHEREQIESIFHRE HEREQRER
Social
e

B1  Employment
&%

B2 Health and safety
fEREZ 2

B3 Development and training
R R

B4  Labour standards
5 ITRA

B5  Supply chain management
HrERERE

B6  Product responsibility
FEmEE

B7  Anti-corruption
RES

B8 Community investment
HERE

Since the Group is principally engaged in entertainment and
gaming business, trading business and media and culture, no
substantial amounts of packaging materials were used in the
Reporting Period. Therefore, disclosures relating to this aspect, as
set forth in the ESG Guide, is not applicable to the Group and so
has not been made.

Labour practices
BTEHR

Workplace health and safety
THESMRiERERZ S

Employee development and training
g B3R KIEI

Anti-child and forced Labour
REIRESIST

Supplier management
HEmER

Product quality

EmEE

Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering
RERRREEE

Community programs
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The operation of the Group has limited impact on
the environment. The main business of the Group is
entertainment and gaming, media and culture, and trading,
which is not the main cause of environmental pollution.
Moreover, the business of the Group does not involve
industrial activities and thus the total amount of emission,
resources used and waste produced is low.

However, the Group understands that it is the responsibility
of all corporations to ensure that emission of pollutants
and consumption of resources are minimized and carbon
footprints are reduced. For such purpose, the Group has
identified the following goals to reduce consumption of
resources:

Goals

- Reducing emission of carbon dioxide
- Reducing consumption of resources
- Reducing production of waste

During the Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance
with the rules and regulations related to environmental
protection and did not identify any violations that were
related to environmental protection and had significant
impact on the Group.

EMISSION

There were mainly two types of greenhouse gases
emissions of the Group during the current fiscal year,
including (but not limited to) direct emission from vehicles,
and indirect emissions from purchased electricity in offices.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's vehicles travelled
8,500 km in total. Total emission of nitrogen oxides and
sulfur dioxide amounted to 7.52 kg and 12 g respectively.
Particle emission amounted to 0.7 kg while carbon dioxide
emission amounted to 2.0 tonnes. The vehicles were
monitored and inspected by the system on a regular basis
to keep them in the best conditions in order to increase
fuel consumption efficiency and ensure road safety.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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For purchased electricity in offices, the Group encourages
the employees to set the air conditioners at the most
comfortable temperature and switch them off and switch
off lights when it is not necessary so as to reduce emission
of greenhouse gases. The Group has also put notices at
eye-catching areas in the offices to remind our employees
about energy saving in the course of business.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has always been promoting sustainability
by assuming the social responsibility of environmental
protection in the course of business and, on the premise
of minimizing the impact on the environment, creating
unlimited possibilities with limited resources. In this regard,
the Group attaches great importance to employees’
environmental awareness, thus has put forth a number
of initiatives with the goal of “green office”, educating
employees about how to fully utilize the resources and
save energy. The Group aims at maximizing the efficiency
of our resources in commercial aspect while eliminating
waste and contributing to the society in social aspect.

The Group also embraces its responsibility in
environmental protection throughout the course of office
administration and daily operation. Apart from adhering to
the principle of recycling and reducing use, the Group is
committed to creating green offices to minimize the impact
on the environment. In light of the nature of the business
of the Group, the consumption of energy, electricity, water
and other natural resources in the offices are limited.
Power consumed by the Group for the current fiscal year
amounted to 36,428 kWh (1,041 kwh per employee) and
total carbon dioxide emission amounted to 28.8 tonnes,
mainly due to daily consumption in the offices.
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Below are measures taken by the Group in saving energy:

Adopting double-sided printing and promoting use of
recycled paper;

Switching off unused lights and electric appliances to
reduce energy consumption;

Keeping the room temperature at a comfortable
level and switching off the air conditioners when not
necessary;

Switching off the air conditioners and lights after
office hour and when they are not in use;

Requiring employees to turn their computers and
other devices to the sleep mode or switch them off
when leaving the office (including visiting clients and
having lunch); and

Conducting regular maintenance for office equipment
(such as air conditioners, computers, lights,
refrigerators and paper shredders) to ensure normal
operation.

As per the business nature of the Group, water
consumption is very limited, mainly daily water
consumption by the employees in offices during business
hours. The domestic sewage of the Group does not
include hazardous wastewater and is directly discharged

to the municipal sewer pipeline. In order to reduce
wastewater, employees of the Group are encouraged to
save water. In the Reporting Period, water consumption

amounted to 2 m® (0.06 m® per employee).
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DATA ON GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION

R - HERELGHRE

BERBHERBE

Unit Data

KPI 1.2 & 2.1 A NIEER1.2%2.1 BE i
Vehicles =17 8,500 km CO2: 2.0 tonnes
8,500 £ & bfix - 2.0WF

Power consumption H&E 36,428 kWh COz2: 28.8 tonnes
36,428F FLEF Z4a bk - 28.8MF

Total “rEt Total CO2: 30.8 tonnes
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PRODUCTION OF WASTE

Solid waste of the Group is mainly produced in the daily
operation of the offices, including daily paper consumption,
office paper waste and food waste made by employees. All
domestic waste is collected and disposed by the property
management office of the office building on a regular basis.

The Group is committed to reduce waste production. The
Group encourages the employees to recycle stationery and
reduce waste with an aim to prevent waste production at
the initial stage. Moreover, the Group has adopted a digital
operation method to centralize all documents and regularly
educates its employees about environmental protection.
For example, the employees are required to print double-
sided and reuse paper printed single-sided in order to save
and reduce the use of paper and other natural resources.
Permission is also required for printing in the offices for
statistical and adjustment purposes on the use of paper,
so that resource utilization can be enhanced.

The Group has established appropriate measures for
disposal of computers and related products such as
printers and toner cartridges. Unused digital products are
transferred or reused while obsolete accessories and used
toner cartridges are collected by third party companies for
recycling.

In case it is necessary to dispose of an item, the Group
encourages our employees to collect and classify the
waste before disposing so as to reduce the negative
impact on the environment.
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SOCIAL

B1 Employment
Labour practices

To ensure that the Group is able to operate according
to professional and ethical labour practices, the Group
has developed clear work processes with robust control
mechanisms which have been clearly communicated to all
employees. Certain policies to govern employees’ affairs
such as payroll, attendance and termination are clearly set
out in staff appointment letters in compliance with Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. There is no non-compliance
with the relevant labour laws and regulations in USA,
Macau, PRC, Australia and Kingdom of Cambodia offices
that have a significant impact on the issuer.

The Group also aims to promote the diversity of workforce,
including in terms of age, gender and nationality, as well as
a culture of equal opportunity. The management regularly
reviews the Group’s remuneration policy in relation to
relevant market standards.

B2 Health and Safety
Workplace health and safety

The Group has established a set of policies which is
focused on maintaining a healthy and safe working
environment, and which includes the following
requirements:

- The facilities operated by employees should meet
safety and health standards; and

- relevant information and training should be provided
to employees in respect of risks to their health and
safety which may arise out of their work.

The Group did not violate any health and safety laws and
regulations of USA, Australia, Kingdom of Cambodia,
PRC, Macau and Hong Kong, where applicable, during the
Reporting Period.
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The Group has established a mechanism for monitoring
occupational health and safety, as well as procedures for
dealing with related risks. The Group engages employees
in the determination of appropriate occupational health
and safety precautionary measures. Accident reporting and
investigation procedures have also been adopted for the
follow-up of any health and safety incidents.

Regular inspections and management review of health and
safety have been performed to ensure the effectiveness of
the policies and measures.

B3 Development and training
Employee development and training

The Group strives to promote the long-term development
of its employees by providing learning opportunities that
broaden their skills and make them valuable assets to the
Group.

Internal training and external seminars are offered to
employees including in the areas of finance, governance,
rules and regulations, supervisory and managerial skills, as
well as various technical training courses relating to their
respective job duties.

B4 Labour Standards
Anti-child and forced labour

The Group strictly prohibits the use of child and forced
labour in the Group, and is totally committed to creating a
work environment which respects human rights.

In addition to having well-established recruitment
processes requiring background checks on candidates
and formalised reporting procedures to address any
exceptions found, the Group also performs regular reviews
and inspections to detect the existence of any child or
forced labour in the operations.

B5 Supply chain management
Supplier management

The Group interacts with a number of suppliers for trading
businesses. We have established and implemented
supplier management policies and procedures to manage
the risks associated with our supply chain, including those
associated with environmental, social and governance
practices.
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B6 Product Responsibility

With the traded products entirely sourced from suppliers
regarding our trading businesses, the Group has
established and implemented product quality checking
policies and procedures to manage the risks associated
with our traded products to mitigate risk related to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services.

The Group did not violate any related laws and regulations
of USA, Australia, Kingdom of Cambodia, PRC, Macau
and Hong Kong, where applicable, during the Reporting
Period.

B7 Anti-corruption
Ant-corruption and anti-money laundering

The Group has in place a number of policies addressing
anti-corruption, such as acceptance of gifts, and conflicts
of interest, which provide guidance to employees in
this area. The Group has also established policies and
procedures to deal with anti-money laundering in its
operations.

In addition, the Group has established prevention system
by setting up communication channels for faults and anti-
corruption reporting. The whistle-blowing system can
handle any breach of laws and regulations.

Relevant articles on anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering are provided to employees for their study and
reference in order to raise their awareness of the code of
conduct as well as related procedures and guidelines.

During the Reporting Period, no legal case regarding
corruption was brought against the Group or its em-
ployees. Also, there were no cases of non-compliance with
laws and regulations on anti-money laundering in USA,
Australia, Kingdom of Cambodia, PRC, Macau and Hong
Kong.

B8 Community Investment
Community programs

The Group has been supporting sports and other
charitable activities many years. During the Reporting
Period, the Group arranged several sports activities to
promote health and community involvement.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRB - HEREGRE

B6 EmEE

HRARPNEZEBMEMEEZERTE
REBHER AKECHELATEMME
BERRNEF AEREMEEEMEBZ
Rk REAEEERNMREHEREELZE &
FRELMEEEZRAR -

WIRE R AR B R RER RN KR
EEE-PE NP RES 2 ETRBESR
A (EA) -

B7 RES
RESRR % E1E

AEERBERRES (PIMZEZEY) KA
SERZBARR  ETRAARMTEA TE
B 2155l - AR B IRGIE R IE L E P HRIAR
BRI BRNMER -

AN AREEERIHEANERTENMRE
75 2 B IR ) E AR I E o 88 I E R BRI
ETERED R RO Z 15

ZAAEBRHENKFEEMSE ZHBAR
BEERABRENE URSREHTATEH
AR BRI F R AR Sl 2 RANE

RBESHE AEENEESMEREFE)S
SRRAER AT o SN AP E R RN
WERIE HE ORFIREERARZENR
MOz E%-

B8 #HE&RE
HEHEH

ZER AEE-BEXRKSAREREMBES
A NIMEHRE AEERKEZEREE Y
URFTRERLRBHE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRR - HERE GRS

HKEX ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX

Key performance
indicators (KPls)
A 82 {8 B R (KPI)

ESG Report
(RE -HEREGRE)

B (RBE - HERERBEE
51) &l

Section containing
disclosures

1B EED

Remarks

st

A. Environmental

A. RIS

Aspect A1: Emissions

EEA1 : iR

General Disclosure
— MR

Information on:

FHBERKAEREH
O TA7K B Bt
T BEMEEREE
MWEESH:

=

the policies; and
R R

=

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

b) BTEHETABERFZENEBEIZERINE
o

The types of emissions and respective emissions
data

BemiE R M ARRE BE R

A1.2
A1.2

Greenhouse gas emissions in total

RERBATNE

Environmental
IRiE

Emissions

BEDK

Emissions

B

ERANLRERERRAT
2 )\FFRH

44



45

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - HERELGRE

Key performance

Section containing

indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures
A 82 4R S 1R (KP) (RIF-HERELRE) WKWESE

Remarks

st

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced
A3 FTELEBEREENESE

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced
A4 FMEEBREEEDHES

A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions
and results achieved

A1.5 FEAUREBEE B HE e S P15 AR

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved

Al6 HIlEIBEERBEEZEMN T L REEELE
B 5 1E 2 P15 A R

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Not applicable
T3

Not applicable
iE A

Emissions

PR

Waste production

BEERVMES

During the course of
business, the Company
did not produce any
chemical or medical—
related hazardous waste.
RRREBHEERREF
I M E A A Bl B
BEENEEREEY -

During the course of
business, the Company
did not produce a large
amount of non-hazardous
waste, therefore, it did not
include the data of non-
hazardous waste in the
calculation this time.
RRAREBEERRRIL
BEEREREEED
ES i /N T N P S ki
EREYZBBEMAGTE
#HE A o
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Key performance

R - HERELGHRE

Section containing

indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks
A 82 4R BB 1R (KP) (RIB -HEREEGRE) HBEM b
Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 : EiRER

General Disclosure Environmental

— MR R

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BREAER (BIERER - KR E AR K B BR -

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by

type
A2 RERE S EE R, AEEERESE

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity
A22 EREKERTE

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and

results achieved

A2.3 HE it BER E B s st & R AT ISR

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water

efficiency initiatives and results achieved

A2.4 fEsi SREGE B /KR _E AT (ERIFE - A Ke 52 A

K ek 5T & M PTR AR

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished

products
A25 B mTABREMBNES

Use of resources

BIRE R
Use of resources
BIREEA
Use of resources

BIRE

Use of resources

BIREN

Not applicable
iE A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRB - HEREGRE

Key performance Section containing
indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks
FA S 45 I 1R (KP) (RIB -HEREEGRE) HBEM st

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural
Resources

BHEA3  IRIERXAER

General Disclosure Environmental
—RRE R

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.
MR T AHRERRAERERERZENBRK -

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities  Use of resources
on the environment and natural resources and the & JR{F A
actions taken to manage them

A3l HIEBEBHRERRAERNERATZERE
KREREUTENTH
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Key performance

R - HERELGHRE

Section containing

indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks
A 82 4R BB 1R (KP) (RIF-HERELRE) WKWESE b
B. Social
B #&
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1 : EE
General Disclosure Employment
— AR EE (A
Information on:
BAH I &R Bk
B TERE R
B TERE ZT
b~ RIEARIA R E A
i KA E -
(@ the policies; and
@ BER: R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
b) EBTFHETABERZENEBEZZRRIINE
¥} o
ERXTILREEEF/RAT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRB - HEREGRE

Key performance Section containing
indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks
FA S 45 I 1R (KP) (RIB -HEREEGRE) HBEM st

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EEB2 : @RHEZE

General Disclosure Health and safety
—ME fEEEZ 2

Information on:

FRRHZ2TERERREREERLBEEBEN

(@)  the policies; and
@ BX: X

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.
(o) EFHETABERZEMMEEZLEONE
*ho

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EEB3 : 3% & R il

General Disclosure Development and training
— PR EE R KIEF

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
ERRABREBITIIEBREMN M R EAENEE &
MIEEE) o
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Key performance

indicators (KPls) ESG Report
A 82 4R BB 1R (KP) (RIE -HEREGRE)

R - HERELGHRE

Section containing
disclosures Remarks

1B EED st

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : ¥ T %A

General Disclosure
—M B EE

Information on:

BRI L E TS T

(@ the policies; and

(@ EE: R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
Labour standards.

b) BEBTHEHETABERFZENEBEIZRRINE
o

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : {tEHEEE

General Disclosure
— MR

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.
ERMHEENRRE I ERMBBE -

Labour standards
2 TAH|

Supply chain management

HrEgE IR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRB - HEREGRE

Key performance Section containing
indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks
FA S 45 I 1R (KP) (RIB -HEREEGRE) HBEM st

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[E®EB6 : EREFE

General Disclosure Product responsibility
—ME EmEE

Information on:
EHEFRRERMRBHERELEEZ S &
b= B A R AR A8 -

Iff
SR
B
Z
ba.
2

5

the policies; and
BR R

S

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations  Product responsibility
that have a significant impact on the issuer Em& T
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
b) BEBTFTHEHETABERZENEBEZLRONE
o

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[EEB7 : R&/S

General Disclosure Anti-corruption
— AR EE R&S

Information on:

BRI LEFERE - B BRFF RO R

S5

the policies; and
BR M

S

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
b) BFHBEBTABEATENEBEERZLAOK
o
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Key performance

R - HERELGHRE

Section containing

indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks
A 82 4R BB 1R (KP) (RIB -HEREEGRE) HBEM b

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : #HERE

General Disclosure

—RIEE

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BRLMEBE2ERTREEMELRFSMBREE
BEBEEEAREFEOBUR -

Community investment
HEKRE
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Directors’ Profiles

EFERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gao Qun (“Mr. Gao”), aged 49, was an executive Director
and chairman of the Board on 5 October 2018. Mr. Gao serves
as the managing director for CICFH Investment Management
Company Limited since February 2018, overseeing investment
and portfolio management business in the entertainment
and media sector for the fund. Mr. Gao is also a cofounder
and chief executive officer of Beijing WD Pictures Company
Limited* (“Beijing WD Pictures”), an innovative entertainment
company engaged in the development, production, marketing
and distribution of films and television programs. Prior to
the founding of Beijing WD Pictures, Mr. Gao served as the
vice president at Shanghai New Culture Media Group Co.,
Limited, responsible for the company’s strategic development,
mergers and acquisitions, and production of films and television
programs. Mr. Gao was a co-executive producer for film
“Skiptrace” and a co-producer for fim “Saving Mr. Wu”. Mr. Gao
was the executive vice president at ChinaVision Media Group
Limited (“ChinaVision”, now known as “Alibaba Pictures Group
Limited”), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1060), executing ChinaVision’s
transactions such as acquisition of China Entertainment Media
Group Limited and strategic placement to Tencent Inc. Mr. Gao
also supervised ChinaVision’s content investments, including
investment in Stephen Chow’s “Journey to the West”. Mr. Gao
obtained a bachelor’s degree in English Literature from Shanghai
International Studies University in 1991 and a master’'s degree
in Business Administration from Yale School of Management in
2004.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Mr. Chau Chit (“Mr. Chau”), aged 54, was an Executive
Director of the Company on 22 July 2013. Mr. Chau currently
serves as the chairman of the Hong Kong Jiangyin Trade
Association and the vice president of Federation of HK Jiangsu
Community Organisations Limited. He holds a bachelor degree
in chemistry from Zhejiang University and an EMBA degree
(Executive Master of Business Administration) from Zhejiang
University.

Mr. Chau was appointed as an executive director and as
the Chairman of Vision Fame International Holding Limited
(@ company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
in Hong Kong (stock code: 1315)) on 22 July 2015 and 23
September 2015 respectively. He was re-designated to Co-
Chairman and appointed as the chief executive officer of Vision
Fame International Holding Limited on 1 March 2017.

Mr. Chau was appointed as an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Sino Stride Technology (Holdings) Ltd (Stock
Code: 8177). Mr. Chau was appointed an executive director,
the managing director, the chairman of the executive committee
and a member of the investment committee of HNA International
Investment Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 521) in June 2006.
Mr. Chau resigned his positions at HNA International Investment
Holdings Limited with effect from 24 October 2013.

Mr. Luo Lei (“Mr. Luo”), aged 48, is a television and film
director and producer. He has been in the television and film
industry for over 15 years, and has directed several Chinese
mid— and long-length television series and films, including the
television series B 7E[5 Yt I& B EF (Love in Sunshine®), & {EH
(Blossoms of Hibiscus Flowers®), 8 —££{F = (Cheng Du Wang
Shi*), Fi# E (Snow Region Eagles®), and the film A& £ fi]
THHY S (The Story of Panda and Assi*). He also has extensive
working experience in the film and television advertisement

industry.

Ms. Chen Hong (“Ms. Chen”), aged 47, obtained a Master’s
Degree in Economics from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in 2004, and is the angel investor of Shanghai Ma
Shang Fei Yang Calculation Technology Company Limited*
(EBE ERGFAERFZWARAR) . Ms. Chen is an
experienced investor with investments covering technology and
telecommunication sectors and has interest in various PRC-
based technology and/or telecommunication related companies,
and listed companies in Hong Kong.

Directors’ Profiles
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Directors’ Profiles

EFERE

Mr. Hung Ching Fung (“Mr. Hung”), aged 35, was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 27 September
2014. Mr. Hung obtained a Bachelor Degree in Commerce from
Macquarie University in Australia in 2007. Mr. Hung worked as
an auditor in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and Grant Thornton from
2007 to 2010. Mr. Hung is a full member of CPA Australia. Mr.
Hung has been the Financial Controller of Jimei Group since
2010 and has been an executive director of Cloud Investment
Holdings Limited (previously known as China Bio Cassava
Holdings Limited), a company whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8129), since August 2013. He was
a non-executive director of Asa Resource Group Plc, a company
whose shares are listed on the Alternative Investment Market of
London Stock Exchange Plc. (AIM code: asa.l) from September
2015 to July 2017.

Mr. Li Haitian (“Mr. Li”), aged 26, graduated from the China
Central Radio and TV University (now known as The Open
University of China) with a major in finance in 2014, and was
registered and approved as a securities broker by the Securities
Association of China in 2013. Mr. Li worked at CITIC Securities
Co., Ltd. from 2013 to 2017, and has experience in investment
financing and securities brokerage. He has acted as a sole
financial adviser in the financing of first round share capital of
Chengdu Century Club International Traveling Limited* ( X #F 3
Bt A2 BB IRTTE B R A A]) in 2015 and the fund raising and
issue of units of the new media film fund of Dahan Investment
Asset Management (Beijing) Company Limited* (X # % &
HeE®E (R)BAMRAR)from 2016 to 2017, and has
extensive experience in providing financial services related to the
entertainment industry.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Shoulei (“Mr. Wang”), aged 35, graduated from
Shanghai International Studies University with a master’s degree
in Economics in 2009. He is currently the head of the debt
capital market department and structured finance department
of Zhongtai International Capital Limited (P ZREIE @& £ R A
A)) , responsible for monitoring the operation of the debt capital
market department and structured finance department. Prior
to that, he had acted as the general manager of the greater
Shanghai region of Zhongtai Financial International Limited ( &
ZE BB AR AR, responsible for the development in the
Hong Kong market.

Mr. Wang has also been a non-executive director of Yuhua
Energy Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 02728), since April
2017.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Wai Kwan (“Mr. Wong”), aged 50, obtained a
bachelor’s degree in accountancy from City University of Hong
Kong in 1992 and a master’s degree in business administration
from Washington University in St. Louis, U.S.A. in 2009. He
is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Currently, Mr. Wong is the Chief Financial
Controller of Thinktank Learning Inc., and previously was the
general manager of the financial audit department of Shanghai
Fosun High Technology (Group) Co., Ltd., a wholly owned
subsidiary of Fosun International Limited, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
00656). Mr. Wong has extensive working experience in the audit
and consulting areas, particularly in initial public offerings, risk
management and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Wong was
an independent non-executive director of Shougang Concord
Technology Holdings Limited (now known as HNA Holding
Group Co. Limited), whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00521) and a member of
each of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee of that company, for the period from
June 2010 to October 2013.

Mr. Wong was previously appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company from September 2013
to November 2014 and served as a member of each of the
audit committee, the nomination committee, the remuneration
committee and the investment steering committee of the
Company. He has been an independent non-executive director
of Vision Fame International Holding Limited, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
01315) since July 2015 and is a member of each of the audit
committee and nomination committee of that company.

He has been a non-executive director of Vobile Group Limited,
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 03738) since June 21, 2017 and is a
member of the audit committee of that company.

Vo

Directors’ Profiles
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Directors’ Profiles

EFERE

Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak (F£BA%%), aged 51, obtained
a master degree from University of Cambridge in 1991. He is
the Chairman of The Red Group Investment Limited and was
previously the Managing Director of UBS Investment Bank. He
has a wealth of experience in the international financial sector.
Mr. Ngai is also a member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Standing
Committee member of the Heilongjiang Provincial Committee
of the People’s Political Consultative Conference, Fellow
Commoner and Development Advisory Council Member of Clare
Hall, University of Cambridge, Council Member and Chairman of
the Institutional Advancement Committee of Lingnan University,
member of the Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal Panel, and a
member of the Administrative Appeals Board.

Mr. Kong Chi Mo (“Mr. Kong”), aged 43, has over 20 years
of experience in accounting, auditing, financial management,
corporate finance, investor relations, company secretarial
affairs and corporate governance. Presently, Mr. Kong holds
the position of independent non-executive director in Aowei
Holding Limited, Huazhang Technology Holding Limited, ZACD
Group Ltd. and AK Medical Holdings Limited whereas in China
Vanadium Titano-Magnetite Mining Company Limited (“China
Vanadium”), he holds the position of Company Secretary and
Authorised Representative. All these public companies are listed
on the main board or growth enterprise market of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

Prior to this, he was the independent non-executive director
of CAA Resources Limited, a company also listed on the main
board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from April 2013 to
August 2017. Mr. Kong was the executive director and chief
financial officer of China Vanadium from October 2013 to May
2015 and from May 2008 to May 2015, respectively. Mr. Kong
worked at KPMG from October 1999 to December 2007 and
was promoted to senior manager during his term of office.
Prior to joining KPMG, Mr. Kong worked as a finance trainee in
Hutchison Telecommunications (Hong Kong) Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hutchison Telecommunications
Hong Kong Holdings Limited, a company also listed on the main
board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) from June 1997 to
March 1998, and as an associate in PricewaterhouseCoopers
from March 1998 to October 1999.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Mr. Kong obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
December 1997. Mr. Kong has been a fellow of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants since February 2008, a
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors since May
2010, a fellow of each of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators since February 2012, an ordinary member of
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute since October
2017 and a full member of Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association since November 2017. Mr. Kong was also awarded
the Chartered Governance Professional qualification of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in September 2018.

Mr. Hong Tao (“Mr. Hong”), aged 41, obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from the Asian Institute of
Management in 2006. Mr. Hong has around 15 years of working
experience in the PRC, the United Kingdom and Hong Kong
and experience in project development and investment as well
as corporate governance in the energy, aviation and real estate
fields. Mr. Hong previously worked at Yunnan Power Grid Co.,
Ltd. from 1999 to 2004, and was a business consultant at
C&C Business Solutions Limited from 2006 to 2008. Mr. Hong
served as deputy manager of the board office of Honghua
Group Limited (a company whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00196)) from 2008
to 2012, board secretary of Xiangyu Dredging Holdings Limited
(now known as China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings
Limited) (a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00871)) from 2012 to 2013
and Head of Investment of Yue Da Holdings Limited (now known
as Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited) (@ company whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
00629)) from 2013 to 2015.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of Starlight
Culture Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 83 of
the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group reported a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$49,606,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: approximately HK$294,439,000).
The loss was mainly attributable to (i) the gain on change in fair
value of derivative financial liabilities of approximately HK$36
million recognized during the year of 2018 as compared to a loss
of approximately HK$30 million recognized in the year of 2017
in relation to the convertible bonds issued by the Company;
(i) the gain on change in fair value of a promissory note of
HK$91,431,000; (i) the overall decrease in operating expenses,
administrative expenses and finance costs of approximately
HK$40 million; and (iv) the gross profit of approximately HK$38
million recognized during the year of 2018 as compared to gross
loss of approximately HK$3 million recognized in the year of
2017.
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Basic loss per share for the year amounted to approximately
7.36 HK cents (2017: 49.15 HK cents). Net liability of the Group
were approximately HK$163,352,000 (2017: HK$110,445,000).
The net liability was attributable to the loss of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Key Risks Factors

The following section lists out the key risks and uncertainties
which the Group faces. It is a non-exhaustive list and there
may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to the key risks
factors outlined below. Besides, this report does not constitute a
recommendation or advice for anyone to invest in the securities
of the Company and investors are advised to make their own
judgment or consult their own investment advisors before
making any investment in the securities of the Company.

1. We are subject to the credit risk of contracting parties,
trading customers and gaming patrons.

2. Local taxation may increase and tax liability may increase
for future amendment of tax rules.

3. A weakening in economic and credit market conditions
may adversely affect tourism and the profitability of our
entertainment business.

Future development and important events
after the end of the financial year

Looking ahead, the business environment remains very
challenging as downward pressure on economy of the PRC, the
global financial and economic conditions are expected to remain
unstable. Nevertheless, the Group will cautiously review and
adjust the business strategies from time to time, and seek the
best returns to maximise value of the Shareholders.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. We are
aware that, minimizing the consumption of resources and
adoption of best environmental practices in the business
process of the Group to the extent practicable is our underlying
commitment to preserving and improving the environment.
Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopts effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction. Green initiatives include recycling of used papers,
energy saving and water saving.

The Board is pleased to present you the environmental, social
and governance report (the “ESG Report”) set out on pages
34 to 52 of this report which depicts the performance on the
sustainability of the Group.

Relationship with suppliers, customers,
employees and other stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers, employees and other
stakeholders to meet the Group’s medium and long-term goals.
The Company creates a framework for motivating staff and
a formal communication channel in order to maintain healthy
relationships with its employees and other stakeholders.

Compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations

In relation to human resources, the Group is committed to
complying with the requirements of the ordinances relating to
disability, gender, family status and racial discrimination, as well
as the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance
and ordinances relating to occupational safety of employees of
the Group, so as to safeguard the interests and well-being of its
employees.
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There is no reported case of non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations in relation to the groups’ entertainment and
gaming business as well as trading business.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the authorised share capital of the
Company during the year. Details of the movement in the issued
share capital of the Company are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 88 of the annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company had no distributable reserves at 31 December
2018 calculated under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended). The Company’s share premium account, in
the amount of HK$196,230,000 at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$196,230,000) may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@ it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the largest one and five largest
customers accounted for 75% and 99% respectively of the
total sales for the year. Purchases from the largest one and five
largest suppliers accounted for 38% and 48% respectively of the
total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors of the
Company own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interest in the five largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors of the Company is
interested in any business apart from the Company’s businesses
which compete or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly
with businesses of the Company.
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Annual Report 2018

FEERRHMER

RAFER  MEAEPEREXREFPHHED BIER
FREBIHET 275% 5 99% ° A A &R Kk o AH
FE R B BR R 0 Bl ME A F R AR IR B 88 2 38% 2 48% °

ARABESE WEZBMEATHEMBR (BAQ
FIEEMABEAARFS%A LA B EES K
HEHEP 2 T -

EFENGEEB2HER

RARFEER ARAREFHERERRAEHERE
HEEBRA A BB F 2 ARBEBIN AL
X HEE RS-



DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Chairman

Mr. Gao Qun (appointed on 5 October 2018)
Mr. Yan Xu (retired on 29 June 2018)

Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Luo Lei

Executive Directors

Mr. Chau Chit (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. Chen Hong

Mr. Hung Ching Fung

Mr. Li Haitian

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Shoulei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Wai Kwan

Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak
Mr. Kong Chi Mo

Mr. Hong Tao

In accordance with Bye-laws 86(2), 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Gao Qun, Mr. Wong Wai Kwan, and
Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak, Mr. Kong Chi Mo and Mr. Hong Tao
shall retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Directors’ Report
EFEERES

EE

REARBEABREARR/LEERERNT:

EE

SHEEE(R-_Z-N\EF+ATAEZE)
BEEE(R-Z-N\FXA-THBERE)

THRAR
BREEE

HITES

BB EE (BIEFE)
PR 4T 22 £+
HB I A
FFREE

FHTES
IFTEELE

BUFATES
ITREEE
BB
THEREE
HOESE

RIEAR NG 2R R4HAI5E86(2)  87(1) R872)K &
BEE TEELRE WMABLE TERILENRKS
BEREBERARAREERERBEFAG LER EF
AEWRTAS EEET-

ERANLRERERRAT
2 )\FFRH

64



65

Directors’ Report
EFEERES

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were disclosed
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), or as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in the Appendix 10 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“the
Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the
Company (Long positions)
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Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage

shares held of issued

Name of Director personal interests share capital
RAEEANERZ HEBITREAZ

ESHE TiEREE BMHa S
Mr. Chau Chit BT E 49,693,600 7.38%
Mr. Hung Ching Fung HIE g S 1,500,000 0.22%
Ms. Chen Hong PR 4T 22+ 200,400 0.03%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of
the Directors nor the Chief Executive of the Company nor their
associates had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the year of 2018, the Vendor, which was wholly owned
and controlled by Mr. Yan Xu (the controlling shareholder and
chairman of the Company who retired as the Company’s director
on 29 June 2018), entered into a side letter (the “Side Letter”)
with the Company, pursuant to which the Vendor has irrevocably
and unconditionally agreed and undertaken to the Company the
following:

(i) The Vendor and the Company shall jointly appoint an
independent valuer, to conduct a valuation of the Target
Group as at 31 December 2018 (the “Updated Valuation”).
The determination by the independent valuer shall be final
and binding on the Vendor and the Company.

(i) If the Updated Valuation is less than US$25,000,000, the
Vendor irrevocably, unconditionally, and absolutely agrees
to waive and forgo the principal amount of the Promissory
Note payable by the Company under the Promissory Note
to the extent of an amount equal to the difference between
the Updated Valuation and US$25,000,000 (the “Waiver”).

(i) The due date of the Promissory Note shall be extended
until 12 December 2019.

Details can be referred to the Company’s announcement —
UPDATE ON MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION
IN RELATION TO ACQUISITION OF THE ENTIRE EQUITY
INTEREST IN STARLIGHT LEGEND INVESTMENT LIMITED
dated 29 March 2018.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance in relation
to the Group’s business (as defined in the Listing Rules) to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year of 2018.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that each Director,
secretary or other officer of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which any of them may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of the duties in their respective offices.
The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate
insurance to cover potential legal actions against its Directors.

The above provision for the benefit of the Directors is currently in
force and was in force throughout the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 1 June 2012
(“Share Option Scheme”). No options have been granted under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as the Share Option Scheme of the Company, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company, the following persons
(other than any director and chief executive of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or as recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

FERRZEZRIR

RZE—N\F+_A=+—8B BEARFIEEZTLE
ZTBABRA U AT (RRFRIEANEEREE
TBRABBINREARRI 2RO REEROTES
BIRE A MHEIEEBIEXVEFE2 830 38 2 & im A
MARRPEEZEZHAR IBBEIZIHFLBEK
BIEEIB6IEERARNRIFE 2 S M dk 2 ok
KE HBITHNEARARA NIz EEZIAE

Approximate

percentage
Number of of issued
ordinary share capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
. EEATEBITR
BREE BE g i@ ReE EEHE DL
(Note 1)
(MI5E1)
Zhongtai Financial Investment Limited Person having a security 369,313,514 (L) 54.83%
FRERMEEBRAA interest in shares
)
Extﬁtzﬁ*ﬁ‘m%t/& s AT
(Mf5E2)
Zhongtai Financial International Limited Interest of corporation controlled 369,313,514 (L) 54.83%
FRemBEEER AR you (note 2) s
%ﬁTt HlEEE = (M)
Zhon%ar Securities Company Limited Interest of corporation controlled 369,313,514 (L) 54.83%
hRBHBROHBRA you(note2) .
%ﬁTt HlE EE = (ME2)
CICFH Investment Management Beneficial owner (note 3) 369,313,514 (L) 54.83%
ComE) Limited ExEA A (MFE3)
FRFTIEEEEERA
HERPHEEERE (R)EBEEA Interest of corporation controlled 369,313,514 (L) 54.83%
you (note 3) .
%ﬁTt Hl e EE R (FTEE3)
XU PENG Interest of corporation controlled 369,313,514 (L) 54.83%
w5 you (note 3) s
%ﬁTt Hl e EE R (FTEE3)
Mega Start Limited Beneficial owner (note 4) 49,693,600 (L) 7.38%
EaEA A (MiE4d)
Chau Chit Interest of corporation controlled 49,693,600 (L) 7.38%
A& by you étheA'**“ R
BT EE RS (Mistd)
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Notes:

)

Save

All the shares are long positions.

The percentages are calculated based on the total number of
issued shares of the Company of 673,564,799 shares as at 31
December 2018.

Based on the information available to the Company, Zhongtai
Financial Investment Limited has a security interest in
369,313,514 shares and is directly wholly owned by Zhongtai
Financial International Limited, which is wholly owned by Zhongtai
Securities Company Limited. Zhongtai Financial International
Limited and Zhongtai Securities Company Limited are therefore
deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Zhongtai
Financial Investment Limited is interested under the SFO.

The entire issued share capital of CICFH Investment Management
Company Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by B3% 7 B 15
B & (b= ) AR A RA], which is ultimately beneficially owned as
to 99.8% by Mr. Xu Peng. By virtue of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Bl Ei% & E 2 (L) AR QX F and Mr. Xu Peng
are deemed to be interested in the 369,313,514 shares of CICFH
Investment Management Company Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Mega Start Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Chau Chit. By virtue of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Mr. Chau Chit is deemed to be interested
in the 49,693,600 shares of the Company.

as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified

and is not aware of any other persons who had an interest
or a short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31
December 2018
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

2015 Convertible Bonds

On 5 November 2015, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreements with the Subscribers, pursuant to
which the Subscribers have severally and conditionally agreed
to subscribe, and the Company has conditionally agreed to
issue, the Convertible Bonds in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$365,000,000, in respect of the issue and allotment of
an aggregate of 73,000,000 Shares to the Subscribers at the
Subscription Price of HK$5 per Subscription Share.

Among the aggregate principal amount of HK$365,000,000,
Subscriptions of Convertible Bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$315,000,000 were completed on 2 December
2015. The net proceeds were approximately HK$314,700,000.
Based on the initial Conversion Price of HK$5.00 per Conversion
Share, a maximum number of 63,000,000 Conversion Shares
may fall to be allotted and issued upon exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the Convertible Bonds.

Principal amount of HK$10,000,000 of Convertible Bond
was redeemed on 2 December 2018 and the due date for
redemption of the remaining outstanding principal amount
of Convertible Bonds of HK$305,000,000 was extended
till 2 January 2019. Principal amount of HK$50,000,000 of
Convertible Bond was redeemed on 28 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding principal amount of
the Convertible Bonds is HK$255,000,000. On 2 January 2019,
all of the Convertible Bonds were redeemed.

During the year of 2018, none of the Convertible Bonds was
converted into shares of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, the Company had no outstanding
convertible securities, warrants or other similar rights as at
31 December 2018 and there has been no exercise of any
convertible securities, warrants or similar rights during the year.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions entered into for the year are set out in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is based
on their merits, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, upon considering the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within
the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is a
sufficient public float of the issued share capital of the Company
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEES

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a high ZBEZE@RARGEFSKFIPEEAUNREREERZ
standard of corporate governance with an aim to protect the ZEZH -HFHARFMRAZEBLEELRERZ
interests of shareholders. A report on the principal corporate R&EH A FHRF19E33H »

governance practices adopted by the Company is set out on

pages 19 to 33 of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE EBEREEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial HEXZEeDEHAEBEHEZ T — N\NF+ A
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018. =+—HItFEZHEAHBKHRE -
AUDITORS BB

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general SR EERREBAF AL LIRXAZRUENEZ AL
meeting to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company. K& 5t Al =7 Fr B AR &) 2 AZ BLAb -

On behalf of the Board REEZS

Mr. Gao Qun EEKE

Chairman e

Hong Kong B

30 April 2019 —E-NAFHNA=+H
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
EY:x

To the shareholders of Starlight Culture Entertainment
Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 254,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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B %S EDER &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of HK$55,518,000 and had net cash outflows used in
operating activities of HK$277,025,000 during the year ended
31 December 2018, and at the end of the reporting period,
the Group had net current liabilities and total deficiency in
assets of approximately HK$59,009,000 and HK$163,352,000
respectively. As stated in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, these conditions indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

In addition to the matter described in the Material uncertainty
related to going concern section, we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

ENYR S

FAREZEIE 2

We have fulfiled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's B BITARE [ZHMGFECLEE Y FERLA
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial —FEZEA ] R ET RIEHRZEETBEEBNE
statements section of our report, including in relation to these  F° E I %Fﬁﬁ’]%%@%%ﬂﬁ‘ﬁ&@fﬁd SESFENE)
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of — Bff§¥RaK B A SE R MRl E B 7T (H R RE Fr - BAPI T
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the 24 %(@?ﬁi%%ﬁ%%T%lﬁﬁﬁ%HXﬁ’ﬂif)Z%@Z
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial PI¥BEM ARG M BEHEMEZE RRHE THKIE-
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the

procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the

basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

financial statements.

Key audit matters:

PASEREE:

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB EET AR RS TS SEE

Impairment of film product and film investments

ENERRERRANRE

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
film product and film investments of the Group, net
of impairment, amounted to nil and HK$105,175,000
respectively. An impairment test is performed when
an event or change in circumstance indicates that the
carrying amount of unamortised film product or film
investments may exceed their recoverable amounts.
RZE-NF+_A=+—0B ESXEEXERNEY
KEMBRRER 2 BREES B/AZ X105,175,000/8 7T ©
BEHXER Z@b#ﬁmﬂiﬁﬁ BEXEMAEZRENE
T B 8 38 H A Y 0] & FE R E T TR BRI, o

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment included:

BB EFERTOHEZEF B

- Evaluating the assumptions underpinning the
discounted cash flow models, which include budgeted
box office revenue, revenues from other sources
and distribution expenses by comparing them with
the future business plan and the historical cashflows
incurred in relation to the films;
ABERREBAIRRETTEENELRERE
EITHR %ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁfﬁﬁméﬁﬁE’MEEZ& = k)
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B %S EDER &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matters:

PASEZEE:

FAREZEIE 2

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB EET AR RS ETSIE

The management reviews film product and film
investments regularly to reassess the estimated
recoverable amounts with reference to marketability of
each film and current market condition. The recoverable
amount is calculated based on the value-in-use
calculation which uses the present value of the expected
future cash flows.

ERETHENEYERREXRENZREEYNE
MR E AT R ER A A A AR B SR - AT e £ 5
RERBE(ERABBARARRESRENREFTE)

sets
= o
>t

Management performed impairment tests and an
impairment loss on fim product of HK$17,018,000 and
on film investments of HK$10,356,000 were recognised
during the year. We focused on this area because the
cash flow projections require management’s judgments
which based on significant assumptions and estimations.
RERN EEBETHENRAIREXERRETLKRE
FERREE 18 5 Bl 517,018,000/ 7T % 10,356,000/ T ©
BMERBEILEE AR AEBAZTETEEER
BARRRER R Al 51 1B 2 o

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, 20 and
21 to the consolidated financial statements.
HEBEH RGP BHREME2.4 -3 - 20Kk21 ©

Valuation of promissory note

REARBZHE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s had a promissory
note amounted to nil and recorded at fair value, which
will be payable on 12 December 2019. The repayment
amount of the promissory note is contingent upon
the valuation of the Starlight Legend Group as of 31
December 2018 agreed by both the promissory note
holder and the Company.

RZZE-N\FF+ZA=+—H ESENALEESE
BEREAFEAR BAR=-Z—hLhF+=-A+=AX
- EZAREBENEESEGALERFEBAERRNAGFAM
EAK— B Starlight LegendEBHEZ T — N\F+ = A
=t—RAZEERE-
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Assessing the discount rate used in discounted cash
flow models by checking market data and certain film
specific parameters;
BARETSBBERETEXEEN28 T EHMER
BensBAmERNERE:

Performing the sensitivity analysis on the inputs used in
the calculation of the value in use; and
HitEFHEEMANB ASBETHRES T &

Assessing the related disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

A AR A ISR NIEL RN EE -

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation assessment
included:
BMEETERTHEZRETEE:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent valuer;
AR B AEME T % Be ) REEI
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matters:

PASEZEE:

ENYR S

FAREZEIE 2

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB EET AR RS ETSIE

The valuation of the Starlight Legend Group was
calculated based on the discounted cash flows. Key
assumptions used by the management included discount
rates, growth rates, forecast revenue and gross margins.
Management also engaged an independent valuer to
determine the valuation.

Starlight Legend& E R (HEZMIRRESRETE T
BHRANTZRIBFBURAE  BRE - FEARELER
K- ERENERBEL(HEMETHE:

We focused on this area because it involved the exercise
of significant management judgement and estimates.
BMESE I BE AL S RETEREEE B &
{5t

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

HERBEEHERNGEM B RRNT2.4 3528 -

Evaluating the assumptions underpinning the
discounted cash flow models, including growth rates,
forecast revenue and costs by comparing them to the
future business plan of the Group, recent performance
of the Starlight Legend Group as well as the industry
trend;

AIBEEEBEMARESFE - Starlight LegendE BT
HRBRITEBDETLE THERRERSEE
WAERRR  BEGRE AR S KA

Involving our internal valuation experts to assist us in
assessing the discount rate used in the discounted
cash flow models by performing re-calculations
based on market data and certain company specific
parameters, as well as evaluating the parameters
applied by the independent valuer;
RBRETSBEBERETARABR2EETENGNE
AR BB B LA ERMMAERN28 EBRMOA
BEEERBHRMAEERRERSEEMEAN
REIR R

Performing the sensitivity analysis of the inputs used in
the calculation of the valuation; and

U EREMANBABBETHREIN: &

Assessing the related disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

FEG A B RE N A RRRE -

ERANLRERERRAT
2 )\FFRH

78



79

Independent Auditor’s Report

B %S EDER &

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continueq)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR F&S{Eiﬁa-xgv.%%ﬁ%#ﬁ%/ﬁﬁ?ﬁz
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED 5E 2
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to e THREBZEENAILER  URFTHENE
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are %i2FF 1B H E’UI?F;Y%%I W*B?T SOV e
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose BERER-
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used o  FF{EEZFFEASTEENBREENRAELS

AHEFAEEREER AR

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuec)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 April 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEEmR

- \F+_A=t—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=%

2018 2017
—T-N\E —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B % FHET T T
REVENUE g %= 5 73,485 39,958
Cost of sales 555 7R (35,503) (43,161)
Gross profit/(loss) TR, (18) 37,982 (3,203)
Other income and gains E AU A R M2k 5 23,631 12,578
Selling and distribution expenses  $4%& K& 7 #5452 (8,148) (78,304)
Administrative expenses TBAX (53,909) (46,094)
Impairment loss on available- A HERERERE
for-sale investments - (3,000)
Impairment loss on property, plant ¥ % - &= & % & RE E 18
and equipment (707) 5,132)
Reversal of impairment losses/ TRRENEE
(impairment losses) on financial WEEERE
and contract assets, net CR{EER) 558 1,827 (23,736)
Impairment loss on goodwill EE R EEE (54,827) (43,844)
Impairment loss on B ENRERESE
film prepayments (1,921) -
Impairment loss on film investments & &% & R EE 18 (10,356) -
Impairment loss on film product B EMBEFIE (17,018) -
Change in fair value of financial BAVEFABREZ
assets at fair value through SHMEELNFEED
profit or loss (797) -
Change in fair value of derivative ~ $TH S RIB B A FEEZH
financial liabilities 36,153 (29,893)
Change in fair value of EHEBNFEEZE
a promissory note 91,431 -
Change in fair value of contingent  JEfT sk AR B R F(E
consideration payable & 1,563 -
Finance costs B & AR 7R 7 (99,700) (77,351)
Other expenses HiAX (722) -
LOSS BEFORE TAX brEi R AR 6 (55,518) (297,979)
Income tax expense Fris Rl = 10 - -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (55,518) (297,979)

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

Year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z-_E—\F+_A=+—HItFE

84

2018 2017
—E—-N\%E —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FHET FAETT
Attributable to: AT AL ELE:
Owners of the parent B RREAA (49,606) (294,439)
Non-controlling interests FEVE R M = (5,912) (3,540)
(55,518) (297,979)
LOSS PER SHARE BATEERESRFIAA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FE{EEiREE
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT 12
Basic EX
— For loss for the year —FANEE HK centsi# HK centsi& 1l
(7.36) (49.15)
Diluted 3
— For loss for the year —FANEIE HK cents# lll HK centsi Il
(7.36) (49.15)
ERLIREEBFRAT
—E-N\FFR



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FeE2EBER

Year ended 31 December 2018 B2 -~ \E+-A=+—-HIEE

2018 2017
—T-N\FE —F—+F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET T T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EREE (55,518) (297,979)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hitv2mE
INCOME
Other comprehensive income that HAE BRI ATREEF DS
may be reclassified to profit or loss #8%5 2 H fth 2 mE Uk S
in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investments: A HERE
Changes in fair value NEEEE = 1,108
Reclassification adjustments FAGEBERZREZ
for gains included in the B O AR
consolidated statement of profit
or loss
— impairment losses —REEE - 2,000
- 3,108
Exchange differences: MEH
Exchange differences on translation ¥ iGN ERELEZE R Z5
of foreign operations (877) (3,381)
Reclassification adjustments FREHEFINEBLZ
for a foreign operation disposed of & ¥ f8 &
during the year 2,194 -
1,317 (3,381)
Net other comprehensive income/ HZHIM e EF D EEBR
(loss) that may be reclassified Z
to profit or loss in subsequent Hi 2w g (F8) -
periods 1,317 (273)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FhEMBEZEWES - (EE)
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR (Bi1&)
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 1,317 (273)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS ¥ A2 HEEEEHE
FOR THE YEAR (54,201) (298,252)
Attributable to: AT AT e
Owners of the parent B RREA A (48,300) (294,778)
Non-controlling interests IR (5,901) (3,474)
(54,201) (298,252)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EMBIRRR

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

2018 2017
—T—-)N\EF —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FAETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREFEE
Property, plant and equipment VI S KRR 13 10,322 11,187
Club debenture gES 14 320 320
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE 15 - 9,313
Film product BEXEM 21 - 13,312
Goodwill ma 16 - 54,827
Total non-current assets IERBBEERLE 10,642 88,959
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 17 698 6,214
Prepayments, other receivables TEAT SR8 - HAth fE UK EIA K
and other assets Hi & E 18 248,181 147,242
Contract assets ENEE 19 54,850 -
Film investments BEKRE 20 105,175 -
Film product B Em 21 - 3,370
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEEER 22 26,907 96,647
Total current assets MEEELRE 435,811 253,473
CURRENT LIABILITIES HRENEE
Trade payables 2 EMNIE 23 3,219 3,177
Other payables and accruals EfhFET FRIB R FEETE A 24 26,077 23,495
Contract liabilities A aE 25 1,290 -
Amounts due to non-controlling JE AT BT B & R FE AR AR BR 3K
shareholders of subsidiaries T8 26 20,900 22,985
Interest-bearing bank and other FTERITREMEE
borrowings 27 158,687 12,799
Promissory note R 28 17,000 95,226
Derivative financial liabilities TEeREaE 29 - 36,153
Convertible bonds Al E 5 29 266,821 256,562
Tax payable JE AT R I8 826 917
Total current liabilities HRENEESEE 494,820 451,314
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEFE (59,009) (197,841)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EZERHRHERE
LIABILITIES (48,367) (108,882)
Bt eEmERAD
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ZFEMBIRRER

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—T-N\E —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B % THET TFAT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kREEE
Interest-bearing bank and TERITREMEE
other borrowings 27 113,433 -
Contingent consideration payable — JEfF sl AR (E 30 - 1,563
Other payables Ho i fE < 5RI8 24 1,552 -
Total non-current liabilities EREEEEE 114,985 1,568
Net liabilities BE%HE (163,352) (110,445)
DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS EERBL
Equity attributable to owners BATHE AEGELS
of the parent
Share capital & 7R 31 67,356 67,356
Reserves & 34 (184,646) (136,346)
(117,290) (68,990)
Non-controlling interests JEVE AR M = 35 (46,062) (41,455)
Total deficiency in assets BEBMSE (163,352) (110,445)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GeESREHR

Year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z-_E—\F+_A=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATBHAELS
Capital  Investment  Convertible Non- Total
Share Share  redemption  revaluation bonds Exchange Accumulated controlling  deficiency
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserves* losses* Total interests in assets
&% #& THK AERY
kx  RbkE  EDREE EREH REEE  EXRG RdER At ERRER e

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
UG TERT TER TER TERT TER TERL TERL TERT TER TER

(note 31) (note 34) (note 34) (note 34)
(H3s1)  (HizEse) (MiEse)  (HEE34)
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+5
+=B=t+-B 67,356 196,230 1,664 1,804 - (5,584) (330,360) (68,990) (41,455) (110,445)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RAF 15 R %8| 2.2
EONTE - - - (1,804) - - 1,804 - - -
At1 January 2018 (restated)  R=F—-\F—-A—H
(&5 67356 196,230 1,564 - - (5584 (328556) (68,990) (41455 (110445)
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (49,606) (49,606) (5912) 55,518)
Other comprehensive FREMZERE/
income/(loss) for the year: (BR):
Exchange differences on SRENEBEEL
translation of foreign EXz8
operations - - - - - (888) - (888) 1 877
Reclassification adjustments ~ AERH & 2 — B
for a foreign operation ERRNEHNERE
disposed of during the year - - - - - 2,194 - 2,194 - 2,194
Total comprehensive R’EERERS/
income/{loss) for the year (FR) &% - - - - - 1,306 (49,606) 48,300) (5,901) (54,201)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR 37 - - - - - - - - 1,204 1,204
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E
+-A=+-8 67356 196,230 1,564 - - (4278 (378162 (117,290) (46062 (163352

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * WEREERRBRERAMBERARTOGREEERER

debit balance of HK$184,646,000 (2017: HK$136,346,000) in the % #2184,646,0007% 7T ( = Z — £ 4 : 136,346,000/
consolidated statement of financial position. JC) °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEHEEmBER

Year ended 31 December 2018 #E-E—\F+-A=1+—HItFE

Year ended 31 December 2017

Attributable to owners of the parent

BE_ZT—+tFT_A=1+—"BHLEE

BASRANER
Capital  Investment  Convertible Non- Total
Share Share  redemption  revaluation bonds Exchange Accumulated controlling  deficiency
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserves* losses* Total interests in assets
&% k& T AEBY
K+  RoRE  EERE  EERE REEE EXfe BHEE it FERER o
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik FhL T Fign T ThL T Fisn FhL ThL T
(note 31) (note 34) (note 34) (note 34)
(ff5t31) ([fi7£34) (Fizt34) ([fi7534)
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+5-f-H 49,356 76,385 1,564 (1,304) 20427 (2,137 (35,921) 108,370 (43,865) 64,506
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (294,439) (294,439) (3,540) (297,979)
Other comprehensive FREMZERE/
income/(loss) for the year: (&)
Exchange differences on HBENEBELEL
translation of foreign EXZH
operations - - - - - (3,447) - (3,447) 66 (3,381)
Increase in fair value AHEEREATEEN
of available-for-sale
investments - - - 1,108 - - - 1,108 - 1,108
Release of investment RTHEREREBE
revaluation reserve to proft B AEREFEERE
or loss for impairment B
loss on available-for-sale
investments - - - 2,000 - - - 2,000 - 2,000
Total comprehensive FR2ERE/
income/(oss) for the year (BR)eE - - - 3,108 - (3.447) (294,439) (294,778) (3474) (298,252)
Share issued upon conversion IRk EH 31
of convertible bonds R 15,900 57,265 - - (20,427) - - 52,738 - 52,738
Acquisition of non-controlling U8R JEHERRHE 2
interests - - - - - - - - 5,884 5,884
Share issued upon completion R SZRX KEE M B A A& 31
of acquisition of subsidiaries TR (A 2,100 62,580 - - - - - 64,680 - 64,680
At 31 December 2017 3
+ZA=1+-B 67,356 196,230 1,564 1,804 - (6,584) (330,360) (68,990) (41,455) (110,445)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2018 gl£-%

“NETZA=t-BHIFE

2018 2017
—T-N\fE —+5F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E FHETT FE T
CASH FLOWS FROM HEXBZHRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax B A E 18 (55,518) (297,979)
Adjustments for: BT SIERE:
Interest income B HA 5 (24) (341)
Dividend income g B4R A 5 - (330)
Finance costs & AN 7 99,700 77,351
Gain on derecognition of a A BRI S PN ANET E
promissory note measured 7¥<Fumﬁ% Z W
at amortised cost 6,28 (5,377) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries u“.l S E DA 518 6,37 722 -
Fair value losses/(gains), net: AFEREE (W) 8
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFAB®Z
through profit or loss TEREE 6 797 -
Derivative financial liabilities MESREaE 6 (36,153) 29,893
Promissory note HH B 6 (91,431) -
Contingent consideration JERT SR RAB
payable 6 (1,563) -
Impairment loss on goodwill AR EEE 6 54,827 43,844
Impairment loss on property, Y- BB R EERE
plant and equipment &8 6,13 707 5,132
Impairment loss on available-for- AHHERERBERSE
sale investments 6 - 3,000
Impairment loss on B REREEE
film investments 6 10,356 -
Impairment loss on film product BYEMBEEE 6 17,018 -
Impairment loss B EMNRERERE
on film prepayments ¢] 1,921 -
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ TRRAEHEE
impairment losses on financial CREEERR),
and contract assets, net BEEE  F58 6 (1,827) 23,736
Amortisation of film product B EmEE 21 - 173
Depreciation of property, Y- WE LR
plant and equipment e 13 1,397 1,299
(4,448) (114,222)
Increase in film investments ESh-Z &= Pl (115,531) -
Decrease/(increase) in trade B 5 EWGRIER D,
receivables () 5,352 6,211)
(Increase)/decrease in TEAT SR8 - HAth fE R EIA K
prepayments, other receivables Hab&E (3m),
and other assets (100,378) 91,836
Increase in trade payables B 5 R IEE N 338 1,634
(Decrease)/increase in other Efh e 5108 R FE AT
payables and accruals A ORd) g (8,244) 3,171
Increase in contract assets BHE F N (55,404) -
Increase in contract liabilities BHBEEEM 1,290 -
Decrease in an amount e — A A B R IE R
due to a related company - (2,519)
EXLREEBEFRAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEHERE

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE

“E-\EtoAST-ALER

2018 2017
—E-N\%E —E—+F
Notes HK$’°000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FE T
Cash used in operations AREEEBZIRS (277,025) (26,311)
Tax paid FRNEITE S - (222)
Net cash flows used in AREEEHZHERETFH
operating activities (277,025) (26,533)
CASH FLOWS FROM BREXBZHLRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and B E %% BB L& #&
equipment 13 (1,293) (4,811)
Purchase of club debenture BEEMES - (320)
Disposal of financial assets at far ~ HERAFEFAEBRZ
value through profit or loss SREE 8,516 -
Cash from acquisition of subsidiaries 3 5 W KB A 7 2 R & - 5,556
Disposal of subsidiaries H &K E A A 37 109 -
Loans receivable UK E R - 20,330
Dividend income 4= ON - 330
Interest received B U F) 8 24 33
Net cash flows from investing RBEIREXHEREKEFE
activities 7,356 21,118
CASH FLOWS FROM RIEEBZRSREEH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advance from a non-controlling RE—RHMEBARFEZER
interest of a subsidiary a2 B - 256
Repayment of convertible bonds B3 Al % & 55 (43,000) -
New borrowings WEE 272,120 5,999
Repayment of borrowings EEEEZHIE (12,799) (12,220)
Interest paid EARTHLE (15,285) (25,200)
Net cash flows from/(used in) KRB, (AR)BE£HE2Z
financing activities REeEnEFHE 201,036 (31,165)

91 Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited

Annual Report 2018



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SeRERE

Year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z-_E—\F+_A=+—HItFE

2018 2017
—F—)\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 7 FET FBTT
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND B2 RIELS%(EIEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS B RE (68,633) (36,580)
Cash and cash equivalents at F£#HZHER
beginning of year H&%EEH 96,647 133,000
Effect of exchange rate changes [EX @RS RIFL%HE
on cash and cash equivalents IEEZRZ (1,107) 227
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Xk Z2IRE& RIS ZEIEH
AT END OF YEAR 26,907 96,647
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES Re&RBE&%EER
OF CASH AND CASH SR
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as R BRRARERREERE
stated in the statement of MR MIREeSFHEIER
financial position and
statement of cash flows 22 26,907 96,647
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

93

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company is Room 1203, 12/F, 118
Connaught Road West, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principally activities:

o media and culture business;

o trading of chemical products, energy conservation
and environmental protection products; and

o entertainment and gaming business.

The Company’s parent is CICFH Investment Management
Company Limited and the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) consider that its ultimate holding company
is ERPEIREETE (AER)BR QA (“Guotou”) with
effect from September 2018. Guotou is incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ATIREE&EHE 2
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries K= PNGIE=¢

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as AARZEBHBARFBEOT
follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

BAERSLILA
Place of
Form of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Group’s
business registration and registered effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of subsidiary structure business share capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
ML BT R ERTEERRA 30 A28  KEAF
HEAS&H EBRBES BEME /EREE ERED #E B IEER
Fortune Appraise Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% - 100%  Provision of services to
patrons
A ERRAHS EBRRIET AEPRERH
Fortune Global Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% - 100% Provision of services to
patrons
R ERERES EERIET AEPRERS
Fortune Sky Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% - 100% Provision of services to
patrons
A7 EBRES EERIET mE PR RS
Innovative Era Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% - 100%  Property holding
A ERERHE EERIET ESS T
JEASD Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% - 100%  Provision of gaming promotion
activities
A7 EBRNES EBRIET REEVEREED

ERANLRERERRAT
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP

INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continuead)

1.

AT REEEH =

MEARIER (&

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERRILH
Place of
Form of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Group’s
business registration and registered effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of subsidiary structure business share capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
ML BT R ERTLARRE F£E A28  KWEAF
HEASEE EBEBER BEME /HREE Bl iEn bzl 15 TEEH
Jimei Entertainment Australia Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% - 100%  Provision of gaming promotion
Development Limited activities
A7 RERAES EERETL REBYHEEES
Jimei Entertainment Cambodia Corporation British Virgin Islands US$10,000 51% - 51% Provision of gaming promotion
Development Limited Ordinary share activities
R EREAHE LB R10,000% T REBYREEED
Jimei Entertainment Company Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% 100% - Investment holding
A7 EBRENES EERIET REER
Jimei Entertainment Holdings Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% 100% - Investment holding
R EREAHE EERIET RERK
Jimei Entertainment Investments Limited ~ Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% 100% - Investment holding
A7 EBRENES EERIET REER
Jimei Global Management (Macau) Corporation Macau MOP $25,000 100% - 100%  Provision of management
Company Limited services to group
companies
SXERRER (RFM)BRDA AT 1] 25,0002 % REERARMUERRS

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ASIREEER »

INFORMATION (continued)

MEARER (&

Information about subsidiaries (continuead)

Proportion of ownership interest

BAHEESLILA
Place of
Form of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Group’s
business registration and registered effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of subsidiary structure business share capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
ML BT R ERTLARRE F£E A48 HEBAT
HEATLH SREREA  Egew /EREE R ik HE_TERR
Jimei International Investments Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% 100% - Investment holding
N ERRAEE EBRIET RERR
Jimei Management Holdings Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% 100% - Investment holding
N EBRES EBERIZT REER
Sino Green Energy Investment Co., Corporation Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary share 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited
HEGEREERAR R 0 LRRIET REER
Sino Yale Holdings Ltd Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% 100% - Investment holding
N EBRES EBERIZT REER
Surin Development Ltd. Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% 100% - Investment holding
N ERRAES EBRIEL REER
Zhejiang Sino Green Energy Technology ~ Wholly foreign The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100% Trading in energy
Company Limited* owned enterprise conservation products
WL B RERERRERAA NEBERE $ AR #20,000,0007 BEMHER
Star Media International Limited Corporation Republic of Seychelles US$1 Ordinary share 100% - 100%  Film investment
AT EEMANER LERIET BYRE
Starlight Legend Investment Limited Corporation Republic of Seychelles US$1 Ordinary share 100% 100% - Investment holding
AF] EEREME LRRIET REER

ERANLRERERRAT
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ASIREEE&ER »

INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continuead)

MEARIER (&

Proportion of ownership interest

BAHEESLILA
Place of
Form of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Group’s
business registration and registered effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of subsidiary structure business share capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
ML BT R ERTLARRE F£E A48 HEBAT
HEASEE EBRERL EEBY /#REE BRED #E B IEEHR
Starlight Media Inc. Corporation United States of America  US$1,000,000 100% - 100% Media and movie operation
Ordinary share
N EFHBERE Li80%1,000,000% T BREREYEHS
Marshall Holding, LLC Corporation United States of America  US$7,138,000 51% - 51% Investment holding
Ordinary share
R FHNBERE LiAfk7,138,000% T REER
Marshall Film, LLG Corporation United States of America  US$8,413,867 46.15% - 90.49% Media and movie operation
Ordinary share
N IHNZARE LiE08,413,867E T ERRETVER
Marshall Movie, Inc. Corporation United States of America  US$20,000 46.15% - 100% Media and movie operation
Ordinary share
A EHBERE E1RMR20,000% T BREREYEHS
Starry Ample Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 100% - 100%  Film Investment
N ERENES B BEFRE
Golden Move Ltd.* Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 100% - 100% Trading and investment
A RERLES 1%L BHUREE
Beautiful Asia Ltd.™* Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 100% - 100% Trading and investment
AF] RERLES e BHUREE
IEEEXERBR AR Wholly-foreign-owned The PRC HK$100,000,000 100% - 100% Media and movie operation
enterprise
NEBELE e 100,000,000/ 70 BELREYER
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continuead)

*

Zhejiang Sino Green Energy Technology Company Limited
is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under
PRC law.

* Golden Move Ltd. was established on 28 September 2018
in the British Virgin Islands.

Beautiful Asia Ltd. was established on 28 September 2018
in the British Virgin Islands.

e e 2= b EHEABR QA is registered as a wholly-
fore|gn—owned enterprise under PRC law and was
established on 26 July 2018.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for available-
for-sale investments, derivative financial instruments,
promissory note and contingent consideration payable
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Going concern assumption

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
incurred a net loss of HK$55,518,000 and had net cash
outflows used in operating activities of HK$277,025,000.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current
liabilities and total deficiency in assets of approximately
HK$59,009,000 and HK$163,352,000, respectively.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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At F5 R R B aE
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continueq)

Going concern assumption (continued)

In view of these circumstances, the Directors have given
consideration to the future liquidity and performance of
the Group and its available sources of finance in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources
to continue as a going concern. In order to improve the
Group’s liquidity and cash flows to sustain the Group as a
going concern, the Group implemented or is in the process
of implementing the following measures:

(@)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s borrowings
with total amount of HK$130.9 million could be
renewed to remediate the situation of working
capital shortage. The Group management undertook
necessary measures and signed the extension
agreements with the lenders regarding HK$130.9
million borrowings in April 2019 to extend the due
date to December 2020.

The management has budgeted and laid out its
business plan for the next twelve months and seeks
to obtain profits and net cash inflow from the movies
and television series the Group invested.

The Group has proposed to sell certain film
prepayments to third parties, to ensure the business
has sufficient working capital. In 2019, 10% of the
film prepayments has been sold to Mengzhimeng
(Beijing) Film and Television Cultural Communication
Ltd. and total funds of approximately HK$23.5 million
has been obtained by the Group as at the date of
this report. The remaining film prepayments may also
be sold in future.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continueq)

Going concern assumption (continued)

()

The Group actively explores the availability of
alternative source of financing. The Group has
obtained new long-term borrowings of HK$11.4
million in February 2019. In April 2019, the Group
issued bonds with conditional conversion rights of
HK$180.0 million which may be converted into 72
million shares at an exercise price of HK$2.5 and
is matured in 2022. In addition, the Group has the
intention to issue additional shares to new investors
in 2019.

The Group is taking measures to tighten cost
controls over administrative and other operating
expenses aiming at improving the working capital
and cash flow position.

The Group has received HK$365.4 million from a
holding company in late April 2019 as a long-term
borrowing which is matured in 2022. The holding
company of the Group will continue to provide
financial support to the Group.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the
above measures would bring sufficient cash to ensure that

the Group will continue as a going concern.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continueq)

Going concern assumption (continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s
cash flow forecast prepared by management which covers
a period of twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. They are of the opinion that, taking into account
the above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company believe it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 on a going concern basis.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to write down the
values of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for any further liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continueq) 21 IRUEE »)

103

Basis of consolidation (continuea)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continueq)

Basis of consolidation (continuea)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of

22 EFtHREB RWE

AEBMENANFE 2 HBHRERERERAATH
IR R HRELER -

BREMBREEN UROBERNFXZZ
FARLEF A DRI E

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 4 with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue

HKFRS 15 from Contracts with Customers
Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property
HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
2014-2016 Cycle HKAS 28

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the adoption of the above new
and revised standards has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(@)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, bringing together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments: classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting.

With the exception of hedge accounting, which the
Group has applied prospectively, the Group has
recognised the transition adjustments against the
applicable opening balances in equity at 1 January
2018. Therefore, the comparative information was
not restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of
adopting HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial
position, including the effect of replacing HKAS 39’s
incurred credit loss calculations with HKFRS 9’s
expected credit losses (“ECLs”).
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(@)  (continued)

Classification and measurement
(continued)

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under
HKAS 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9

as at 1 January 2018 is as follows:

22 BEIBIREE RIKE 2

@ (&)

DERE (#)

R —\F—A—BRBESEE
B %00%: &9 IR I (8 SR IS BB 80 35 0 o
ERIFOF IS B0 2 BRI T

HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9 measurement
BRGSO E EEMBRERAIBOSRE
Re-
Category Amount  classification ECL Other Amount Category
LY &8 ENNE EHEEER b1 £ ] Ehl
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i TR THT FHEL TATL THT
Financial assets SHEE
Available-for-sale investments A {45 & AFS! 9,313 9313) - - -
To: Financial assets at fair valie &2 : AT EABHELZ
through profit or loss SREE f) 9313 - -
Trade receivables BRRNTE L&R? 6,214 - - - 6,214 AC?
Financial assets includedin s ATBFFUR EfofElk
prepayments, other FEREMEES
receivables and other assets  2BEE L8R 10,531 - - - 10,531 AC
Cash and cash equivalents BeRAEEEES L&R 96,647 - - - 96,647 AC
Financial assets at far valie ~ RATEFABEZ
through profit or loss SREE FVPL* - 9,313 - - 9,313 FVPL
From: Available-for-sale B HNERE
investments 01 9,313 - -
Totel assets aEE 102,705 - - - 122,705
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(@) (continued)

Classification and measurement
(continued)

1
2

3

(i)

AFS: Available-for-sale investments

L&R: Loans and receivables

AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised
cost

FVPL: Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

The Group has classified its listed investments
previously classified as available-for-sale investments
as financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss as these equity investments did not
pass the contractual cash flow characteristics test in
HKFRS 9.

There were no changes to the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities upon adoption of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 22 EFBUREHRIEE =
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)
(@)  (continued) @ (&)
Classification and measurement PERFE (&)
(continued)
Impact on reserves and accumulated YRERENERYZE
losses
The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on reserves and MEERBNGREENEOFREHE R
accumulated losses is as follows: 2EBENFENT

Reserves and
accumulated

losses
fEE R R EE
HK$’000
T T
Fair value reserve under HKFRS 9 EHEMEREENSESSRIET AFERE
(Investment revaluation reserve (EEETERIFEIRETRE
under HKAS 39) Ef#E)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under RIBEB B 2R FE30%
HKAS 39 R-E—tF+_A=Z+—BZ&H 1,804
Reclassification of financial assets from BemEERABRLEREET»ESE
available-for-sale investments to financial assets EZAFEFABRZ S RMEE
at fair value through profit or loss (1,804)
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 1R15 &8 B 78 i & £ 81| 55958
RZZE—N\F—A—B2Z&#% -
Accumulated losses 2itEE
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under RBEEZ T ERIE395
HKAS 39 R-T—tE+-A=+—H2Z%&H (330,360)
Reclassification of available-for-sale investments Al HERBEEFNHBEEZ A FETA
to financial assets at fair value through BamzemiE
profit or loss 1,804
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 1RIE & B B 53R & X B 9%k
RZZE-—NF—HA—BZ#&#H (328,556)
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(b)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15
provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are
included in notes 4 and 5 to the financial statements.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 15, the
Group has changed the accounting policy with
respect to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(b)

(continueq)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
modified retrospective method of adoption. Under
this method, the standard can be applied either to
all contracts at the date of initial application or only
to contracts that are not completed at this date. The
Group has elected to apply the standard to contracts
that are not completed as at 1 January 2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of
HKFRS 15 was recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits as at 1 January
2018. Therefore, the comparative information was
not restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 11, HKAS 18 and related interpretations.

The impact of adoption of HKFRS 15 is described
below:

(i) Consideration received from customers in
advance

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received a consideration (or an
amount of consideration that is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays the consideration
before the Group transfers goods or services to
the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(b)  (continued)

)

(i)

(continued)

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
recognised consideration received from
customers in advance as other payables.
Under HKFRS 15, the amount is classified as
contract liabilities.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the
Group reclassified HK$1,024,000 from other
payables to contract liabilities as at 1 January
2018 in relation to the consideration received
from customers in advance as at 1 January
2018.

As at 31 December 2018, under HKFRS 15,
HK$1,290,000 was reclassified from other
payables to contract liabilities in relation to
the consideration received from customers
in advance for the sale of chemical products,
and energy conservation and environmental
protection products.

Revenue from film investments

A contract asset is an entity’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods and
services that the entity has transferred to a
customer. The earned consideration that is
conditional on completion of film exhibition and
release to all distribution sources is recorded as
a contract asset.

As at 31 December 2018, the adoption of
HKFRS 15 resulted in a decrease in trade
receivables of HK$54,850,000 and an increase
in contract assets of HK$54,850,000.
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At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 %g%ﬁ@*i?&ﬂ@ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%#ﬁ%

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
the financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture*

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
2015-2017 Cycle HKAS 12 and HKAS 23!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption

1 1 3 Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets
to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020.
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At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 EMEMERERMWEEMBRE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in
January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard
includes two elective recognition exemptions for lessees —
leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).
The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition
of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class
of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and
reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required
to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such
as change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases
and finance leases
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 EMEMERERMWEEMBRE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more
extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees
can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The
Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
at 1 January 2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In
addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. The right-of-use asset will be measured at
the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. The
Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by the
standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end within
12 months as of the date of initial application. During
2018, the Group has performed a detailed assessment
on the impact of adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group has
estimated that right-of-use assets of HK$7,670,000 and
lease liabilities of HK$7,929,000 will be recognised at 1
January 2019 with a corresponding adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of
HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements
relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii)
how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses,
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use
of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of application as an adjustment to the opening equity at
the date of initial application, without the restatement of
comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continueq)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —E—\F+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continueq)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments,
available-for-sale investments, promissory note and
contingent consideration payable at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

Level 2 -

Level 3 -

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract assets, financial assets,
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal
group classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continueq)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —E—\F+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTBERME &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued) BER %)
or %
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (o) i ??ST?‘J E Gy I EEEANEE
conditions applies: Bz

()  the entity and the Group are members of the (i) %EREXSEBR-—SEZKE
same group; ~A]

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —EBLAS—BEB(IEMERZ
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow AR -MBARKRAREWBARF)
subsidiary of the other entity); ZHERAIREEDE:

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of (il ZEEOAXEEHVAR-—F=F2Z
the same third party; BEDE:

(v) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —BRAF-ZFEEZEEDLE
and the other entity is an associate of the third ME—BERAEZFE-_FEB2EHE
entity; A A]

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for () ZEBARSBENHEANEEFHE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or ZEEMEENER T ZBEEET
an entity related to the Group; EEl

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZEEX(FT#HAIATES sk
person identified in (a); RN

(vl a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) A ()i )FﬁE%kE'JA:t”ﬁT‘T BEERY
influence over the entity or is a member of the 25 YJ% ZER(IZERZEA
key management personnel of the entity (or of AFEEEENKE: K

a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it (vii) ZEBIEMBEEMNNE RFM
is a part, provides key management personnel REEFAEENG R AEHES
services to the Group or to the parent of the ERABRG-

Group.

1 25 Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale,
it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used or useful life for this purpose
are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 25%
Office equipment 25%
Land and building 2.5%
Motor vehicles 30%

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 2 years (50%)

Leasehold improvements
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continuea)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments
and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including
prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease
terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)"
below.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEFTBEREE 2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018) (continuea)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (‘SPPI”)
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018) (continuea)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments) (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured
at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if
doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018) (continuea)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative
is required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:
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31 December 2018 —E—\F+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available-for-sale are those which are neither classified as
held for trading nor designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(continueq)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable before 1 January 2018)” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term
are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets if management has the ability and intention
to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEFTBEREE 2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(continueq)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018 and policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018 and policies under HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

(continueq)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —E—\F+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (@ 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —E—\F+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (continuea)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continueq)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (continuea)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continueq)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the statement
of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available-for-sale are not reversed through the statement of
profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
HKA? 39 applicable before 1 January
2018

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, derivative financial instruments, promissory
note, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, convertible bonds, contingent consideration
payable and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not

include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018) (continueq)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are
satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss, except for the gains or losses arising from
the Group’s own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification
to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or
loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018

24 FESTETBEREIE 2

cmEeEBE(B=ZE—N\E—H—H
HEA BB RELEREIRIE
TeBERRR=ZE—N\E—H—H
AEAEBETERSEIRET
ZHER) (@)

HE&TE (%)

EBEBLUAFHEIRHSMERE (RZ2F-N\
F—A—BRERZEEETEAEIGRIET
ZBE) (#)
RYVEHERREE RSB BREARFEIIRD
TRAE DRVEERAEAERNNTAELES
At ERIFEI95R Z R LR T B E ©

BEMRER

RERERR FFERERRERELRAERF
RRMBHEKATE MR ZEZEMTRE
BEUBRTAEAARIR - RILERAE
FMBERBERNEZBEBRRETEEZRBNE
mARPHER -

ATEEERAR BB TE S 2 TR
B TERERERNXBREIZER
IR - BN R ABRRIESRENK
o



Vo

Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the statement of financial position, net of transaction
costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount
is carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost
basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion
option that is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of the
conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated
from its liability component. On initial recognition,
the derivative component of the convertible bonds is
measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative component
is recognised as the liability component. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and derivative
components of the convertible bonds based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative
components when the instruments are initially recognised.
The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability. The
portion relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEFTBEREE 2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Film product and film investments

Film product represents the costs of flms produced by the
Group, or for which the Group has acquired distribution
rights, and which are classified and capitalised as films
in production within film products. For fims produced by
the Group, capitalised costs include all direct production
costs, production overheads and capitalised interest.
Costs of film product comprises fees paid and payable
under agreements, direct costs/expenses incurred during
the production of films, fees for the reproduction and/
or distribution of films. Production overheads include
allocable costs of individuals or departments with exclusive
or significant responsibility for production of films and
excludes prints and advertising costs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —E—\F+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Film product and film investments (continued)

Film investments represent films invested by the Group.
The investments are governed by the relevant agreements
entered into between the Group and the production
houses whereby the Group is entitled to certain rights
related to the films and benefits generated from the
distribution of the related films based on the percentage of
capital invested in the films.

Film product and film investments are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and identified impairment loss.
The Group amortises its costs based on the proportion
of actual income earned during the year to the total
estimation of projected revenue. Any portion of the
unamortised amount that appears not to be recoverable is
impaired in the period the loss becomes evident.

Impairment assessment of film product and film
investments is assessed on an annual basis or whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount is below the recoverable amount, where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. The recoverable amounts of film product and film
investments are determined and reviewed on a title-by-title
basis and are based on higher of value in use and fair value
less cost to sell.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, and the taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1
January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Revenue is recognised when the Group has fulfiled the
obligations stated in the contracts, and when the Group
has transferred control over relative services or goods to
the customer, on the following bases:

(@)

revenue from film investments is recognised based
on the pre-determined share of the sales proceeds
from the distribution of the related films set out in the
respective film investment agreements over the films
screening period according to the box office and
when released to other distribution sources;

revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, which is at the time of delivery and
the title is passed to customer;

revenue from promotion commission represents
revenue from gaming promotion operations which is
recognised upon promotion services are rendered;
and

revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
when services are provided.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1
January 2018) (continuea)

Other income

(@)

interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument of
the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1
January 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

from the rendering of services, revenue is recognised
in the period in which the services are rendered; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset;
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contract assets (applicable from 1
January 2018)

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1
January 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received
a consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due)
from the customer. If a customer pays the consideration
before the Group transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when
the Group performs under the contract.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. This subsidiary is required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

24 FESTETBEREIE 2

HipESEF

BkL

AEFEBERFIMRBEFTEIEN &R —I18
FERE TG AEERKREFNFE ([BE
EFTE ) HFEBEREEEAF SN —ET
DLEE WEERBERESFTERAK AR
NRIBERRIBERXAR REEFTENEER
—([lAEYEENESHE HAEEMNEED
e RNEBRBEBEETEMENRERRZE
BEFA-

AEERFEAESENHBRARNEEARAS
AN e 77 T BRT AR AL P SRR IR 5 8 o R P BB
NAARTIERXMET AN LRAPRERS
AR R REREH REKRESFEIR
Al R EN SR IE R R R o

&R

B Rt EREREE (AT EME
ERESEFREREAHENEE) BEM
ANEEXRNARERERREEENHBORA -
EEEEELERERBRAIHER BE
RALIEERE - MARBREEBREENRE
EEFERKREMRBRNEERA  BEAL
M B ERCAHRR - BT A b B ER AR E £
AXH - BERABRE—HERBHREEESE
EERE R E MR

ERANLRERERRAT
2 )\FFRH

156



157

Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEFTBEREE 2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange reserves. On disposal of foreign operations, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Amortisation and impairment for film product
and film investments

The costs of film product and film investments are
amortised upon the release of a film based on the
proportion of actual income earned during the year to the
total estimated projected revenue. Additional amortisation
is made if estimated projected revenues are lower than
previous estimations. These estimated projected revenues
can change significantly due to the variety of factors. Such
change in revenue projections or estimations may result
in a change in the rate of amortisation. Any portion of the
unamortised amount that appeared not to be recoverable
is impaired in the period the loss becomes evident. The
recoverable amounts are reference to marketability of
each film and current market conditions. These estimated
recoverable amounts can change significantly due to
the variety of factors. This could have an impact on the
Group’s result of operations. The carrying amount of fim
investments and film product are disclosed in notes 20 and
21 to the financial statements, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Revenue from film investments

Revenue from film investments is recognised based on
the pre-determined share of the sales proceeds from the
distribution of the related films set out in the respective
film investment agreements over the films screening period
according to the box office and when released to other
distribution sources. When the final settlement statement
is not yet available, the Group estimates the revenue from
film investments based on pre-determined share and the
preliminary settlement statement.

Fair value measurement of financial liabilities

The fair value assessment of financial liabilities of the
Group, which include derivative financial instruments, a
promissory note and a contingent consideration payable
measured at level 3 fair value hierarchy, requires significant
estimates, including estimating the price earnings
ratios and determining appropriate discount rates and
other assumptions. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates cloud materially affect the respective fair value of
these financial liabilities.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount
of goodwill at 31 December 2018 amounted to nil (2017:
HK$54,827,000). Further details are given in note 16.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on
trade receivables, contract assets and other
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type and customer type).
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on
trade receivables, contract assets and other
receivables (continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in different operating
sectors, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in notes
17 and 19 to the financial statements, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —%

4,

—-N\F+t-A=t-H

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@ Media and culture business segment, which
engages in investment, production and distribution
of entertainment content such as films and television
series; and

(b)  Entertainment and gaming business segment, which
engages in receiving commission and services
income from casino entertainment and gaming
promotion services; and

(c) Chemical products, and energy conservation and
environmental protection products segment, which
engages in trading of chemical products, and energy
conservation and environmental protection products.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before
tax except that corporate and other unallocated gains,
interest income, corporate and other unallocated expense,
finance costs, change in fair value of derivative financial
liabilities change in fair value of promissory note and
change in fair value of contingent consideration payable
are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial liabilities,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, convertible
bonds, tax payable and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018

HESBEH

HAEIER M- $%l@fﬁémﬁﬂ
EEENSBE YEBUT =2
=B

(a) ﬁﬁ&ﬂm%ﬁ“*
DHEZLRERBE

3_<m>_<h'.\
B
I [
NN
D)

WERE EER
IR R

(o) MERBEEBRDI HBEHHEIGIRE
7 I HE B RS P RV & R ARSI ¢ K

() EIERUKRERERRRERD S HE
BEEEMUREGERIRRER -

EREBVERASERED Mo RE  UE
HAEBERD B ZRE RFERR - D BRA
TRBEAI 2| MM, B IE (T AR B
W%ﬂ/%ﬁ FHEEE) A - BT ERTA
wA RN ERAREBREATRR, '
— B EEEREMARY B  FBWA B
ENHEMADERS BMEREL TEEHA
BERATFEEZS AELRBEATEESHREMK
AREBERVFEED T ABBAE-

DWMEETERREMRDEALRAREE
BB RZEEERERIEEER -

THMEETEBETLEERARB: +§ﬁﬁ&E
E ARRES BARBEREMGRD

&ATEE %Emmﬁﬁﬁﬁ&@ﬂ%



"

Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT 4, BEZGBEHR =2
INFORMATION (continued)
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with DEEHEHERERENRERBITMELRZRE
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third SHETHEMANEBETT
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE—_T—/N\E+-_B=+—-HILLEE
Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Media and Entertainment environmental
culture and gaming protection
business business products Total
tIERUR
BiER RER HikER
XALEH BRER REER &%
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET TET
Segment revenue (note 5) P EREE (B EES5)
Sales to external customers MR FHE 55,404 394 17,687 73,485
Segment results HipEE (70,148) 1,140 (5,151) (74,159)
Reconciliation: i
Corporate and other unallocated gains A 7] R A iR A Bz 12,149
Interest Income FIEHA 24
Corporate and other unallocated ARREMRABRES
expense (22,979)
Finance costs BERA (99,700)
Change in fair value of derivative TELBARNATES
financial liabilities 36,153
Change in fair value of promissory note & X 23 7 N FEEE) 91,431
Change in fair value of contingent ERXARBHATES
consideration payable 1,563
Loss before tax BREAIEE (55,518)
Segment Assets SREE 404,035 11,065 4,012 419,112
Reconciliation: iR
Corporate and other unallocated assets A7 R E A D E L E 27,341
Total assets BEE 446,453
Segment liabilities PipEE 11,616 25,462 4,951 42,029
Reconciliation: #Hik:
Corporate and other unallocated RAIREMRSEAE
liabilities 567,776
Total liabilities FaY=ir 609,805
ERLIREEFHRAT
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

4,

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

4, BESBEFE 2

BE-_F—-N\E+=-A=+—HLEEE (&)

Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Mediaand  Entertainment  environmental
culture and gaming protection
business business products Unallocated Total
tIERUER
BIRRIE RERIER EiERIRR
E37 %% ER RPE &%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET THET THET TET
Other segment information {15 £ &%}
Depreciation and amortisation  #7 & % % ¢4 18,782 601 209 46 19,638
Gain on derecognition ofa R IFERREHER A EZ
promissory note measured  E L E IR
at amortised cost - - - (5,377) (5,377)
Loss on disposal of HEMBRARZEA
subsidiaries - - - 722 722
Change in fair value of MTE2REENATERSY
derivative financial liabilities - - - (36,153) (36,153)
Impairment losses/(reversal £ B RAKEE
of impairment losses) REEE/
on financial and contract (REBEER)ZFE
assets, net 1,142 (3,184) 215 - (1,827)
Impairment loss on EYRNREZREESE
film prepayments 1,921 - - - 1,921
Impairment loss on property, 1% - BE R EREER
plant and equipment - 262 445 - 707
Impairment loss on goodwill ~ EEHEEE 54,827 - - - 54,827
Impairment loss on fim EYREZAERE
investments 10,356 - - - 10,356
Impairment loss on EYEMHESE
film product 17,018 - - - 17,018
Change in fair value of BRATEFABENSR
financial assets at fair value ~ EE 2 AFEE
through profit or loss - - - 797 797
Change in fair value of AAEBNTEE
a promissory note - - - (91,431) (91,431)
Change in fair value of ERIARELTES
a contingent consideration
payable - - - (1,563) (1,563)
Finance cost BEIEN - - - 99,700 99,700
Capital expenditure* BARZ 665 622 - 6 1,923

*

and equipment and intangible assets including assets from

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

the acquisition of a subsidiary.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—\F+-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4, BEZGBEHR =2
INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE_Z—+tFT_A=1T—HLFE
Chemical
products
and energy
conservation
and
Media and Entertainment environmental
culture and gaming protection
business business products Total
CIER
BHER IRER AR B e
X% BRER BRER Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT FET FHET
Segment revenue PRI
Sales to external customers mINBE P E - 9,008 30,860 39,958
Segment results HipEE (126,743) (17,906) (12,416) (157,065)
Reconciliation: iR
Dividend income and unallocated gains A% B A B & 2 B de sk 713
Interest income FlEWA 33
Corporate and other unallocated ARREMRABRES
expense (34,416)
Finance costs BMEXA (77,351)
Change in fair value of MELBABBRATES
derivative financial liabilities (29,898)
Loss before tax BT AIEE (297,979)
Segment Assets SipEE 192,052 46,999 12,027 251,078
Reconciliation: ik
Corporate and other unallocated assets A7 R E AN E L E 91,354
Total assets RnEE 342,432
Segment liabilities PBERE 21,068 29,172 11,789 62,029
Reconciliation: iR
Corporate and other unallocated ARAREMRSBEAE
liabilities 390,848
Total liabilities BaE 452,877
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued)

4, BESBEFE 2

Year ended 31 December 2017 (continued) HE_Z—+tF+-A=1+—HLEFE(F
Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Media and Entertainment environmental
culture and gaming protection
business business products Unallocated Total
EIERAR
BHREEE IRERIEF EiRE IR R
% 5% Em ROBE =S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT AT THT TR FAT
Other segment information HithpipEs
Capital expenditure* BARRAZ 68,517 - 4,904 177 73,598
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 173 255 714 330 1,472
Impairment loss on trade B 5 REMEWGER
and other receivables HEBE - 17,913 5,823 - 23,736
Impairment loss on property, mE - BERXEREESR
plant and equipment 7 1,209 2,493 1,423 5,132
Impairment loss on goodwil BEREEE 43,844 - - - 43,844
Impairment loss on HRHERERERE
available-for-sale investments - - - 3,000 3,000
Change in fair value fTEemBELTE
of derivative financial liabilities ) - - - 29,893 29,893
Finance cost BERSPRAR 30 - 5 77,316 77,351

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018



s

Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4, BERBEHE 2

INFORMATION (continued)

i & & #
(a) KEISHBEFZ K

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

Revenue from external customers

REIMBEEZKE
2018 2017
—E—-N\%FE —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHEIT FAEIT
Australia BN 318 7,272
United States of America EFBRAER 55,404 -
Panama Be5 76 -
Kingdom of Cambodia RIFEE - 1,826
PRC Fh 17,687 30,860
73,485 39,958
The revenue information above is based on the Lt EmER T ERE P TER -
locations of the customers.
(b) Non-current assets b) FREBEE
Non-current assets
ERSHEE
2018 2017
—E—-)\F —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T T
Hong Kong B 1,202 1,106
Australia SELM 8,503 8,713
PRC Fh 937 1,311
United States of America EFRE RE - 68,516
10,642 79,646

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes available-

for-sale investments.

AR EEERTIEREEMEL
B RAHEERE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers contributing over 10% of

BESBEE »)

FHREIEREFZEHR

KEMEREERSAERI0%H T ERFPHI

total revenue of the Group is set out below: mEHI
2018 2017
—F—-N\%F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Customer A ZEFEA 55,404 -
Customer B =FB 14,110 14,792
Customer C =FEC - 8,635
Customer D =FD - 4,231
69,514 27,658
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. Wk - Hb W R s
GAINS
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WaEm DT
2018 2017
—F—-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHETT FAET
Revenue from contracts with customers X B 2 F & 49,2 Wz
Revenue from film investments B 55,404 -
Sales of goods HEE M 17,687 30,860
Promotion commission HERS 76 2,827
Rendering of services R AR 318 6,271
73,485 39,958

1 69 Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i)  Disaggregated revenue information

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

5. Wrzs - HaUg A\ RUzE =)

KEEFEHNZWE
() DHFKzZEER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_T-N\F+-A=+—HLEE

Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Mediaand  Entertainment environmental
culture and gaming protection
Segments o business business products Total
tIERUR
BiER RER HEERIRIR
p (A BRER Em -1
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FTET
Type of goods or services ERBRBER
Revenue from film investments &8 B WA 55,404 - - 55,404
Sales of goods HEEM - - 17,687 17,687
Promotion commission KEES - 76 - 76
Rendering of services R RS - 318 - 318
Total revenue from contracts REEPEHZ
with customers stk 55,404 39%4 17,687 73,485
Geographical markets WEHIG
Australia BN - 318 - 318
United States of America EHRER 55,404 - - 55,404
Panama B25 - 76 - 76
PRC H - - 17,687 17,687
Total revenue from contracts RERFPAEHZ
with customers WaBE 55,404 394 17,687 73,485
EXALREEBARAT
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5 UWas HWA RS =)
GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEHZ2WE (&)
(continueq)
()  Disaggregated revenue information () DHFEUZEF (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-FT—-N\E+=-A=+—HLEE
Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Media and  Entertainment  environmental
culture and gaming protection
Segments o8 business business products Total
tIERUR
BiRRL RN EH BigE RIR{R
2% E3 Ef &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Timing of revenue W 25 B R A
recognition
At a point in time P 26 55,404 394 17,687 73,485
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue WTEHIWKRERFPEN ZWGZHDEE
from contracts with customers with the amounts BT =S RER R

disclosed in the segment information:

Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Media and  Entertainment  environmental
Revenue from contracts REEFEHZ culture and gaming protection
with customers g business business products Total
tIERUR
BER RER ERERIRIR
XALEH BRER Em -5
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TET
External customers NP 55,404 394 17,687 73,485

1 71 Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5.
GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continueq)

(i)  Disaggregated revenue information
(continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

Wiz - e N\ B Uiz (2

REFEFEHZWRE (&)
() DHUBEF (&)

TREJNBEHRBEBETAGHE
BENAREHHCERRESR

2018
—E-N\FE
HK$’000
FET

it
Jirg
2o

Sales of goods iz

1,024

ERANLRERERRAT
“E-N\FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. Wi HW A Rgss o)
GAINS (continued)
2018 2017
—ET—)\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FA&TT
Other income Hibgr A
Tax rebate R 10,439 -
Bank interest income RITH BUA 24 33
Interest income from loans receivable  FEUE 3k 2 F B UL A - 308
Dividend income AR B A - 330
Others HA 282 75
10,745 746
Gains I &5
Foreign exchange gains HNE U 5 552 11,832
Compensation from litigation EEA R 6,957 -
Gain on derecognition of a promissory — #R IFFERIREE AT E 2
note measured at amortised cost A R 2 NS 5,377 -
12,886 11,832
23,631 12,578

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BxBiAIRSIE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEEZBBRAIEEIIING, (GTAUTE
(crediting): HgZERN:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET T T
Cost of sales $HE AR 35,503 43,161
Amortisation of film investments* T & 1% & i# 85~ 20 18,241 -
Amortisation of film product* T &2 o # $5* 21 - 173
Depreciation of property, Y -BERREZITE 13
plant and equipment 1,397 1,299
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI Bl & 810 681
Employee benefit expense EERAMAX (MBRESFK
(excluding directors’ and FEZTHA B 2 H
chief executive’s remuneration  (Ff#£8) )
(note 8))
Wages and salaries TENF® 10,480 13,225
Pension scheme contributions i& R 5+ 2] £ 7t 664 464
11,144 13,689
Impairment of financial and TRREHNEERIE -
contract asset, net: HEE
Impairment losses on trade B S W IBE R EEE 17
receivables 164 5,228
(Reversal of impairment ST AT RIE - 18
losses)/ impairment losses H b e Uk SR8 K
on financial assets included HEthEENSREE
in prepayments, other (REEERER)
receivables and other assets ~ JR{EE 18 (2,545) 18,508
Impairment losses on contract & #I& & R EE 1B 19
assets 554 -
(1,827) 23,736
EXLREEBEFRAT

“E-N\FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

6.

LOSS BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting): (continued)

6. KRBiaEE 2

AEEZBRBAEETNGR, (FFA) A

TRBERER: (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FTHET T
Impairment loss on A HEREREREER
available-for-sale investments - 3,000
Impairment loss on B RN RIBEREEE 18
film prepayments 1,921 -
Impairment loss on BRRERARSE 20
film investments 10,356 -
Impairment loss on film product & 5 & T8 (B &5 18 21 17,018 -
Impairment loss on property, — #1% - W5 KR & REEIE 13
plant and equipment 707 5,132
Change in fair value of financial R AFEF ABEZZ EBEE
assets at fair value through NEEE
profit or loss 797 -
Change in fair value of MEeMBEZATFEES)
derivative financial liabilities (36,153) 29,893
Impairment loss on goodwill R E e 18 16 54,827 43,844
Gain on derecognition of a BIFERL BN AT ES
promissory note measured EGE S
at amortised cost (5,377) -
Change in fair value of EARBEAFEE
a promissory note (91,431) -
Change in fair value of JERSARERFESR
contingent consideration
payable (1,563) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries & ff & A 7] §5 18 37 722 -

* The amortisation of film investments and film product are
included in “Cost of Sales” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCE COSTS 7.

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

M5 R M EE
31 December 2018 —Z—\F+=-A=+—H
RAHE
SECEEB IRMERASITIAT :

2018 2017
—E—)\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FET
Interest on bank and other borrowings #2717 & B b & E X &
(including convertible bonds) (BHEITBRKRES) 98,332 77,068
Interest expense on promissory note A EBMN SR (H7E28)
(note 28) 1,368 283
99,700 77,351
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERFETHASHM

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

B8 LR A - BB A R EHI5383(1)@) - (b) -
OROEARAT (REFEFFER) BHIE
DHHE L AFEEEREBTRALZHH
mF :

Group
£HE

2018 2017

—E—)\F R+

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FAETT

Fees we 6,647 6,248

Other emoluments: H Al < -

Salaries, allowances and e R NEYESF

benefits in kind 3,000 3,260

Pension scheme contributions IRURET IR 18 26

3,018 3,286

9,665 9,534

EXILRERBARAS
“z-nxsg 110



177

Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

8. EERFEITHBIAESHMM =)

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(continued)

(@) Independent non-executive directors (@)

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

in 2018 were as follows:

BUFATES
R-Z— \FENBIUERTESZH

2018 2017

—E-N\E —T—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFHEIT THETT

Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak RAEEAE 240 141

Mr. Wong Wai Kwan FEFESA 240 141

Mr. Kong Chi Mo TEREE 240 141

Mr. Hong Tao BB 240 141

Mr. Daniel Domingos Antonio Daniel Domingos Antoniost 4

(retired in 2017) (RZZT—+FRE) - 100
Mr. Chow Wing Tung JB KR 4 A

(retired in 2017) (RZE—+EFRIE) - 100
Mr. Kwok Chi Chung FEBLE

(retired in 2017) (RZZT—+FRE) - 100

960 864

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2017: Nil).

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(continued)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive

Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —E—\E+=-A=+—H

8. EERFEITBIAESHMM =)

(b)) BTES-

FATESREET

director and the chief executive BAEBE
Salaries
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
& BUR
ik EPEH  BREEER @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHTL FHTL FHT FATL
2018 —E-0\E
Executive directors: HTER:
Mr. Gao Qun BELE 287 - - 287
Mr. Chau Chit BE T - 3,000 18 3,018
Ms. Chen Hong BRI &+ 1,200 - - 1,200
Mr. Hung Ching Fung HEEEE 960 - - 960
Mr. Li Haitian ZHREE 600 - - 600
Mr. Yan Xu (retired) BEBLE (BEA) 600 - - 600
3,647 3,000 18 6,665
Non-executive director: FRTESE:
Mr. Wang Shoulei IF&EE 240 - - 240
Chief executive; FETHRAR:
Mr. Luo Lei BELE 1,800 - - 1,800
5,687 3,000 18 8,705

ERANLRERERRAT
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(continued)

8. EERFEITHBIAESHMM =)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) BMITES - FHITESRETESNT
director and the chief executive BAE (#)
(continueq)
Salaries
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e RRR
ik EWMEN  RIAGEIRR w@Er
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT AT TET THETT
2017 —E—+F
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Chau Chit B & - 3,250 18 3,268
Ms. Chen Hong BRI &+ 767 - - 767
Mr. Hung Ching Fung HBIE S 960 - - 960
Mr. Li Haitian FEREE 351 - - 351
Mr. Yan Xu (retired) LA (BRIE) 767 - - 767
Dr. Lam Yin Lok (retired) WERLEL (BRE) 500 - - 500
Mr. Ng Kuen Hon (retired) REELAE (BRI 200 10 - 210
Mr. Tsui Kin Ming (retired) REBLEE (BRE) 700 - 8 708
Non-executive director: FHTES: 4,245 3,260 26 7,531
Mr. Wang Shoulei FFEEE 84 - - 84
Chief executive: TETHAE:
Mr. Luo Lei BERE 1,055 - - 1,055
5,384 3,260 26 8,670

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited

Annual Report 2018

AEEHBEZTRTIETRABRER

FAEREEAFM L -



i

e

»

Notes to Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three directors and the chief executive (2017: three
directors and the chief executive), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2017: one)
highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —E—\E+=-A=+—H

AEmEEFMAL

AEEREARSFHNEERE=ZRESENTTR
BE(CTE—LF ZREZNTHRER) &
FHMAFBHEHN EXHES - AFEHEBH—F
—EEF - R)BREFMALTAEIEAEE
EEMFTETRAR  EFHMFHBOT:

2018 2017

—ET—)\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FA&T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - 3285 R EW4EF 878 762
Pension scheme contributions RIRET K 17 18
895 780

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

MEeE T RENFEENIFTRTHRARN
= HERMABMT

Number of employees

REAR

2018 2017

—E-\% T —tF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 1 1
EXLREKERRAT

“E-N\FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits in Hong
Kong during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

Fiia b2

HRAEEREE_Z—-N\F+_-_A=1+—H
I FEYEEAEMNEERRTOEN B K
RERENSHARER (T —tF 8) -H
fib 3 (B 27 B BR A i N A TR AN 6% [ 4 8 SR A5 T
HEBR (KBDEAER) ZERREAE-

2018 2017
—E—N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FET

Current — Hong Kong BNE— &%
Charge for the year AFEZ M - -
Overprovision in prior years BEFEREEE - -
Current — Elsewhere BVHA — H fth b [= - -
Deferred IR - _
Total tax charge for the year NEERHIAL LB - -

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

—N\E+-A=t+-H

31 December 2018 —%

»

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FIB8EAX 2

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and

a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory
tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ)&ﬂ%iuw\ﬂ&Eﬁﬁﬂ’“

AEFEMAAERETHEE 2 AR 6
NEBRMEAE 2 BIERAZHER  UAREAM
R(AVAEMER)MEBEEHE Z2EERNT

Pl 8

2018 —E-N\E
2018 2017
—E-N\FE S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Loss before tax B B Al S 18 (55,518) (297,979)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of — IZE N F% K16.5%:+ & v F5 18
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) T—+5§:16.5%) (9,160) (49,166)
Effect of a different tax rate of a — Eﬁfﬂ AERERLE 2
subsidiary operating in another B A ERETR 2
jurisdiction (7,786) (12,566)
Effect of tax loss not recognised AERGIEBE & 16,951 61,764
Other b} (5) (33)

Income tax expense

CIEEEIEE3

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised for the

WARMRATIHBERBELEHEEE

following:
2018 2017
—E—-)\F —+fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Unused tax losses KBARIEEE 125,852 70,006
Bt eEmERAD

“E-N\FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —%

—-N\F+t-A=t-H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq)

11.

At 31 December 2018, under the current tax legislation
of other jurisdictions, the Group’s unused tax losses of
HK$112,106,000 (2017: HK$68,364,000) are available
indefinitely for offsetting against any future taxable profits of
the subsidiary in which the losses arose. Under the current
tax legislation of the PRC, tax loss of HK$13,746,000
(2017: HK$1,642,000) can be carried forward for five years
since the year the loss is incurred. This unrecognised
tax loss is loss of approximately HK$13,746,000 (2017:
HK$1,642,000) that will expire at various dates up to and
including 2023 (2017: up to and including 2022).

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the above items as it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the above
items can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2018, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
as the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China have no unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes as at 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared during each of the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. The directors
do not recommend the payment of any dividend for 2018
(2017: nil).

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018

10.

11.

FeHEX 2

MR-E—-NE+-A=+—08 REEMEE
BEMNRTEEZ AEERGBRERIEA
112,106,000/ jT ( —Z — + 4F : 68,364,000
BIT) A ERANRENELEEENKNEARQF
B (] AR 2R FE ER B0& 7 o AR I R BIR 1T B -
13,746,000 TR EBEEFEEB (Z T —tF:
1,642,000/ 7T) Al BB EE £ 2 FERE
AT o SRR IBEIEL R13,746,0008 7T
(ZZF—+F:1,642,0008 )  EREE =
ToF(BHEEF) (ZE2—LF - HEZZT
T (BREEF) NZETRBEBER-

W LA ERREREEE  RAS/ST
KA BB EARTR A A 8 A L AR -

BREBEFEARANMBREREHE £ EA
WRIZZIEEERIERKREEST R ZREA
BMI0%AI M - ZRER —TTNF—A—
BRAR BAR_ZTTLF+_-_A=1+—H
&z Y ak o e B A SN IR B B 2 BDAHE
BATEREGE LA RARE ZAEMBFEEX-
UAEEMS ERARERI0% AEEAM
ARETBEAMKIIZMERRARE TN
F-A—BEELEZWERD KBRS AIETR
oo

RZE-NFE+_A=+—HB xEEITEH
ENBEHITHERELCHE RERAKERF
BAMKZINOHERARR T N\F+-H
St BYEAFMBENRGREREN (=
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Hﬁ l%\
BE_Z-N\FR-_ZT—+tF+-A=+—H
iifxiiﬁﬁﬁjgﬁﬁﬁ%%°§$ﬁ

BREIN T N\FZ2EAKRE (ZF—
E-ﬁ)



LY

-

»

Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —E—\E+=-A=+—H

12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE  12. B A B EESIFE AELER
TO THE ORDINARY EQUITY 518
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is ERBEDRESRAALAERTS
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary ANEEFEBEBULAFEEBRITNE B
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average RS AN F 15 $1673,564,7998% ( =T —+ F -
number of ordinary shares of 673,564,799 (2017: 599,077,128 ) 5T & °

599,077,128) in issue during the year.

The calculations of the basic loss per share are based on: BREXRBEZHEDRBEATEIEE !
2018 2017
—T-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET T
Loss attributable to ordinary equity B RAREBERITEA
holders of the parent Bl &R (49,606) (294,439)
2018 2017
—T—N\FE —_ET—+F
Shares B
Weighted average number of ordinary & % £ K 2 F| 51 & B 5 &9
shares in issue during the year used AEFDETEER
in the basic earnings per share hniE 198
calculation 673,564,799 599,077,128
No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share ARERITE s RREBE R RRESHME
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December Ve BREABEeEEERETZE WA
2018 and 2017 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the SEREBEE_ZT-—NEFER=ZE—+tF+=A
convertible bonds outstanding had anti-dilutive effect on S+ HLEFETEEZEFEERITRE
the basic loss per share amounts presented. AEBCHEELEBEEE AR
EXALREEBARAT
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

13. Y% - E KRR 1B

EQUIPMENT
Furniture and Office Land and Motor Leasehold
fixtures equipment building vehicles  improvements Total
HIRKE PAERME THhRiEF RE HEWERE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET ARCD TAT T T FET
31 December 2017 —&-t&+t-A=t+-H
At 1 January 2017 WZE-+%—-A—H
Cost or valuation KA EE 108 3,327 10,220 1,082 228 14,965
Accumulated depreciation and RHTERAE
impairment (85) (940) (279 (1,023) (228) (2,555)
Net carrying amount REFE 23 2,387 9,941 59 - 12,410
At 1 January 2017, net of accumulated® —~F—+F—F—8"
depreciation and impairment NB2FMERAE 23 2,387 9,941 59 - 12,410
Additions NE 168 223 - 1,623 2,197 4,811
Acquisition of subsidlaries KRB AR 15 3% - 277 - 307
Depreciation provided during the year R & 2 i & (26) (423) (209) (429) 212 (1,299)
Impairment WE ) (2,141) (1,019 - (1,963 (5,132)
Exchange realignment ERAE - 14 - 55 1 70
At 31 December 2017 net of RZZ—+E+-ZA=t-H
accumulated depreciation and MRZHFTERRE
impairment 171 9% 8,713 1,585 623 11,187
At 31 December 2017: RZE—+F+ZA=1+-A:
Cost or valuation RASIE 282 1,491 9,201 3,132 1,148 15,254
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment (111) (1,396) (488) (1,547) (525) (4,067)
Net carrying amount FEFE 171 9% 8713 1,585 623 11,187
31 December 2018 —%-\f+zA=+-H
At 1 January 2018 WZE-N\F—A—H
Cost or valuation KA E 282 1,491 9,201 3,132 1,148 15,254
Accumulated depreciation and RHTERAE
impairment (111) (1,39) (488) (1,547) (525) (4,067)
Net carrying amount FEFE 171 9% 8713 1,585 623 11,187
At 1 January 2018, net of accumulated® —E—/\F—F—H
depreciation and impairment MR 2 TERAE 171 9% 8713 1,585 623 11,187
Additions RE 119 53 - 77 404 1,293
Depreciation provided during the year R & 2 i & 66) (34) (209) (727) (361) (1,397)
Impairment bt - (41) - - (666) (707)
Exchange realignment ERAZ - Y] - (53) - (54)
At 31 December 2018 net of RZZ-\E+ZA=t-H
accumulated depreciation and MRZHFTERRE
impairment 224 72 8,504 1,522 - 10,322
At 31 December 2018; RZE-N\ETZA=1-H:
Cost or valuation KA A 401 1,505 9,201 3,696 1,429 16,232
Accumulated depreciation and RHTERAE
impairment (177) (1,439 (697) 2,174) (1,429) (5.910)
Net carrying amount REFE 224 72 8,504 1,522 - 10,322

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
incurred segment loss in the media and culture business
segment and chemical products, and energy conservation
and environmental protection products segment.

The recoverable amounts of furniture and fixtures, land and
building and motor vehicles were determined based on the
fair value less costs of disposal, estimated by reference
to recent market transactions in similar assets adjusted
for differences in condition. The fair value less costs of
disposal are classified as a level 3 measurement. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, no impairment loss was
recognised to write down the carrying amounts of the
furniture and fixtures (2017: HK$9,000), land and building
(2017: HK$1,019,000) and motor vehicles (2017: Nil).

The recoverable amounts of leasehold improvements
and office equipment were determined based on the
value in use, during the year ended 31 December 2018,
impairment loss of approximately HK$666,000 (2017:
HK$1,963,000) represented the write-down of leasehold
improvements as the Group had refurbishment of the office
and impairment loss of approximately HK$41,000 was
recognised to office equipment (2017: HK$2,141,000).

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

13. Y% - &= R =21l (2)

REBEE_ZT—N\F+T_A=+—BLEFE K
SERER R ICEB D BB R TE m A KA
BE R IRIREE fn ) BRER1S 0 BEE1E

GRMMEE T NMEF N ABENA G £ 5
TREBEAFEREERA (K2EHUEEN
MEMSER S (ERRRZEERFAR) EH S
fhEr) MEE - A FEREEXNAH SO EAES
BT E-BE_T—N\FE+_A=+—H1t
FE BERMEREE (ZT—+1F :9,0008
o)t REF(ZF— 14 :1,019,000%
TIRABE (ZE—1F &) 2R ESHE
RARERE-

HMERERNAZRE 2 JINE S EIIRESE
AEAEET NEBEE_2—N\E+_A=+—
B IEFE - BEEE#666,00087T (—T—+
£ :1,963,0008 L) AR EB B IBFEAE
B R R & RS HOR ROREE 18 441,000 7T
WRBMAERME (ZF—HF 2,141,000
JL) °
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —%—

14.

15.

NE+ZA=+-H

CLUB DEBENTURE 14. EFESH
2018 2017
—E—N\E & —+4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEIT FET
Club debenture as at 31 December R+—_A=+—BZeMEHF 320 320

At the end of the reporting period, the club debenture is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

As at 31 December 2018, the directors considered that
there was no impairment of the club debenture since the
market price less costs to sell was higher than its carrying
value.

RBERR - GAESTIZRAR R R ER
1B -
RZE-N\F+ZA=1t—B BARTHER

%¢W$mmﬁﬁﬁﬁ AitE=RREME
75 3 4 3R R (A

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 15. MAFEFTAER 2 T HER
INVESTMENTS/FINANCIAL ASSETS B SHEE
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS
2018 2017
—F—N\%F S —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, R &B Fh 2 #zES
at fair value NEE - 9,313

As the Group has not elected to recognise the fair value
gain or loss through other comprehensive income, the
listed financial assets were classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss upon the adoption
of HKFRS 9, which were classified as available-for-
sale investments under HKAS 39. The fair value gain
recognised in investment revaluation reserve amounting to
HK$1,804,000 as at 1 January 2018 was reclassified to
accumulated losses.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—\F+-A=+—H

16. GOODWILL 16. F 2
HK$’000
T T
At 1 January 2017: R—_E—+F—H—H:
Cost IB#N -
Accumulated impairment 2 E -
Net carrying amount IREFE -
Cost at 1 January 2017, net of accumulated RZFE—+F—H—B 2
impairment bk ZERIAE -
Acquired through business combination FREBEOUWEE 98,671
Impairment during the year FNRE (43,844)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+_A=+—H 54,827
At 31 December 2017: RZZBE—+F+_A=+—H
Cost DN 98,671
Accumulated impairment ZETE (43,844)
Net carrying amount REFE 54,827
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of accumulated RZZE—-—NF—A—B2ZKA
impairment Mk REDRIEAE 54,827
Impairment during the year FRRAE (54,827)
Cost and net carrying amount at RZE—-—N\F+ZA=+—HZ
31 December 2018 PR K BRTEDFE -
At 31 December 2018: RZE-N\F+ZA=+—8:
Cost PR 98,671
Accumulated impairment RETITE (98,671)

Net carrying amount

FRmEFE -

ERANLRERERRAT
“z-nFen 108
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combination is
allocated to the following cash-generating units for
impairment testing:

Media and culture cash generating unit

The recoverable amount of the media and culture
cash generating unit (“Media and Culture CGU”) has
been determined based on a value in use calculation.
In the opinion of the directors, the existing projects
would generate revenue for the CGU within seven
years and the revenue for the period after seven
years is minimum. The value in use is determined by
discounting the future cash flows to be generated
from the film production and investment projects
over the next seven years, using an average pre-tax
discount rates of 22% (2017: 27%) approved by the
management. No projection has been extrapolated
for any subsequent years beyond the 7-year cash
flow forecast.

Since the actual box office revenue from the film
product owned by the Media and Culture CGU
was significantly lower than expected revenue, the
directors of the Company adjusted the expected
performance of other films. Since the recoverable
amount of the Media and Culture CGU based on the
value in use calculation was less than the carrying
amount, impairment provision of HK$54,827,000
(2017: HK$43,844,000) for goodwill was made
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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REFEHBEEN - FREARFERALE
BEBH 2% (ZE—+F:27% )0 F
HBRBATREFSRREERBEETE
EREEBEEENRKBESRENR
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EHRESRETEA -
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Notes to Financial Statements

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continuea)

Media and culture cash generating unit (continued)

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to
determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross
margins is based on market data and expectations
associated with the film production and investment
industry.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before
tax and reflected current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the film
production and investment business.

Revenue — The basis used to determine the value
include budgeted box office revenue and revenues
from other sources based on market data and
expectations associated with the film production and
investment industry.

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

16. BE& (#)

BERENR &)

BREREXCECELEN (&)

REENE-BEDEEREEMNXRNE
EMRAEELNMSEENEHEEY S
ERRETERKE -

B E-F BB ABATBERE K8
A NEREET ST RERRE
BATEE A R -

Wm-BEBEMBEE BREER
W RRET IS BB LA EE R SE
RBRETEZ B MR W

ERANLRERERRAT
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES 17. B S I RIE
2018 2017
—E— )\ —E—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables Z 5 EWRIE 7,331 13,054
Impairment BB (6,633) (6,840)
698 6,214

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The Group generally allows
credit periods of 30 to 180 days (2017: 30 to 180 days) to
its trade customers of the trading business. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
The Group generally does not charge interest for credit
granted. The Group did not hold any collateral from the
trade debtors in trading business but may require personal
cheque or other acceptable forms of security from patrons.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice dates and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

AEERETFESBERETELARE  HEH
BEP—MEBANRGRIN - XEE—RETE
EHEBKZESHRFI0E180H (ZE—+tF:
30E180R) 7 EEH -BUEBEFHUBERAREE
PREE - NEEB IS K KRB IE 2 R BR B 5 %
BEEWRXEEEZFHPIUEEERBERE
®E-EESETHRAAHESH AEERE
TR EMENEEWRIRRNE - AEBE W &5
HEESEK 2 EHRREBEEEMEIER
BEEREEFMNEAZENEMAZEZEN
AR

R 0 B 5 mIKEIE R % T B 8 A
BRI ERAIFNT

2018 2017

—ET—)\&F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FATT

Within 1 month 18 A AR - 2,642
1 to 3 months 1231E A 34 -
Over 3 months 3ME A E 664 3,572
698 6,214

1 91 Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

17. B S EURRIE (2)

B REIEREBREENT

2018 2017

—E-N\E —ET—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET T

At beginning of year REH 6,840 1,036
Impairment losses B E R 164 5,228
Exchange realignment ME W A (371) 576
At end of year RER 6,633 6,840

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year
ended 31 December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type and
customer type). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
trade receivables are written off if past due for more than
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Ex_Z-)\F+-A=t—HL
FERBEBUBREEAFORZ
W {E

K& & B IR BRI TR E AT A
HEREREEBE BABEDENEBRALE
BEANSEEFHBENNDHERET
(iR EQBBIREFSER) - Kt H KB
RARMESR  EHEERARE B RS
B8 BB FIE - E ATAUR BRI B R 1B
AMAERAEER - — RS B S E IR
FIBERIE—F RBAZRNBHHITED
A LA 8 o
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. B S FEWRRIE ()
Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year BE_F-/\E+_A=1+—HI
ended 31 December 2018 (continued) FERBEEBVEREERFIR 2
WAE ()
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TR AEBFERABRBEEAENE HENK
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a HENEERBRER:

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2018 R-'—-N\&E+=-RA=+-—H
Past due
il
Less than 1to Over
Current 1 month 3 months 3 months Total
DA 1188 A 1Z3f8H 3fEA WL @zt
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEXR 1% 10% 50% 100%
Gross carrying amount FEAE(TET)
(HK$'000) 705 - - 6,626 7,331
Expected credit losses BHEEBRE (TETL)
(HK$'000) 7 - - 6,626 6,633

1 93 Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year
ended 31 December 2017

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2017 that were not individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired under HKAS 39 is as follows:

M5 R M EE
31 December 2018 —E—\&+-A=+—H
17. B S5 BEWRIE @)

BE_ZT-—t+-A=1+—HLF
EREE B EREI9 ZRE

R-ZE—tF+-_A=+t—RB REFLEEG:
RERIFEI95E AW BB L AR HEREREZE
2 UG IR 2 fREe D AT AT

\:

2017
—E—+F
HK$’000
FET

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 1 year past due
Over 1 year past due

KBE IR AR E
BEIN B4
B R B 1

2,642
978
2,594

6,214

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company were of the opinion that no
provision for impairment under HKAS 39 was necessary
in respect of these balances as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances were
still considered fully recoverable.

BERMTENERUREREFPER ZF
BEPEIBEDDE-

BHERRECERERERZEABIEFPA
W 2EEPEAEEBERFEBRE RIE
BEKR ARTEERR BEARZETEH
RIFE B S EREISRFRBEREE  RE
REEEZEEREPAZSERDERA
g (a o

ERANLRERERRAT
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18. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —E—\F+-A=+—H

18. Eg%’tlﬁ Hih W R IE & H fth

2018 2017
—T-N\FE —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FHET T
Advances to patrons BESEETN (@) 133,105 168,329
Amounts due from casinos JE AU AR B 35 3R T (@) 3,329 3,329
Other receivables H b & U sk IE
— Prepayments —JEa A 2,965 5,736
— Other receivable and deposits —H b R FIE & ()
paid BEfZE 67,496 2,102
Amount due from a director JEUNE EFKIA (o)
- Luo Lei —#& 78 39
206,973 179,535
Impairment allowance B B (134,595) (137,140)
72,378 42,395
Film prepayments BRIAB IR (©
— Prepayment to film directors —JENTE %
KR 163,797 91,542
— Prepayment to film/television — R TER
series production BERBIRER
EQE] 13,927 13,305
177,724 104,847
Impairment allowance VERERE (1,921) -
175,803 104,847
248,181 147,242

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements

18. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

(continued)
Notes:

(@) Other receivables and deposits mainly represent rental
deposits, deposits with suppliers and other receivables.
Expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss
rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of
the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate. The loss rate applied for advances to patrons
and amounts due from casinos as at 31 December 2018
was 98%, and the loss rate applied to other receivables and
deposits paid as at 31 December 2018 was 1%.

(b)  The amount due from a director is unsecured, interest-free
and is repayable on demand.

(@] Prepayment to film directors represent advance payments
to directors for their services in the preparation of motion
picture development proposal and the development
cost to be incurred by them in the course of work, while
prepayment to film/television series production represent
the production cost incurred for one movie and one
television series projects in progress.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

A F5 R R b aE

—N\E+-A=t+-H

18. FEfTRRIE « H i FEUT FRIE R H 1tk
BE #)

31 December 2018 —%

P &L -

@ HitEWFERZETIZERERS HERD
ReREMERFIE-BREEBREDES2E
$‘§I‘ﬂ&l&ﬂ%%ﬂﬁﬁgﬁﬁ%%%?ﬁﬂﬁﬁ°J§5

18 R R T B DA R BR B AT K% BRI OR 2R 48 iR
ROER) R-F—-NF+_A=+—HE
R A2 B0 N R WIRBE5 50 IE 2 B R R
9% MR T N\F+A=+—RBEAR
Hip R IBREN RS ZBEER1% °

(o) EUREFFELAERM 28 MRERER-

© BNTEFZENFAR/ASEREEEEY
FEF SRR RE TEBRTEESE

M ERMBNMRE MEX EREEH
RN RBERETHN—BEY R —HERE
HEELMNEEER-

B R B RUER R BB E 2R (E

prepayments, other receivables and other assets are as ERESHHT
follows:
2018 2017
—ET-N\E —T—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FEIT
At beginning of year REH 137,140 114,731
Impairment loss of film prepayments B RNREZRESE
(note 6) (Mf&E6) 1,921 -
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ Hib s CRE/BERR),
impairment losses of other receivables, JH{EE1E - F58 (:E6)
net (note 6) (2,545) 18,508
Exchange realignment ME W S - 3,901
At end of year INCEFN 136,516 137,140
EXALREEBARAT

196

“E-N\FFR



197

Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —E—\F+-A=+—H

19. CONTRACT ASSETS

19. EHNEE

2018 2017
—E-N\fE —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Contract assets arising from: RELUTHBZAENEE:
Revenue from film investments REEXKE 2 W 55,404 -
Impairment B (554) -
54,850 -
Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned B4 ’7 BEVIRELRERN 2 W E1THE
from film investments as the receipt of consideration is JRE F%R{E/,\ﬁ ERERRIBRNMEGE
conditional on successful completion of film exhibition and Fﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ—ﬂﬂlﬂl °
release to all distribution sources.
Upon completion of film exhibition and release to all REREFYEREMEMBETRE BRA
distribution sources the amounts recognised as contract BRBEEZSBENPEAZEIRWFIE-R
assets are reclassified to trade receivables. The increase in —E - \FENEEEINBARFANEGHE
contract assets in 2018 was the result of the new release % °
of a film during the year.
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract E’\Zg NEFEFTZA=+—RHZEHNEEKE

assets as at 31 December 2018 is within one year.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to

19. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 19.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
contract assets are as follows:

s

Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

SHEE »)
AMEEYRAFRRESHNT

2018

—F-N\E

HK$’000

FHET

At beginning of year REH -
Impairment losses BB EE 554
At end of year RER 554
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date REREAHEBERUELRARE AMIE
by considering the probability of default of comparable BTN EBOBMEETRES T AGTETEEE
companies with published credit ratings to measure BEBBE-RZTE—N\F+_A=+—8" FH

expected credit losses. As at 31 December 2018, the
probability of default applied was 2.83% and the loss given
default was estimated to be 43%.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s contract assets using a provision

matrix:

As at 31 December 2018

B E52.83%  MibaHEKEBERR43% °

TREIERBRBERESTNARARESL
BEZEERRZER:

R-T-N\E+=-A=+—H

Expected credit loss rate BEHEEBEX 1%

HK$’000

FHET

Gross carrying amount BEmAE 55,404

Expected credit losses TEHEEEE 554
ERXTLRERBEFRAT

“E-N\FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —E—\F+-A=+—H

20. FILM INVESTMENTS 0. EXHRE
2018 2017
—E—)\%F e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAIT
Cost: B :
At 1 January n—H—H - -
Additions NE 133,772 -
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 133,772 -
Accumulated amortisation and St RIEIE:
impairment:
Amortisation during the year F B (18,241) -
Impairment during the year FARIE (10,356) -
(28,597) -
Net carrying amount: REF{HE:
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 105,175 -
The Group reviews its film investments regularly to assess AEELZGHREL 2BEHEUERERI TSR

if there is any indicator of impairment and the related FEHRFEECREUTERE B ERBED
recoverable amount with reference to marketability of each S REETRESEE-

film and current market conditions.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

20. FILM INVESTMENTS (continued)

The Group assessed that there were impairment indicators
of a film investment because of the change of comparable
market information and expected performance. Since the
recoverable amount of the film investment (HK$2,300,000)
based on the value in use calculation was less than the
carrying amount (HK$12,656,000), impairment provision
of HK$10,356,000 (2017: Nil) for the film investments was
made during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The recoverable amount of film investment was determined
based on a value in use calculation which uses the present
value of the expected future cash flows arising from the
pre-determined share of proceeds of the film which was
derived from discounting the projected future cash flows
at a discount rate of 22%. Key assumptions for the value
in use calculations related to the estimation of cash inflow/
outflow include the budgeted revenue and gross margin,
growth rate and discount rate. Such estimation is based
on the historical box office of the same director and main
cast members, the market comparable data of films with
the same theme, and management’s expectations of the
market development.

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —E—-\F+=-A=1+—H

0. EXRE »)

AEFALEMBER RBHERE  AEEFT
H—EEFREERETR -REBEE-Z—N
FH+_A=Z+—"BULHFE BARBEERE
BEENEFRENTIRE S 5 (2,300,000
)RR BREE (12,656,000 7T) ' L E &
& 1 R E B 510,356,00008 T (=&
—tF:F)o

BEYREAKROIGEHIENCREETE (£
FiZ22%m it R R EEHARRESRERS D
MEHMELAERIAZTALEEN B AR
KBS RERE) ﬁﬁ*&ﬁ ° Eﬁiﬁi/ub)\//m

LA AANEREENENI2RREERE

WEREME BRELFTHER ZHFTHE
RA-—BERTZEENBERE R—EE
BEXNMBA L BRBEBEREEEHTSERD
JEH

ERANLRERERRAT
2 )\FFRH
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —E—\F+-A=+—H
21. FILM PRODUCT 21. ERHE
2018 2017
—T—N\F = —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Cost: B :
At 1 January n—A—H 16,855 -
Addition through business combination EBEKARE - 16,855
Exchange realignment ME W A 336 -
At 31 December “+=-HA=+—H 17,191 16,855
Accumulated amortisation and FetEERIEE
impairment:
At 1 January R—HA—H (173)
Amortisation during the year F = (173)
Impairment during the year FNRIE (17,018) -
At 31 December w+=A=+—H (17,191) (173)
Net carrying amount: BREF{E:
At 31 December W+Z—A=+—8 - 16,682
Classified as: RV
Current portion mENE - 3,370
Non-current portion IEREN I - 13,312
- 16,682

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

21. FILM PRODUCT (continued)

The Group reviews its film product regularly to reassess
the estimated recoverable amount of the film product with
reference to marketability of each film and current market
conditions. The recoverable amount of the film product
was determined on a title-by-title basis and is based on
a value in use calculation which uses the present value of
the expected future cash flows arising from the licensing
and distribution of the film product after the completion
of film production, which was derived from discounting
the projected future cash flows at a discount rate of 27%
(2017: 27%).

Key assumptions for the value in use calculations related to
the estimation of cash inflow/outflow include the budgeted
revenue and gross margin, growth rate and discount rate.
Such estimation is based on the historical box office of
the same director and main cast members, the market
comparable data of fiims with the same theme, and
management’s expectations of the market development.

The Group assessed that there were impairment indicators
because the actual box office revenue from the film was
significantly lower than expected revenue. Since the
recoverable amount based on the aforementioned value
in use calculation was less than the carrying amount,
impairment loss of HK$17,018,000 (2017: Nil) for the film
product was made during the year ended 31 December
2018.

21.

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

EXE®

AEELEZHESY 2 EHEMERE RIS
THRAEEYERUENTGEEYERNG
AR Ee5E - BEEMM W E £ 58 IRE
HEARBEFEREENE (FREETHE
TREEREBTEYEREENBIERRIR
EREL27T% (22 —EF 1 27% ) WITHE XA
EMIRE)mMEE -

EREEAENIERRERSAA RHEH
BEr (BEREERDS EMNX - BRRRFAR
R)ER -ZGFNERRA-—BENEERE
REBEE R—-—TEEZOTHALBRBE
REREHMISERNTEL-

AEFYERERWEHEERNTBIEIREG  NE
EFHEARESR REBEEZ2-_T—\F+=
A=+—HLEFE BHRBRE L ERAEER
Ea b BERERE REFEREDR
3R (B 518 517,018,000 T (—F — L4

z) o
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2 )\FFRH

202



Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22. e RREFEHIER
2018 2017
—T—N\F —E—LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHEH

Denominated in RMB NAREE 1,569 3,879
Denominated in HK$ B TTEHE 9,093 85,120
Denominated in MOP LURPI ST E - 12
Denominated in AUD ARITTEHE 78 1,803
Denominated in US$ AZETTEHE 16,167 5,833
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFEBERE 26,907 96,647
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank RFEBRR AEEUARBHEZRS KIR
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted ITHH1/1,569,0008 T (ZE—HF: AR
to approximately HK$1,569,000 (2017: RMB3,880,000). #3,880,0007T) - AR T EEE R LR AHEM
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, B AR IR B A 2 SN B ER I A B
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange E-EELNEERAT A5ENERER
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale BETIIMNEEBR 2 RITHARBHBABEME

and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group B o

is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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24.

"

Notes to Financial Statements

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

23. BSEMRIA

E SN FIBREE AR RS R 2 BRER
DT

2018 2017

—E—-N\%E —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

F#&ET FETT

1 to 3 months 1231 A 21 -
3 to 12 months 3Z&121E A 316 2,628
Over 1 year BiB1F 2,882 549
3,219 3,177

The trade and bills payables are unsecured, interest-free
and normally settled base on the terms of the contract.
The fair values of trade and bills payables as at the end of

BHRNFEALRENEERELRA RELRE
BREBEAOEFEE - AR AHEE NS
R BEREHPREZENTBARENRE

the reporting period approximated to their corresponding ZAVFEHEHEREERS -
carrying amounts due to their relatively short maturity
terms.
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24. HihfE{fIFIE R FE:TE
Current BDHA
2018 2017
—T—)\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET T T
Amounts due to casinos JE IR 4435 2 SR8 2,478 2,478
Amounts due to patrons JEREP 2 FIE 1,176 1,176
Other payables and accruals HAERRIB R IEFTE MR 22,423 7,096
Advanced from customers P - 1,024
Film agency fee payable ENETHEREER - 11,721
26,077 23,495

Other payables and accruals are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The fair values of other
payables at the end of the reporting period approximated
to their corresponding carrying amounts.

HiENFAREFEARELRA 28 RE
BREREE BERSHHPREMENFKEAR

BtBERZAVERAKREEMRS -
EXLRERBMARAT

“E-N\FFR



Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —E—\F+-A=+—H

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24. HihfE{IRIERFESTER 2

(continued)
Non-current JEBNHA
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Other payables b JE T 5B 1,552 -
The non-current other payables are interest payables JERNER R b R SRIB BB R ARG BaR1T R H M
related to long-term interest-bearing bank and other BEBBCENMNBNENER-_Z_ZFE
borrowings and are repayable no earlier than the year of = o
2020.
25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25 GHEE
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
—E—\F —ZE-)N\F
+=HA=+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET T T
Short-term advances received from B B35
customers
Sale of goods HEE R 1,290 1,024
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received EREBEEERRNEREM zcEFPEEZ
from customers to deliver the products. e

26. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON- 26. FE {1 Bt B A S FE IR AR R FRIE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUBSIDIARIES
The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of J?’S%HWJ% AIIEERIRREFIEABER 28
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed BWmETEEEA-

maturity date.
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31 December 2018 —Z—\F+-A=+—H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 27. Gt ERIT R HMEE
OTHER BORROWINGS
2018 2017
—E-\E “TtF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
ERf= ERA
(%) b THT (%) 55 TEL
Current BN
Borrowings - unsecured fEE-&&HE  (noteb) 3-10 2019 130,047 215 2018 7,953
(KzD) ZB-NE —Z-N\F
Bank loans - secured ~ $FTEH-BHA (note a) - 4 2018 4,846
(Kizta) “E-N\&
Fiminvestment loan ~ EZHAER  (note ) 6 2019 21,740 -
(MizEc) E-NE
158,687 12,799
Convertble bonds AR ES (note 29) 31 2019 266,821 31 2019 256,562
(FizE9) —B-NE “Z-nE
425,508 269,361
Non-current FEENH
Film investment loans ~ EFREEH  (hote ) 4-11.25 2020-2021 113,433 -
(MizEe) —B-%E
E-¥C-F
538,941 269,361

ERANLRERERRAT
“E-N\FERH 206
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 27.

OTHER BORROWINGS (continueq)

A RERTRHEMES »)

2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T
Analysed into: DTARNATIER :
Bank loans: IRITE:
Within one year or on demand —FRRIZEK - 4,846
- 4,846
Other borrowings repayable: HihprEEEE:
Within one year —FNR 158,687 7,953
In the second year F-FR 63,389 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-FEFRF
(BREEEMF) 50,044 -
272,120 7,953
272,120 12,799

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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A F5 R R b aE

—N\E+-A=t+-H

27. st RRITRHEMEES »)

31 December 2018 —%

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (continueq)

Notes: BfEE

(@)  The bank loan of HK$4,846,000 at 31 December 2017 was @ RZZE—+tF+_A=+—HZRTER
repayable on 19 May 2018 and secured by film product as 4,846, OOO/%EE,E/\fT NFERATHBEE
set out in note 21. Interest was charged at 4% per annum. WIAM 21 TE M B EREER - FIERE

FaBFTE -

(o)  The interest-bearing loans amounted to HK$130,947,000 by R-ZZE—NEFE+-_A=+—HHTEBEXK
as at 31 December 2018 bear interest rates from 3% 130,947,0007%8 T 12 F F E N F3% E10%5T &
to 10% per annum and are all repayable in 2019. In R BERN T — ﬂifa%ﬁﬁ“:%*ﬂiﬂl
April 2019, the directors of the Company signed the A ARBEFH %%@?EWJ L/{H—rﬁﬁﬁg
supplemental agreements to extend all the loans repayment BHBERE-_F_TF+_A K=
dates to December 2020. The interest-bearing loans of F+=-A=+—HKNFTBE7,953, OOO/%EE
HK$7,953,000 at 31 December 2017 were repaid in 2018. RZE—NFEE-

() The film investment loans represented loans from the ) EBEXRAEFEREETHREENENR

film investors which bears fixed interest rates from 4% to
11.25% per annum. Certain film investment loans also bear
variable interest rates depend on the box office revenue
generated from the films, which are derivative components
and should be separated from the film investment loans and
measured at fair value. In the opinion of the directors, the
fair value of the derivative components is considered to be
insignificant.

¢ﬁ~|¥wugm%%o%¥$%xﬁﬂmr
BEARNEBEYELEZRRE ZZEFI R E
WEABITEBD RBRBHEREERD AILIE
NFEFE-EERE TTEBD 2 RATFERE
WHERK-

ERANLRERERRAT
2 )\FFRH
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

28. PROMISSORY NOTE

The carrying value of the promissory note measured at

amortised cost is as follows:

28. BB

REERAGTENALZBERRENT

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
At 1 January n—H—H 95,226 -
Imputed interest HEAE 1,368 283
Recognition of a promissory note BRIZATEFEN
measured at fair value (note a) BT (Wita) (91,431) -
Gain on derecognition of a promissory  #% |- FE SRR H A AN AT B )
note measured at amortised cost A HEEN R (5,377) -
Issuance of a promissory note (note b)  ZE7T& L Z 4 (Hi#tb) 17,000 94,772
Exchange realignment Rk 214 171
At 31 December R+—A=+—AH 17,000 95,226
The carrying value of the promissory note measured at fair EAVEHENEALZEERDENT
value is as follows:
2018 2017
—F—)\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
At 1 January n—H—H - -
Recognition of a promissory note WRIEAFETEDN
measured at fair value (note a) A EE (fika) 91,431 -
Gain on change in fair value of AR EBRAFEZESH R
a promissory note (91,431) -
At 31 December W+=-—A=+—8 - -
17,000 95,226

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

28. PROMISSORY NOTE (continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 13 December 2017, the Company issued a promissory
note with a principal amount of US$12,884,615 (equivalent
to HK$100,500,000), as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of entire equity interests in the Starlight Legend
Group. The promissory note was unsecured, interest-free
and with a maturity date of 12 December 2018. As at 31
December 2017, the promissory note was measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method with
the effective interest rate at 6% per annum.

On 29 March 2018, the Group entered into a side letter with
the existing promissory note holder and agreed that:

(i) both parties shall jointly appoint an independent
valuer, to conduct a valuation of the Starlight Legend
Group as at 31 December 2018 (the “Updated
Valuation”). The determination by the independent
valuer shall be final and binding on the existing
promissory note holder and the Company.

(ii) If the Updated Valuation is less than US$25,000,000,
the promissory note holder irrevocably,
unconditionally, and absolutely agrees to waive and
forgo the principal amount of the promissory note
payable by the Company under the promissory note
to the extent of an amount equal to the difference
between the Updated Valuation and US$25,000,000.

(i) ~ The due date of the promissory note shall be
extended until 12 December 2019.

The repayment amount of the promissory note is then
contingent based on the valuation of the Starlight Legend
Group as of 31 December 2018. Therefore, the promissory
note was changed from financial liabilities at amortised cost
to a hybrid instrument which was designated as financial
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss.

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

28. A EH =)

Wi :

(@)

MN-ZE—t&FE+-A+=H ARAFRTALE
/312,884,615 7t (48 & #100,500,0007% 7T )
7Y i, 22 95 V8 A UK B Starlight Legend % B 2 &
RIERENH —BL -AHLERHERT 28
FESHBA-—T—N\F+_A+_H-KR_Z
—tF+ A+ B AREZFEHEERF
RERBHEAAAE BEEMNEAETF6% -

RZE-—N\F=ZAZ+hB TEEHEBREX
REBEFEAT LR HiE:

EFEARNEFE LB IUGEEMY
Starlight Legend®EEHR =T —N\F+=
A=+ —BAZHEETHME (B
Bl - BUEEMZATHBREEALE
BREARAADEHEEBEREERLD
A

(i)  HEFHEER25,000,000% 7T AR
ZEFBEATAHE  EEGRERIR
ERERMEARABREELZEET
S AR BERASEE  HAEERER
&1 8225,000,000% T 2 2 =& &
TBR o

iy FEAEBZIHBABCERE=ZZ—NF
+=ZA+=H-

LR IB R 8 (8 12 £ 8815 F Starlight Legend
EER T N\FE+_A=+—B2ZHEM
FE e Bt AR ZBEERIREEKN ARG E 2 2R
BEEZREEARATEMAERZEHEA
BEHRETIA.

ERANLRERERRAT
2 )\FFRH
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

28. PROMISSORY NOTE (continued)

Notes: (continueq)

(@)

(continueq)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group and the promissory
note holder involved an independent valuer to conduct a
valuation of Starlight Legend Group as at 31 December
2018. Based on the valuation results, a gain of
HK$91,431,000 on change in fair value of the promissory
note was recognised.

The valuation of the Starlight Legend Group was calculated
based on the discounted cash flows method and the key
assumptions included discount rates, growth rates, forecast
revenue and gross margins. Such estimation is based on
the historical box office of the same director and main
cast members, the market comparable data of films with
the same theme, and management’s expectations of the
market development.

A significant increase in the estimated cash inflow and
the growth rates in isolation would result in a significant
increase in the fair value of the promissory note. A
significant decrease in discount rates in isolation would
result in a significant increase in the fair value of the
promissory note.

On 28 December 2018, the Group issued a promissory
note with a principal amount of HK$17,000,000 with
interest rate of 10% per annum as part of consideration
for the redemption of convertible bonds (note 29). The
promissory note is unsecured and with a maturity date of
28 January 2019. In April 2019, the repayment date of the
promissory note was extended to April 2020.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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28. A EHR #)

BisE: (&)

(@)

(#)

RZE-NF+ZA=+—H XEE KK
HEBERA ABE— % B & (EAD ¥ Starlight
Legend&SBR =T —N\F+_A=+—HZE
ERETHE REGELR CREARLZEQATF
B B FE R 2591,431,00078 7T °

Starlight Legend& BIf i EIZGIRB R E K
FTERFZ (PEMBRBREER - BRE - FAAKERE
ME)HE - ZEBEAERRA—ESENBTER
REBERE R—ETBEFHMS T HLREE
MEREHMSEENTER-

PitREMEER AR REREREZR
ZIEMB I BALREZ A FERZEL N
AAREMEZE TRERERD GBI BALR
Bz FEREEN-

RZZB-N\E+_A=+N\B NEFEETE
& %8 517,000,000 7T * F 7 E 510%H) & K,
ER ERABERABRRESREN—BD (K
FH29) AN ERAEBHRIHAAZZT N
F—A-Z+N\B -RZZE—AFNA AHZHE
MENABDEEE S -TFMA-
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Notes to Financial Statements

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Zero-coupon Tranche 1 Bonds due 2017

On 11 July 2014, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with a then independent investor (“bondholder”)
to issue the 3-year Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds
(the “Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds”) with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$55,650,000. The subscription was
completed on 19 September 2014. The consideration of
the Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds was used to finance the
establishment of the Group’s entertainment and gaming
business.

The Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and were convertible at the option of
the bondholder at any time after the date of issuance up
to and including the date which was five business days
prior to the maturity date of 19 September 2017, into new
shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.35 per share,
subject to anti-dilutive adjustments.

Upon full conversion, a total of 159,000,000 new ordinary
shares would be issued by the Company. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Tranche 1 Convertible
Bonds at the principal amount of HK$55,650,000 were
fully converted into ordinary shares of the Company
and total number of ordinary shares converted was
approximately 159,000,000 (Note 31).

The Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds contained liability and
equity components. The equity component is included in
the equity headed “convertible bonds reserve”.

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible
bonds at the issue date was valued by an independent
valuer determined based on the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows discounted at the prevailing
market rate for an equivalent non-convertible loan.
The effective interest rate of the liability component is
approximately 16% per annum.

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

29. TR fix R %

ﬁ;:g—tﬁﬂ,ﬁHZ%—ngﬁ

R-B-—mELA+—B AAREEENE
TREE (BHREADTIRBERHE A
BISFTRTRRES ([E— T RRE
%) » A% % 555,650,000 7t o R FIE
ER-ZE-—MEAATABRRER - E—HATH
BiES > K EDARE TR A EERER S
TE-

E-HABMBEFNB T E BEFHAA
EENZHTEMREEIME _T—tFh
ATNABAMFEREZXRRA (BRER) ZATH
EREF R A S R0.358 T 2B (AI#ETR
BERB)BELBBARB ZHBD -

EEH L% - AR R E T4 159,000,000
BHEER -z —T—tF+-_A=+—8H
IEFE - AR A% & % 4N & 855,650,000
BT EHERARFLBERERCERT BRR
25 #9159,000,0000% (Fff5£31) °

FHABRERESEERERERBY - Ea
MoOUNERBE N [AIRRESFHE] 25

AMBREFREHRINBETENZAFERS
MBI IR R % 3F ] AR B IR R 1T 45 F
KRB ZBFAARRAR RO 2REMEE A
ERDZERMNEORTF16% -

ERANLRERERRAT
2 )\FFRH
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continueq)

8% coupon Tranche 2 Bonds due 2018

On 5 November 2015, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement with seven independent
investors (“Subscribers”) to conditionally issue the 3
years redeemable convertible bonds of the Company in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$365,000,000 at
8% coupon rate per annum. On 2 December 2015, the
subscriptions were completed and convertible bonds
of HK$315,000,000 were issued with maturity on 1
December 2018 (the “Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds”) by
the Company to certain Subscribers (‘Bondholders”).
The consideration of the Convertible Bonds was used
as general working capital of the Group and as funds for
future development of the existing business of the Group,
including development of the entertainment and gaming
business in Australia and Cambodia.

The Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and are convertible at the option of
the Bondholders at any time on or after the 90th day of
the date of issuance up to and prior to the maturity date
of 1 December 2018, into new shares of the Company
at a price of HK$5 per share, subject to adjustment on
the occurrence of a dilutive or concentrative event. In
November 2018, the repayment date of the remaining
Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds was extended to 2 January
2019. In January 2019, the Company has settled all
remaining convertible bonds amounted to HK$266.8
million (including principle amount of HK$255 million and
interest payable amount of HK$11.8 million) by issuance
of promissory notes with principle amount of HK$267.0
million which bear interest rate of 15% per annum. The
promissory notes with principle amount of HK$247.0
million are repaid in April 2019, and the remaining amount
of HK$20.0 million is repayable in April 2020.

Upon full conversion a total of 63,000,000 new ordinary
shares would be issued by the Company. The Company
shall redeem any Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds which
remain outstanding on the maturity date at its principal
amount together with the outstanding interest.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

29.

o[ EH o)

REZB-NFEH2E MR ER
&3

NRZE—RE+—ARAR AATEACEZB T
HEE ([RBADILRERZ  ABI5EHFE
AARRBI=FHAERRRKRES NeRE
365,000,000/ 7T F 2 AB8% - R_T—H
F+ZRA-H RBEFELEEK  ARBEM
ETREA ([EHBHEAJ)ETT315,000,000
BTN T N\F+-A—BR AR E
HF([BEmamiESs]) -AJmikEHFoNRE
EREREBE —REEED RIERHEERE
AEEREEB 2 ES  BIENBRMNRRIHE
BRIRENIBTER-

FoHARBRESAETE BEHFFEA
ARERETAERFEORE RN 2B ERH
B N\F+=A—HZAMEaER - %
BRSETLZER (IRE S ERBEELE
BT ABRAARARARZHRH -R_F
—NE+—A S TE_HABBRESFZEE
AfERE_E—NF—A-HA-R=_ZE—N
F—R ARREBEBETAREE (AeH
/267,000,000 70 L FFEA5% B ) EE
Fr B &2 A IR B % (48 %8 /266,800,000
7T BIEAN S 58255,000,00058 7T K B R B &
#11,800,000/%8 7T ) ° A~ & ¥ /A247,000,000/%
THEASEBEER - NFHAEE 8~
#920,000,0008 L AR LT F I FEE -

BEBE R % ANRQ R E1TE $£63,000,000
BEFT @A - AR AR E RS EER R
FIEEE AN B E MR IR 2 EE Z#t ik
B (&% o
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Notes to Financial Statements

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continueq)

The Tranche 1 and Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —E—-\F+=-A=1+—H

20, ORI EFHF &)

SRINEBETHE-—"SE—NFEAAE+NABE -
—HEF TR HEHSAUBRARFER

position at the date of issuance on 19 September 2014 FHMRE_HAMBRESHERT:
and 2 December 2015 respectively are calculated as
follows:
Tranche 2 Tranche 1
Convertible Convertible
Bonds Bonds
E-Ht E—#t
TR ES R ES
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T T
Nominal value of the convertible BETIBRRESHNEE
bonds issued 315,000 55,650
Equity component on initial recognition ?‘_J—Hﬁ%ﬁ%%: 6 HE R
upon issuance of Convertible Bonds R = 5 - (20,427)
Derivative component on initial ?XTT—H‘;‘HXT,%%??% ?ﬂﬁAﬁE?&
recognition upon issuance MITE S BB EE
of Convertible Bonds (147,720) -
Liability component at the issuance date 7317 HEIR B &I D 167,280 35,223
The Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds contain a liability A mRESESAES D RITEH D

component and a derivative component. The derivative
component is measured at fair value on initial recognition
while any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is recognised as
a financial liability. The fair value of derivative components
of the Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds at the issue date was
valued by an independent valuer. The fair value of the
derivative financial liability valued by the independent valuer
is based on valuation technique whose variables include
that uses only data from observable market. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is approximately
31% per annum.

TTEMO RV ERFIZ QP EFTE MHAF
zhlﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%&%’ BITEBA 22 BERRE
BMAEE-F A BRBRESFKETABITES
D2 A ERBEERMET(E o B8k ERD
EZITESRBBECAFEDENEEESR

SABEMGEEZHERF LA BENOZE
BRI EL) AT F31%.
Bt eEmERAD
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At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 20, o[ fR &S »)
The carrying values of the liability component of the FEHRE_HMARKRESFBEHH>NEEE
Tranche 1 and Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds recognised in R ERRNEGE MBI RERAT

the consolidated statement of financial position at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds F—HUBRBRES
2017
—E—LF
HK$’000
T T
At 1 January Kn—HA—H 50,028
Interest expense FERZ 2,710
Conversion of convertible bonds R mRES (52,738)
At 31 December R+=-A=+—H -
Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds FE-_HUBERES
2018 2017
—F—)\%F —ET—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
At 1 January n—A—H 256,562 207,557
Interest expense FEFZ 85,544 74,205
Interest paid BAHE (15,285) (25,200)
Redemption during the year FAMER (60,000) -
At 31 December (note 27) R+=—A=+—8 (f:F27) 266,821 256,562
Categorised as: DA
Convertible bonds — current liabilities ARREE-RBDAaE 266,821 256,562
266,821 256,562

21 5 Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continueq)

Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds (continuea)

The interest charge of the Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds for
the year ended 31 December 2018 is calculated using the
effective interest method by applying an effective interest
rate of approximately 31% (2017: 31%) to the liability
component.

A summary of movements in the derivative component of
the Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds is as follow:

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

20, ORI EHF &)

F-MUBRRES (2)

HE-Z-— ) N\E+-_A=t—HILEE F—
AT ES 2 F B HTYIRBER A RE
REaBERHI 2 ERMERHI1% (ZE—+F:
31% )T & -

F_HAIBRREFITERSNES B AL T

2018 2017
—E-N\%F —F—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
At 1 January n—HA—H 36,153 6,260
Change in fair value of derivative MESHEBERATERE
financial liabilities (36,153) 29,893
At 31 December Rt+ZA=+— - 36,153
EXTLREEBBRAT
—E- \EFRK
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

30. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 30. FEfHE AR (E
PAYABLE

2018 2017
—ET-N\FE el
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET BT
At 1 January n—H—H 1,563 -
Arising from business combination EBEHFEE - 1,563

Change in fair value change of ENSARERTEE
contingent consideration payable (1,563) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—AH - 1,563

On 14 September 2017, the Company entered into share
purchase agreement with a related party, controlled by
a director and a shareholder of the Company for the
acquisition of entire equity interest of Starlight Legend
Group. On 13 December 2017, the Group completed
the acquisition at an aggregate consideration of
HK$161,015,000, details of the acquisition are set out in
note 306.

According to the share purchase agreement, if the cash
dividends received by the Group or its relevant subsidiaries
in the course of operating those existing projects operated
by the Starlight Legend Group for three years immediately
following the specified period pursuant to the terms
of share purchase agreement have exceeded the total
amount of the consideration share and promissory note
issued plus the relevant interest according to the term of
the share purchase agreement, the vendor shall be entitled
to 30% of all excess mentioned above.

Agreed payment is a contingent consideration that will
be realised if the acquired businesses and the existing
projects achieve their respective profit target, calculated on
certain predetermined basis, during the designated period
of time.
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NZZE—+FNATIA AAREHBARQ A
—RESE LRGN — R AT S BN
# - W H Starlight Legend®E B &) 2 ZRA% 7 - 1A
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30. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

PAYABLE (continued)

The Group recognised the fair value of those contingent
consideration for acquisition, as of its acquisition date as
part of the consideration transferred in exchange for the
acquired business. The fair value measurement requires,
among other things, significant estimation of post-
acquisition performance of the acquired businesses and
significant judgement on time value of money.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group and the promissory
note holder involved an independent valuer to conduct a
valuation of Starlight Legend Group as at 31 December
2018. Based on the valuation, a fair value gain of
HK$1,563,000 in relation to the contingent consideration
payable was recognised.

30.

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

FE& {2k AKX (B (=)

AEEBRBSENZSAARENELER
A FEERSBRIBE WBEHNER
REN—FD X FEFEFR (EPERE)Y
B EBNBBRIROEAETRYEE
BRI EENERHE-

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H FAEE K
REEFEA AEZ— LB ERDE Starlight
LegendEBR —_ZE—N\F+-A=+—H2Z#
BETHGH - BREBEGHE FHDERENL KA
REZ A FE W A1,563,000% 7T

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B&
Shares B 12
2018 2017
—E-\F Tt
Number of Number of
shares Nominal Value shares Nominal Value
g |iE BHEH \fE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SRAEE01IEITAEER  20,000,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREEOIBTMEBR 673,564,799 67,356 673,564,799 67,356
Bt eEmERAD
—E— \FER
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31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 31.

Shares (continuea)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital

R )

A5 ()
AAFRALE R T :

is as follow:
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
e B %3
HK$’000
T
At 1 January 2017 R-—ZE—+F—H—H 493,564,800 49,356
Shares issued upon conversion of R AR E S IR 21T
convertible bonds (note a) BRR D (Mista) 158,999,999 15,900
Shares issued upon completion of R TER UL EE — AP B A Bl B
acquisition of a subsidiary (note b) TR (FFED) 21,000,000 2,100
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 R_ZE—+tF+-_A=+—8"
and 31 December 2018 —E-NEF-—HA-BEkZ=F
—NF+-A=+—A~ 673,564,799 67,356
Notes: B 5T
(@) During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain @ REE-T—tF+_A=+—RHLFE"
convertible bonds (Tranche 1) were converted to subscribe BETABREES (B EERUREAHK
for a total of 158,999,999 ordinary shares in the Company. 158,999,999% 7 A & & 8 % - A #15,900,000
HK$15,900,000 was transferred to share capital and 75 7T I #4 36,838,00078 7T 7 BIl B 8 8 = g K
balance of HK$36,838,000 was transferred to the share K B 19 34 (B B © 20,427,000/ ST IR E pA 8 2 ]
premium account. An amount of HK$20,427,000 was also HMRELSB R AT RRESEEERERD B
transferred to share premium account from convertible R o
bonds reserves upon the conversion of convertible bonds.
(o) On 13 December 2017, a total of 21,000,000 ordinary ) RZZT—EFE+T-A+=H FAAFAEELRE
shares in the Company were allotted and issued for 7746 #£21,000,0000% & i % LA 3B 575 B 1R A UK
partial settlement of total consideration of the acquisition HEAFMR3.08B THmEET 2 KEEEY

at a market price of HK$3.08 per share at the date of
acquisition. HK$2,100,000 was transferred to share capital
and a balance of HK$62,580,000 was transferred to the

share premium amount.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company on 1
June 2012, an ordinary resolution to propose a new
share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”)
was passed. The 2012 Share Option Scheme was
thus approved and adopted at the general meeting
and subsequently approval was granted by the Stock
Exchange. The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid and
effective for 10 years commencing from the adoption date
(i.,e. 1 June 2012). The number of shares, which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and other schemes
adopted by the Group, is not permitted to exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.
The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and
other schemes adopted by the Group in aggregate is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the adoption date. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual
is not permitted to exceed (i) 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue, and (i) HK$5,000,000 in aggregate
value based on the closing price of the shares at the date
of each grant, in any 12-month period unless such grant
is approved by independent shareholders at a general
meeting.

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

32. fslix #E&t &l

EARRR - E——F XA —BRITZREA
FREL g EFERETS (22—
FHEBREFS D 2 ERAZRCEBRBE - —F
——FERETERAENRREARG FEMER
B BEREEABRAELE - —ZF
BRETE Y EEME R (A = — —F XA
—HB)RBRATFEFRAER-TERE - —Z=F
BRETERAEEFERNZ MBI E 2T
BERMATEEREMAIEETZROEE T
BEBTMEEAAARBEEITRMD Z30% 1R
BT FERETSRAEER R M
ETEIRIRE R IR s BB RN BECT S
BRMBBAARNBT B BTG 210% « REM
+ — @ A HAR - Al RE AT A A £ 2 B R AE
ZEBBRMBEEINERBBOAQTEETRMGD
201% R(VRIERSELBHRG 2 WHE
& 2 #(81E 25,000,000/ T BRIEEBEE
BB BRRRRERS EHOER S ER -

ERANLRERERRAT
2 )\FFRH
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At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —%

32.

33.

—-N\F+t-A=t-H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Consideration of HK$1 is payable by the grantee on
the acceptance of options granted. An option maybe
exercised from the date of acceptance of the offer of such
option to the earlier of the date on which such option
lapses and 10 years from the offer date of that option.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the date of the grant of the options, and the average of
the closing prices of the shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the options.

Since the adoption of the above scheme, no share options
have been granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
up to 31 December 2018.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions charged to
profit or loss represent contributions payable to the MPF
schemes by the Group at specified rates.

The employees of one of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operates in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the retirement
benefits scheme contributions were approximately
HK$406,000 (2017: HK$490,000).
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34. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The share premium of the Group represents the amount
subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

The investment revaluation reserve represents the
cumulative gains/losses arising on recognising financial
assets classified as available-for-sale investments at fair
value.

The convertible bonds reserve represents the equity
components of the convertible bonds issued. The
convertible bonds issued are split into liability and equity
components at initial recognition at the fair values of the
convertible bonds.

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H
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At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

WITH MATERIAL NON-

CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-

35. BRI 2 I B
A

BRABAERFERERZAKRENB AR

controlling interests are set out below: BEHINAT :
2018 2017
—E—)\f —T—+F
Percentage of equity interest held by R R A 2
non-controlling interests: At
Jimei Entertainment Cambodia Jimei Entertainment Cambodia
Development Limited Development Limited 49% 49%
Marshall Holding, LLC Marshall Holding, LLC 49% 49%
2018 2017
—B-N\E —E—+1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT THT
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to FANDE T IEER R
non-controlling interests: wH (EE)
Jimei Entertainment Cambodia Jimei Entertainment Cambodia
Development Limited Development Limited 477 (2,780)
Marshall Holding, LLC Marshall Holding, LLC (4,278) (99)
2018 2017
—E-N\f —E—+1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
Accumulated balances of IR ER 2 BEHAER:
non-controlling interests:
Jimei Entertainment Cambodia Jimei Entertainment Cambodia
Development Limited Development Limited (45,897) (46,374)
Marshall Holding, LLC Marshall Holding, LLC (71) 4,207

223 Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018



e

Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —E—\E+=-A=+—H

35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 35. R E KIS Z 1Ak b B
WITH MATERIAL NON- A8 (#)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continuea)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TRINRTD LB AR 2 W BEER B - fr
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts BELBIHEMA AR BIEET 228

disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

Jimei
Entertainment
Cambodia
Development Marshall
Limited Holding, LLC
2018 —E-N\EF HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Total other income Habg A 4258 974 10,439
Total expenses X B R = (19,188)
Gain/(Loss) for the year and total FAWE () &
comprehensive income for the year FAEHMB LT 974 (8,749)
Current assets MENE E 2,509 5,981
Non-current assets EMBEE - -
Current liabilities mEBE (96,175) (6,224)
Non-current liabilities EmBBE = =
Net cash flows from operating activities ~ && %K 2R &R EFE - 5,644
Net cash flows from investing activities REEB 2 REREFHE - -
Net cash flows used in financing activities FAREIE EE 2R E REFHE - (4,857)
Net increase in cash and RehBeEEER
cash equivalents #HFEEE - 787

ERANLRERERRAT
Sz nzen 224
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At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 35. B E K IEIE IR HERR 2 4 B B /B

WITH MATERIAL NON-

AT (&)

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continueq)

Jimei
Entertainment
Cambodia
Development Marshall
Limited Holding, LLC
2017 —T—+F HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Revenue g 1,743 -
Total expenses Fx &5 (7,416) (202)
Loss for the year and total comprehensive F N E1E & F A2 N E 5
income for the year (5,673) (202)
Current assets MBEE 13,206 46,706
Non-current assets EMBEE - -
Current liabilities RBAE (107,847) (36,582)
Non-current liabilities FEMBEE - -
Net cash flows from operating activities ~ && %K 2R &R EFE 2,216 1
Net cash flows from investing activities REEB RS RE TR - -
Net cash flows used in financing activities FIREIE £ 2R &R E/F 5 (3,279) -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RekBeFEEE OBd),/
cash equivalents #hF R (1,063) 1

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION 36. £15 6
On 13 December 2017, the Group completed the RZE—+tF+ZA+=0 AEETKARX
acquisition of entire equity interest of the Starlight Legend ARRAERNERBRREREE (A2 —tFH0
Group from the then controlling shareholder and also a A B A 30 Uk B Starlight Legend®: B 2 2 Z0A%
director of the Company with effect from April 2017 at an - BHREBA161,015,000/8 7T °

aggregate consideration of HK$161,015,000.

The principal activities of the Starlight Legend Group are Starlight Legendf @ 2 £ B £ iE & N R G I 715
set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. RERMIFE -
The fair values of net assets acquired at the date of RUE BB FEEN A TFEAT

acquisition are as follows:

HK$’000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y WE KR 327
Film product (note a) BExEM (MiFa) 16,855
Prepayments, deposits and BAFIE ek
other receivables (note b) H b fE UL k8 (M FEb) 58,637
Bank and cash balances RIT R4 5,556
Other payables E S 5RE (8,306)
Bank loan IRITER (4,844)
Total identifiable net assets at provisional fair value R E F A FETER A PIFE EET 68,225
Non-controlling interests (note c) JEfE AR R (FisEc) (5,881)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 16) WEERTE 4+ 22 (K3E16) 98,671
Total consideration MR E 161,015
Total consideration satisfied by: LATH AR B ERNERE:
Ordinary shares (note d) L@k (MisEd) 64,680
Promissory note (note 28) F R (f3E28) 94,772
Contingent consideration payable (note 30) FEF S ARAE (MTES0) 1,563
161,015

ER TR R AR T
“xo sy 220
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31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(@ The film product represented a motion picture held
by one of the subsidiaries of the Starlight Legend
Group.

(b)  The amount contained prepayment to film directors
and prepayment to film/television series production
in course of production of entertainment content
including films and drama series.

(c) The amount represented the non-controlling interest
in the subsidiaries of the Starlight Legend Group as
at the acquisition date.

(d) The amount represented issue of 21,000,000
ordinary shares at HK$3.08 per share, which is
the market value as at the date of acquisition,
with a total share consideration of approximately
HK$64,680,000.

Since acquisition, the Starlight Legend Group had no
revenue and made a loss of HK$627,839 to the Group
during 2017. If the acquisition of Starlight Legend
Group effected during 2017 had been taken place at
the beginning of 2017, the revenue and loss of the
Group of 2017 would have been HK$39,958,000 and
HK$330,672,000 respectively.

The Group has selected to measure the non-controlling
interests at their proportionate interests in the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the Starlight Legend Group.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition
of a subsidiary is as follows:

36.

E¥BEH =)

(@) EFE ShiEStarlight Legends B — & M
BRAFMBENER -

b HEEEEATYEERNEMHARS
YRERHSRENTRIEFEMNE
% BRBBERE

(c) =% AR A HiStarlight Legend&
EHBAT M IR

d) Ze2HEAILZER3.088 T (RWEBEE>
HB) £ 1721,000,0000% & i@ & - 42 B% 15
R B4 A64,680,0005 7T

B U B8 LA 3K - Starlight Legend®= @ —Z —+
FIm s R A S E S E18627,839%
7T © i 7 = F — + 4 W B Starlight Legend %= &
ERZE—LFEMET AEER T — L
F ey & B 18 1§ 9 5l 539,958,000/ T K&
330,672,000/ JT °

N5 [E B 3% 12 17 BB 7 Starlight Legend 5= [ 7] 5
AEERBENERL AT 23R MRER -

BRAYBE-—HMBARZREREDTOT

HK$'000

FHT

Bank and cash balances acquired Fri i IR & R IRTT A5 54 5,556
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in T AR EXEHB 2R REZ

cash flows from investing activities RekBReEBEEERAFE 5,556

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018



LY

=

»

Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —E—\E+=-A=+—H

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. HEMBAF

During the year, the Group disposed of Jimei Entertainment FRN-AEEEHEJimei Entertainment
Overseas Development Ltd., Sino Green Energy Overseas Development Ltd. - FEI4kEEE ¥ H
International Co., Ltd. and their subsidiaries Ostar IR~ & & 1EEHH 8 A & Ostar International
International Entertainment Pty Ltd.and 2= B SR 87 £ /712 & Entertainment Pty Ltd. N BB RET 272 8 &

LEHBERDF. AR AR
2018
—B-N\E
HK$’000
FHET

Net assets disposed of: BHEEEFE:

Cash and bank balances e MRITHE R 692

Trade payables g S ENFRIA (296)

Other payable and accruals HMRER /I R EET B A (410)

Loans from non-controlling shareholders of KEME R FEERBR R ER

subsidiaries (1,951)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR o 1,294
(671)

Exchange fluctuation reserve & 5K B 2,194
1,523

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHNBRRNEE (722)
801

Satisfied by: BUATHE:

Cash e 801
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents EHRLEMNBATNAE e RAEEEBFN
in respect of the disposal of the subsidiaries is as follows: AR DITER T

2018

—E-N\E

HK$’000

FHET

Cash consideration ReRE 801

Cash and bank balances disposed of BHENE S MIRITER (692)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BRLE KB ARZ

in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary RehkBeEEBEEFRA 109

EXLREEBEFRAT
=AWARAT 228
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31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@ Major non-cash transaction

During the year, the redemption of the Tranche
2 Convertible Bonds with carrying amount of
HK$17,000,000 was settled by issuance of

promissory note (2017: Nil).

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from

financing activities

38. FEMERBRMEE

@ EEFREXZ

- fE B AREE /17,000,000 7T 8 6
—HABMREFEUNETEALERS R

EE( T —EF:8)-

b) MEZRBFELERERD

—E-N\E
2018
Bank and other Convertible
borrowings bonds
SRITR
HihfEE R AR &%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET TET
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\EFE—H—H 12,799 256,562
Changes from financing cash flows Bl& IR & HE & 259,321 (58,285)
Redemption of convertible bonds A Z£ 1775 3, Z & & 0]
by issuance of a promissory note A # i (& % - (17,000)
Interest expense MERXZ - 85,544
Foreign exchange movement b i & - -
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE—N\F
+=ZA=+—H 272,120 266,821
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31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 38. IREHERERME 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from b) METEMELEEEEE 0
financing activities (continuea)
2017 —E—tF
Bank and other Convertible
borrowings bonds
H|ITR
HMEE AR (E 5
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FAT TFAT
At 1 January 2017 R—ZE—+F—H—AH 12,220 257,585
Changes from financing cash flows Bl& IR & E 2 6,221) (25,200)
Equity component of AMRES 2 ERH D
convertible bonds - (52,738)
Interest expense F B - 76,915
Increase arising from W B B B 2 R)3E N
acquisition of subsidiaries 6,800 -
Foreign exchange movement i & - -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+=ZA=+—8H 12,799 256,562

EXLREEBEFRAT
=AWARLT 230



231

Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

39. OPERATING LEASE 39.

ARRANGEMENTS

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and office
equipment under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from three
to six years, and those for office equipment are for terms
ranging between two and five years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

i
I

HE=H

f

ERERA

AEERBEEHELHFHELSTRAYE
EpngRE - MEREZHEEMNF =2
F MHZERIRB2HEBNFMERF-

RZE-NF+ZA=+—8 xEERET
AR B A 2 KRR REE N RERARR
NFATEE:

2018 2017

—T-N\EFE —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

T T

Within one year —FNR 3,808 3,594
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEFRF

(BHREREMF) 7,422 4,906

After five years HF% 109 -

11,339 8,500
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31 December 2018 —E—\E+=-A=+—H

40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. EXRFEIE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed Prag a0 EAHER 5 R E XX EE395N R H
in note 39 above, the Group had the following capital REMERRBAT 2 EAREASE:

41.

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

2018 2017
—T-N\E —E—LtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Contracted, but not provided for: BEIA BEREBE:
Film prepayments AR ¢ 85,364 160,970
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS M. AR S
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in FAN BUBHRERMAEMZ H I NEBH
these financial statements, the Group had the following R TR ST
transactions with related parties during the year:
() Particulars of rental expenses paid to (i) EN—EBEBHALTZHESEAX
a related party E3
2018 2017
—E—N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
A related company — controlled by —~ — B A R — AR A
a director of the Company —BEEITH - 425
EXALREEBARAT
ZE-\FFHR
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31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS M. BB BERXS 2

(continued)
(i) Compensation of key management iy FEBEXTEEEASEHMH:
personnel of the Group:
The remuneration of the key management of the FRNREETEEEASHMET :
Group during the year was as follows:
2018 2017
—T—N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Short term employee benefits 52 HAtE A 9,647 9,508
Retirement benefits scheme RIRAEFIFTEI R
contributions 26 26
9,673 9,534
The remuneration of directors and other members EENEMTEEEEXNEZHMNAE
of key management is determined by the board EEED2ERAARERMSBEET -
of directors having regard to the performance of
individual and market trends.
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s EHRESKITZCHESH N & —P5F
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial BEENI B IREMIES o
statements.
(i) Acquisition of the United States (i) R=ZZB—LtFWEBEXERQA
companies in 2017
During the year ended 31 December 2017, REgzE-—E—+tE+-_A=+—HI=E
the Group acquired the entire equity interest of [ AEE B8R E161,015,000% T M
Starlight Legend Group from the then a controlling & IR A 4% A% A% 3R 4B Starlight Legend&e
shareholder at an aggregate consideration of B2 IR AE - WA FE B H A M 536 -
HK$161,015,000, details of the acquisition is set out
in note 36.
(iv) Amount due from a director (iv) EWEEZFIE
2018 2017
—T-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Amount due from a director FEWE EHIR
- Luo Lei (note 18) —#&FE (MIzx18) 78 39

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2018



41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE
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M. FBBERS 2

(continued)
(v) Particulars of utilities expenses paid v) EN—ZBHAINARAEER
to a related party XHE
2018 2017
—E—-)\E —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FBTT
A related company — — 2@ —
controlled by the directors or REEN
their close family members Hir g EiEsl - 18

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as the end of the reporting period as follows:

As at 31 December 2018

42. HFEA ST ERMIT A

RBERAR R TAZESBENKREEN
~

RZE—NF+_A=+—H

Financial
assets at
amortised cost
R A
FTREZERMEE
Financial assets EREE HK$’000
FHET
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIE 698
Contract assets EHMEE 54,850
Financial assets included in T ATER R - R R
prepayments, other receivables HMEEZERMERE
and other assets 69,413
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEeEBEER 26,907
151,868
EXLREEBEFRAT
ZE - \FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 42, FRERNEIPHEM IR 2

CATEGORY (continueq)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RIS A
ATEZEREE
Financial liabilities SRERE HK$’000
FHT
Interest-bearing bank and FFERITRHEMEE
other borrowings 272,120
Promissory note A EE 17,000
Convertible bonds AR & 5 266,821
Amounts due to non-controlling FET BT B & B 3E 12 AR IR 3R 5UIE
shareholders of subsidiaries 20,900
Financial liabilities included in trade A S REMENKIE
and other payables SHEE 30,848
607,689
As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+-_A=+—H
Available-for-sale Loans and
Investments receivables Total
ARHERE  EXRREKFE st
Financial assets SHEE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRAT AT TET
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 9,313 - 9,313
Trade receivables B S EMER - 6,214 6,214
Financial assets included in AR B REER
prepayments, other receivables HtMEEZEREE
and other assets - 55,025 55,025
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeEEER - 96,647 96,647
9,313 157,886 167,199
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A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —E—\E+=-A=+—H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 42. RENEIPHEM IR 2

CATEGORY (continued)

As at 31 December 2017 (continued) RZE—+tF+=A=+—8 (&)

Financial liabilities

at fair value through
profit or loss
BRBEAATE
FIEMERAE
Designated
as such Financial
upon initial liabilities at
recognition amortised cost Total
REHRR  REEKAHE
B MeEmaR st
Financial liabilities SHAafR HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT AT TET
Derivative financial instruments TEemIA 36,153 - 36,153
Contingent consideration payable R EARE 1,563 - 1,563
Interest-bearing bank and TERITREMEER
other borrowings - 12,799 12,799
Promissory note ESES - 95,226 95,226
Convertible bonds AR ES - 256,562 256,562
Amounts due to non-controlling JERT BB A Rl FE AR R R 3B
shareholders of subsidiaries - 22,985 22,985
Financial liabilities included in trade FAB S RHMENFIEZ
and other payables PREE - 26,672 26,672
37,716 414,244 451,960
ERXTILREEEF/RAT

“E-N\FFR



Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s

43. EMTEMAFERAEERBR

AEETRTA(RHEREATESEMEEE

financial instruments, other than those with carrying BN EREME R AFED T
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as
follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
ARE(E AEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\F ~—T-tF ZB-\F -—F-tfF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T THR F# TR
Financial assets SRIEE:
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE - 9,313 - 9,313
Financial liabilities ERERE
Convertible bonds AR E 5 266,821 256,562 255,000 280,000
Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings FERTREMEE 272,120 12,799 272,640 12,799
Contingent consideration payable FERT KA E - 1,563 - 1,563
Promissory note EEER 17,000 95,226 17,000 95,226
Derivative financial instrument TEEmBaRE - 36,153 - 36,153
Non-current other payables e B E M (S FRIA 1,552 - 1,381 -
557,493 402,303 546,021 425,741

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets, financial liabilities included in trade payables, other
payables and accruals, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, and interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.
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Annual Report 2018

EREENHRELNEEFEER BEHRIK
FIEFTARNRRE HEEEREBE
EZEREE St AEHENFIA HMEN
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Notes to Financial Statements

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own
non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at 31 December 2018 was assessed
to be insignificant. The fair value of the liability portion
of the convertible bonds is estimated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using an equivalent
market interest rate for a similar convertible bond with
consideration of the Group’s own non-performance risk.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices.

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

43. EMTENMAFERAEERBR

(%)

AEBBHPHEEAENMBHAEHEDR
TARAFEFENBERERF VHEER
BERAMBRENEZZESER REREH
Mo TABENESER
TEEHEMANEREABE - HEHTH
BEERLHE - HEEERERBEREZE
SEFETMARN®  AER B RFEMEH
o

TREENBEZANERZTANBRE)
ERS GHERFEMRE)PARBZ S
RRTIER - At A FERRKBIATTERRR:

AFRIRTTREMBE Z IR DM FETD
BOERNEBRLGS  EERR MRS
MTENBRTHMEEREARKESREN
B-AEER-_ZF-\F+-A=+—HM5
BRITREMEENTBEORARMER/ALTE
R-BERBAKENTEARR AR RES
BEFONAFERBUNTRERESNRSEH
BHETRBERARRERERE -

ERBRAREZ R ERABHERSL -

ERANLRERERRAT
2 )\FFRH
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group recoginsed the fair value of contingent
consideration payable for the business acquisition, as at
the acquisition date as part of the consideration transferred
in exchange for the acquired business. As at 31 December
2018, the fair value of the contingent consideration
payable is determined using the discounted cash flows
model. The fair value measurement requires, among
other things, significant estimation of post-acquisition
performance of the acquired business and significant
judgement on time value of money. The significant
unobservable input used in the fair value measurement
is the estimated cash inflow and the growth rates of the
acquired business. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the estimated cash inflow and the growth
rates. A significant increase in the estimated cash inflow
and the growth rates would result in a significant increase
in the fair value of the contingent consideration payable.
A significant decrease in estimated cash inflow and the
growth rates would result in a significant decrease in the
fair value of the contingent consideration payable.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of contingent
consideration payable was determined using monte
carlo simulation valuation method and the significant
unobservable input used in the fair value measurement
was the expected revenue drift rate. It was estimated
that while all other variables held constant, a significant
increase in the expected revenue drift rate would result
in a significant increase in the fair value of the contingent
consideration payable. A significant decrease in expected
revenue drift rate would result in a significant decrease in
the fair value of the contingent consideration payable.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

43.

ERTAEMNAFERAFERR
(%)

AEBBEBHREORMSIARERIE B
MAFERRSARIBE RBEHNE RN
BW—Ho R_FT—-NF+-_A=+—8"
ENIAREN L FERBUERASRERE
HBE-AFEAEFE (EHeR) SrlEx
BRRBERORIVIELER G MEERERE
BEELEXRHG A TFEFEFEANEX
THBRGABERSCWBEEBOERDR
ARBRE - RFEFERAFRERAKLIE
RERIEHB - At R RARE R T AIEE
BB XAREN R FEARIEN- 5
BEmARIERR KRR D EHEMNHARAK
BZRFEKRERD -

RZBE—+F+ZA=+—HB EFHIARE
ZAFEDNRASHRERBRGEEEE M
RFEAEFRBZERTAERBAERE
H S RB R - BET WAAEMIEEER
MmN g B ERE R KRGS EE
NHAREN R FEREE M- B W RS
TR K ERENHARBH R FERRE
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Notes to Financial Statements

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair value of the promissory note is based on the
valuation of the Starlight Legend Group as of 31 December
2018. The valuation of the Starlight Legend Group was
calculated based on the discounted cash flows method
and the key assumptions included discount rates,
growth rates, forecast revenue and gross margins. Such
estimation is based on the historical box office of the same
director and main cast members, the market comparable
data of fims with the same theme, and management’s
expectations of the market development. A significant
increase in the estimated cash inflow and the growth rates
in isolation would result in a significant increase in the
fair value of the promissory note. A significant decrease
in discount rates in isolation would result in a significant
increase in the fair value of the promissory note.

The fair value of derivative financial instrument as of 31
December 2018 and 2017 is determined using binomial
option pricing model and the significant unobservable
input used in the fair value measurement is the expected
volatility. The fair value measurement is positively correlated
to the expected volatility. A significant increase in the
expected volatility would result in a significant increase
in the fair value of the derivative financial instrument. A
significant decrease in expected volatility would result in
a significant decrease in the fair value of the derivative
financial instrument.

The discount for lack of marketability represents the
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the
Group that market participants would take into account
when pricing the investments.

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

43. EMTENMAFERAEERBR

(%)

F L E R /A A T E A Starlight Legend% &
HE-_Z-\F+_A=Z+—HLLZHEM
JE ° Starlight Lengend$s [ 2 (& Ty R R AL IR
BemERBEMEE HRE BAKERE
MEZEFERJ[FE -ZEDHRBEERSEE
REEEEMNBAIERE HEXTEEFHNMIS
EEBEUREEBEMISEENTEHEL -
BAFTRES M2 RIE & X 8 KR 55 0 #5 8 gUk
HEERAQFERELE I 2850 R RER
DB HAERRBEN A FEKREEM.

TEEMIABE T \FR_T—+1#F
TZA=1T—BORFEDER ZBEAMEE
BEILETE MAFEFEMERHNERNTA
BRS AR RTEHKIE - A FEFERTE
HYR 18 A IE AR BARA R - TR E R0 RN IR G hn s 8
BOTHE SR T RN R FEARE N - FEHK IS
RIER DB EHITES R T AN R FEKRER

Ao

RZAHEETERAREMEEM G2 EERE
RREETEREERMNGERTESE-

ERANLRERERRAT
2 )\FFRH
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Notes to Financial Statements

At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

(%)

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assels measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2017

DR EER

43. EMTEMAFERAFEERBR

TRIIFAEEERMIAZ AFEFERR:

BAFEGTEZEE:
W=F—t#+-B=+—A

Fair value measurement using

FERATEEBEMEZ A FEFE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RER  EXTUEE EBEATITHEER
minaE BABE BABE
(F—%) (B=8) (B=4) @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T T THT
Available-for-sale investments AHREERE 9,313 - - 9,313
9,313 - - 9,313

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited

Annual Report 2018



"

Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 43. EMTAEMAFEHERAEEELR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (4&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEEBHR 2
Liabilities measured at fair value: BRAFHEITEZEE:
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ERATEEMEZ AT EE
Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

NER  BAUBE EXTIER
iz HE BARE BAHE

(F—H) (B8=4) (=) Bar

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET FET FET

Contingent consideration payable [ER S AKE - - 1,563 1,563

Derivative financial instruments TEEBTIA - - 36,153 36,153

- - 37,716 37,716

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RERN E—REE R AQNFEAELE

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no HE O NESHEENSREGEEASE LS
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and “HHBR(ZE—CF &)

financial liabilities (2017: Nil).

ERANLRERERRAT
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At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. A EEGEEEHERBEK

243

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
available-for-sale investments, convertible bonds,
promissory note, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, derivative financial liabilities and cash and
cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, price risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest-rate risk mainly arises from
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The Group
has not used any financial instruments to hedge potential
fluctuations in interest rates.

The Group’s fair value interest-rate risk mainly arises from
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, convertible
bonds, and promissory note. Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, convertible bonds, and promissory
note were issued at fixed rates which expose the Group
to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group has no cash
flow interest-rate risk as there are no borrowings which
bear floating interest rates. The Group has not used any
financial instruments to hedge potential fluctuations in
interest rates.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —E—\E+=-A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. U EGEEEEERBR )
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
Interest rate risk (continued) =R [ B ()
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRHEJNENESBA LIRS 2 BRAE:

reasonably possible change in interest rates:

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points loss after tax
B Hiiggsia
Wi, (iBd) Wi, (RY)
HK$’000
TET
2018 —T-N\E
United States dollar ET 100 2
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 56
United States dollar ETT (100) 2
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) (56)
2017 —T—t#
United States dollar ETT 100 1
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 669
United States dollar ETT (100) 1)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) (669)

EXALREEBARAT
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At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

245

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continueq)

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
investments decrease or increase as a result of changes
in the levels of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group was exposed to price risk arising
from individual investments classified as financial assets
available-for-sale investment (note 15) as at 31 December
2017. As at 31 December 2018, all the equity investments
had been disposed and no such price risk existed.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Approximately 100% (2017:100%) of the Group’s sales
were denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies.
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4. BB EGEBEHERBK 2

B E R

(B4R L 18 A B AR 18 BUKF K B 5 & 7+ (B E 2
HMBHREREN R TFERDHIE N KE
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RREDBRAFRLERE (ME15) M2 R
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B AENBRERESERE BMEERRER
T
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. BEEBEEBERBEK )
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SRS (2)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end TREJNEMAHMERESTEZBRT
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change AEBKRBEEE(REBEERGEBERATE
in the RMB, USD and AUD exchange rate, with all other BEME) RAEE 2 R BN RE AR
variables held constant, of the Group’s loss after tax BAREK ETKBITERZAEAEES 2
(due to changes in the fair values of monetary assets and BRE o

liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
USD/RMB/AUD (decrease) in
rate% loss after tax
Exn ARE XY oF |
BT, (EL) Wi, (RY)
tEE % HK$’000
FTET
2018 —F-N\EF
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BT HETEE
against the USD 1 210
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens T 2 =TT HE
against the USD (1) (210)
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens i T AR BE(E
against the RMB 1 (478)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BT AREHE
against the RMB (1) 478
2017 —F-tH
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens fis 7 T AR LB A
against the AUD 1 (139)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens fis 7 70 5B T FHE
against the AUD (1) 139
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BT R ARBEE
against the RMB 1 (93)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens i BT AREHE
against the RMB (1) 93

ER TR R AR T
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers

who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to

credit

verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure

to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as

at 31 December 2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and

year-end staging classification as at 31 December

2018.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets and the exposure to credit risk.

4. BB EGEBEHERBK 2

FEER

AEEERGRTRERRINESHZ S
AEEREREHERBEEHRSNESE
ETERBHES N ARG R AR
PO O 4+ Lt 7 S 7R 5 1 HE B LR 3
FEA-

REZFB-NFF+ZA=F+—HHRA
2B i O K F K P e B R

TRERIR-_ZE-N\F+-_A=1+—HAHNEE
BRPEARAKBEERRNZEAEERRIK
A TEENBEEAMEN (KFEFEMLER
THEORAKZ NI ESNER) URFR
FrENEBRDEFG -M2INSERZFTE
MEENEHAERAECERR-

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A A
FEBR FENHESEEBA
Simplified
Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
EFEE BB E-RE Gkl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT THET FHET FET
Contract assets* BHEE" - - - 55,404 55,404
Trade receivables* B S BRKR - - - 7,331 7,331
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBFELEE
1H B
- Not yet past due — A A< 180 26,907 - - - 26,907
Financial assets included AN SREBERE
in prepayments, fth FE IR R IE B &
other receivables and A E
other assets
~ Normal** —IEE™ 67,574 - - - 67,574
- Doubtful™* — Al &+ - - 136,434 - 136,434
94,481 - 136,434 62,735 293,650
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continueq)

Credit risk (continued)

For trade receivables and contract assets which the Group
applies simplified approach lifetime ECL, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 17 and 19 the
financial statements, respectively.

* The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, other receivables
and certain derivative instruments, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the
Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in different
sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements.
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44. BEREBEBREHERBUER 2

EERMK #)

* SASEEERM A FENHERNEEEE
MEZREERRAWEEN S  ENBEE
P ) B L0 BB B 15 SR MY RE 17 R 19 4 R

o BEARMZOR HBKZAREMEED
EREEAABPABBENBRZSTERNE
EBNSERARAEERBBEZIZMOTR
AZEeREENEEEERBRIER] B
A ZEeMEENEEERRER (A -

R-E—+tFEL-—F=+—HHERX
BB i O

rEBzEMEREE (BRASIAERSF
HE HMERRERETIIETASZSRE
E)NEERBRRAEEFHELN KRSERA
ERZETANEKEE-

HRAEEEEERAIREBRINE=ZTX
5 FABARFKERGR EERBRHEPE
RREP/HE IR A RITERRIRER
HRAKEEZREERNEPREREZDMRN
TRERTE AREYBEBEAEERRE
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. AR BEEEERBE &)

249

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continueq)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents or have available funding through an adequate
amount of committed facilities from banks to meet its
commitments over the foreseeable future in accordance
with its strategic plan.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.
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Notes to Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —E—\E+=-A=+—H

4. BEEGEEEHERBE &)

REBELERE 2

REAORBEANT AEERRERRZE
REEIHBERAMT

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Less than 1to5
1 year years Total
br—% —ERE a%
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR TR
2018 —E-N\F
Interest-bearing bank FERITREMEE
and other borrowings 165,282 126,092 291,374
Trade and other payables ZEHREMEMNFIE 29,296 1,552 30,848
Amounts due to non-controlling FERTHIB A AR
shareholders of subsidiaries R 20,900 - 20,900
Convertible bonds ERES 279,277 - 279,277
Promissory note e 17,545 - 17,545
512,300 127,644 639,944
2017 —T—tF
Interest-bearing bank and AEHRAREMEE
other borrowings 13,060 - 13,060
Trade and other payables BB SHIBREMERFE 26,672 - 26,672
Amounts due to non-controlling JER B AR IR
shareholders of subsidiaries B E] 22,985 - 22,985
Convertible bonds AERES 340,200 - 340,200
Promissory note EREE 100,500 - 100,500
503,417 - 503,417
EXALREEBARAT

—E-N\FER
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At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. The Group made no change to its capital structure
between 2018 and 2017.

Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, convertible bonds, promissory note, amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, trade
payables and other payables and accruals, less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to
owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

4. BB EGEBEHERBK 2

EXRER
AEBMEAEEZERRAEABRAKSEAR
FEREZEN BERRRZERL R B
MREXBEELEERABRRER-

AEBERBEHEERZH RAAMEEZ AR
FTHERHEEASBLFLAE - R-_F—N
FR-_FT-LFHE ARENELERRE
BAEL-

ERFEREFRRTREMES TERE
- AGLRE - AT E A R SE AR AR FOR -
FEATE 5 BR AR S B b JE A SRR K B A B R RR
MRS FEEB - BEABREERBHEAARE
EREE - NERERRNERBBELERAT:

2018 2017
—T—N\F —E—EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T

Interest-bearing bank and BRI REMEER

other borrowings 272,120 12,799
Convertible bonds AR S 266,821 256,562
Promissory note A R 17,000 95,226
Amounts due to non-controlling FEASTB B A R SRR IR AR R

shareholders of subsidiaries E sl 20,900 22,985
Trade payables JETE SR 3,219 3,177
Other payables and accruals HE A RERETER 26,077 23,495
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B:RehBEeEBEIEE (26,907) (96,647)
Net debt FEE 579,230 317,597
Equity attributable to owners NElEB AEE#ER

of the parent (117,290) (68,990)
Capital and net debt BEARFFEE 461,940 248,607
Gearing ratio BERBEHLE 125% 128%
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Notes to Financial Statements

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

A F5 R R b aE

31 December 2018 —Z—N\E+=-A=1+—H

45. XA BRI R

BERSTHR BERARRZHBRRERZE

2018 2017
—E—-)\F T+ F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FA&TT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IEREEE
Property, plant and equipment VI WS KRR 123 162
Available-for-sale investments AHEEKRE - 9,313
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRIZIKE 58,736 161,015
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 58,859 170,490
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Other receivables H b pE U 3R IB 35,554 15,692
Amounts due from subsidiaries A R EENEIE =] 16,027 50,311
Cash and bank balances He MIRTT4 8 3,247 66,189
Total current assets BN EERTE 54,828 132,192
CURRENT LIABILITIES VEI=EE
Other payables H fh B 3RIB 2,449 1,346
Promissory note O R 17,000 95,226
Derivative financial liabilities TEeREaE - 36,153
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE ¢ - 50,881
Convertible bonds Al E S 266,821 256,562
Total current liabilities mEBERTE 286,270 440,168
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE (231,442) (307,976)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBDEE
LIABILITIES (172,583) (137,486)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBAEE
Contingent consideration payable JET S ARAE - 1,563
Total non-current liabilities ERBEELTE - 1,563
Net liabilities BEFE (172,583) (139,049)
Deficiency in assets BEBM
Share capital fi% 7 67,356 67,356
Reserves s (239,939) (206,405)
Total deficiency in assets BEEAEE (172,583) (139,049)
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At F5 R R B aE

31 December 2018 —Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

45. KA TIMBRAFT 2

o

ARBRRHEBRAT

Capital Investment Convertible
Share redemption revaluation bonds  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
e BREER BE
& 1n s (E f# & ®1E EHHRE 2 EE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT AT AT AT AT FHET
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-E—+t%—F—H
L 76,385 1564 (1,304) 20,427 (81,923) 15,149
Loss for the year FAEE - - - - (324,080) (324,080)
Other comprehensive income FREMZAERE:
for the year:
Increase in fair value of AREERE
available-for-sale investments AFEEMN - - 1,108 - - 1,108
Release of investment revaluation AHREERERE
reserve to profit or loss BERREER
for impairment loss on REERZER
available-for-sale investments - - 2,000 - - 2,000
Total comprehensive income FR2ENRHE
for the year - - 3,108 - (324,080) (320,972)
Share issued upon conversion RATARESRBIARET
of convertible bonds g 57,265 - - (20,427) - 36,838
Share issued upon completion RIREEH B A R Thl ks %t
of acquisition of subsidiaries 1kfn 62,580 - - - - 62,580
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF
+-F=+-A 196,230 1564 1,804 - (406,003) (206,405)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 ROEENBRSENR
MR T E - - (1,804) - 1,804 -
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZE-N\¥—A—A
(wE5)) 196,230 1,564 - - (404,199) (206,405)
Loss and total comprehensive loss % A& 18 1%
for the year 2EEBEE - - - - (33,534) (33,534)
At 31 December 2018 RZT—\§
+-A=+-8 196,230 1564 - - (437,733) (239,939)
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Notes to Financial Statements

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The Group has obtained new long-term borrowings of
HK$11.4 million in February 2019, and the Group has
received HK$365.4 million from a holding company in late
April 2019 as a long-term borrowing which is matured in
2022.

The Group management signed the extension agreements
with the lenders regarding HK$130.9 million borrowings in
April 2019 to extend the due date to December 2020.

In April 2019, the Company entered into several
subscription agreements with three subscribers, pursuant
to which each of the subscribers has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for, and the Company has conditionally
agreed to issue the bonds with conditional conversion
rights. The aggregate principal amount of the bonds is
HK$180.0 million which may be converted into 72 million
shares at an exercise price of HK$2.5 and is matured in
2022.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 April
2019.

46.

47.
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REMEEREN

AEBR-_ZE—NLEF_AESFTNEHPEER
11,400,000/ 7 BEAEBR = —LFMA
JE i — RS 4% I& A R] BN 18365,400,0005 7t & Hf
BEE (RS- —F3H) -

AEBEBEER _ZT—NLFNAGRMEE
130,900,000/ JT B AR B A 2R 5] & HA 1p it DA 18
NP TEEE S _ZTF+_-Hf-

RZZT—AFNA ARFE=ZFZRE AL
AETRERR Bl SRBAEEEKGHRE
RE MARREBEGRERITHER M
B 2 % o BF A 8% /2180,000,000/%
JT AIIRATIE (E2.57% i # 4572,000,0000% J%
M WR T ZFEH|E

HEEESMBRR

FEEAMBRRDKEFER _T-AFNOA
=+ B e R T o

ERANLRERERRAT
2 )\FFRH

254



Financial Summary

AR

RESULTS

E 35

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-NF ZE—RF ZET—RF —T—+F ZE-)\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEL FiEL FAT FHETT FHET
Revenue (including continuing and W (BEFER
discontinued operations) BRIFEEET) 52,165 194,857 195,562 39,958 73,485
Profit (loss) before taxation BRELETE R (BE) (17,736) (23,026) (50,563) (297,979) (55,518)
Income tax (expense) credit s (R K% - (961) (331) - -
Profit (loss) for the year FERA (BE) (17,736) (23,987) (50,894) (297,979) (55,518)
attributable to owners of RARHEE AR
the Company (17,736) 8,734 (39,766) (294,439) (49,606)
attributable to non-controlling IR EREG
interests - (32,721) (11,128) (3,540) (5,912)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERBE
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—Z-FE —Z—HF ZZ—FRFE Z—+F ZEB-0\F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEL FiET FEL FET FHET
Total assets BEE 191,258 553,785 381,652 342,432 446,453
Total liabilities BEE (46,560) (435,537) (317,147 (452,877) (609,805)
144,698 118,248 64,505 (110,445)  (168,352)
Equity e
attributable to owners of RAREE AR
the Company 144,698 150,930 108,370 (68,990)  (117,290)
attributable to non-controlling RS EG
interests - (32,682) (43,865) (41,455) (46,062)
Total Bt 144,698 118,248 64,505 (110,445) (163,352)
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